Qumu Corp Form DEFM14A May 27, 2014

Table of Contents

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, DC 20549

SCHEDULE 14A

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Amendment No.)

Filed by the Registrant

Filed by a Party other than the Registrant

Check the appropriate box:

Preliminary Proxy Statement
Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
Definitive Proxy Statement
Definitive Additional Materials
Soliciting Material Pursuant to § 240.14a-12

Qumu Corporation
(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)

Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant)

Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):

No fee required

Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(4) and 0-11.

- 1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:
- 2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:
- Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):
- 4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:

5) Total fee paid:
Fee paid previously with preliminary materials. Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing. 1) Amount Previously Paid:
2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:
3) Filing Party:
4)Date Filed:

Table of Contents

QUMU CORPORATION

7725 Washington Ave. S. Minneapolis, MN 55439

Dear Shareholder:

You are invited to attend a special meeting of shareholders of Qumu Corporation (Qumu), which will be held on Friday, June 27, 2014 at 9:30 a.m. (Minneapolis, Minnesota time), at 4200 IDS Center, 80 South Eighth Street, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402.

On April 24, 2014, Qumu entered into an asset purchase agreement with Equus Holdings, Inc. and Redwood Acquisition, Inc. pursuant to which Qumu has agreed to sell all of the assets primarily used in or primarily held for use in connection with our disc publishing business, which we refer to as the Asset Sale Transaction. Qumu s board of directors has unanimously approved the Asset Sale Transaction and unanimously recommends that shareholders vote in favor of the proposal to approve the Asset Sale Transaction.

At the special meeting of shareholders, you will be asked to vote on a proposal to approve the Asset Sale Transaction. If there are insufficient votes in favor of the proposal to approve the Asset Sale Transaction, you will be asked to vote to adjourn or postpone the special meeting of shareholders to solicit additional proxies. The proposal to approve the Asset Sale Transaction will be approved by the holders of a majority of the shares of our common stock outstanding and entitled to vote thereon.

The accompanying proxy statement contains important information concerning the Asset Sale Transaction, specific information about the special meeting and how to cast your vote. We encourage you to read the accompanying proxy statement in its entirety.

Your vote is very important. Whether or not you plan to attend the special meeting of shareholders, please vote by proxy over the Internet, by telephone or by mailing the enclosed proxy card.

If your shares of Qumu common stock are held in street name by your broker, bank or other nominee, then in order to cast your vote you will need to instruct your broker, bank or other nominee on how to vote your shares using the instructions provided by your broker, trust, bank or other nominee.

I look forward to greeting those of you who will be able to attend the special meeting.

Sincerely,

Sherman L. Black

Chief Executive Officer

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities regulatory agency has approved or disapproved the Asset Sale Transaction, passed upon the merits or fairness of the Asset Sale Transaction or passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of the disclosure in the accompanying proxy statement. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

This proxy statement is dated May 27, 2014 and is first being mailed to shareholders on or about May 27, 2014.

Table of Contents

OUMU CORPORATION

7725 Washington Ave. S.
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55439
NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

To be held on Friday, June 27, 2014

To Shareholders of Qumu:

A special meeting of shareholders of Qumu Corporation will be held on Friday, June 27, 2014 at 9:30 a.m. (Minneapolis, Minnesota time), at 4200 IDS Center, 80 South Eighth Street, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402. At the special meeting, shareholders will be asked:

- 1. To approve the sale of the disc publishing assets of Qumu, which constitutes the sale of substantially all of Qumu s assets under the Minnesota Business Corporation Act, as contemplated by the asset purchase agreement dated April 24, 2014 by and among Equus Holdings, Inc. as Parent, Redwood Acquisition, Inc. as Buyer and Qumu Corporation as Seller (as it may be amended from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof), a copy of which is attached as Appendix A to the accompanying proxy statement. We refer to this transaction as the Asset Sale Transaction and this proposal as the Asset Sale Proposal;
- 2. To approve the adjournment or postponement of the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting to approve the Asset Sale Proposal. We refer to this proposal as the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting.

Our board of directors has fixed May 9, 2014, as the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the special meeting and any adjournment or postponement thereof. Only holders of record of shares of our common stock at the close of business on the record date are entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the special meeting. At the close of business on the record date, we had 8,684,848 shares of common stock outstanding and entitled to vote.

The proxy statement accompanying this notice is deemed to be incorporated into and forms part of this notice. The accompanying proxy statement, dated May 27, 2014, and proxy card for the special meeting are first being mailed to our shareholders on or about May 27, 2014.

Our board of directors has unanimously approved the asset purchase agreement and unanimously recommends that you vote FOR the Asset Sale Proposal and FOR the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting.

Your vote is very important. Please vote your shares by proxy as promptly as possible whether or not you plan to attend the special meeting.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Sherman L. Black Chief Executive Officer Minneapolis, Minnesota May 27, 2014

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PROXY STATEMENT	1
SUMMARY TERM SHEET	1
Information About the Parties	1
Qumu Corporation	1
Equus Holdings, Inc. and Redwood Acquisition, Inc.	1
Asset Purchase Agreement	2
Purchase Price	2
Financing	2
<u>Use of Proceeds</u>	3
Reasons for the Asset Sale Transaction	3
Recommendation of Our Board of Directors	3
Opinion of Our Financial Advisor	3
Special Meeting	3
	4
Interests of Certain Persons in the Asset Sale Transaction Conditions to Clasins	
Conditions to Closing	4
Solicitation of Transactions	5
Change of Qumu Board Recommendation	5
Termination State Francisco Francisc	5
When the Asset Sale Transaction is Expected to be Completed	6
Effects on Our Company if the Asset Sale Transaction is Completed	6
Effects on Our Company if the Asset Sale Transaction is Not Completed	7
No Appraisal or Dissenters Rights	7
Anticipated Accounting Treatment	7
Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Asset Sale Transaction	7
Risk Factors	7
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE SPECIAL MEETING	8
CAUTION CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	12
OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT	13
PROPOSAL #1 ASSET SALE PROPOSAL	15
Parties to the Asset Purchase Agreement	15
Qumu Corporation	15
Equus Holdings, Inc. and Redwood Acquisition, Inc.	15
-	
Background of the Asset Sale Transaction	16
Past Contacts, Transactions or Negotiations Past Contacts, Transactions or Negotiations	26
Reasons for the Asset Sale Transaction and Recommendation of Our Board of Directors	26
Opinion of Our Financial Advisor	28
Valuation Analyses of Mooreland Partners	30
Projected Financial Results	34
Financing Financ	35
When the Asset Sale Transaction is Expected to be Completed	36
Effects on Our Company if the Asset Sale Transaction is Completed and the Nature of Our Business Following the Transaction	36
Effects on Our Company if the Asset Sale Transaction is Not Completed	37
No Appraisal or Dissenters Rights	37
Interests of Certain Persons in the Asset Sale Transaction	37
Employment Arrangements	37
Anticipated Accounting Treatment	38
Use of Proceeds	38
Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Asset Sale Transaction	38
Vote Required	39
i	

ASSET PURCHASE AGE	ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT		
General			
Purchase and Sale of Asse	<u>ts</u>	40	
Purchase Price and Escrow	<u>Amount</u>	43	
Conditions to Closing		43	
Representations and Warra	<u>unties</u>	45	
<u>Covenants</u>		48	
	hing Business Prior to Closing	48	
Access to Business		48	
<u>Confidentiality</u>		48	
Consents, Approvals and F		48	
Notice of Developments; S		48	
	tatement; Shareholder Meeting	49 49	
Solicitation of Transactions			
	Change in Board Recommendations Non-Competition and Non-Solicitation Covenants		
Books and Records	-Solicitation Covenants	51 52	
Tax Matters		52	
Employee and Benefits Ma	atters	53	
Non-Assignable Assets	<u>aucrs</u>	54	
Qumu Name; Rimage Name			
Financing	<u></u>	54 54	
Reorganization		55	
Permits		55	
<u>Termination</u>		55	
Remedies; Termination Fe	<u>es</u>	56	
<u>Indemnification</u>		58	
<u>Amendment</u>		58	
Post-Closing Agreements		59	
PROPOSAL #2 PROPOSA	AL TO ADJOURN OR POSTPONE THE SPECIAL MEETING	60	
RISK FACTORS		61	
HOUSEHOLDING OF M	<u>ATERIALS</u>	65	
WHERE YOU CAN FIND	MORE INFORMATION	65	
SHAREHOLDER PROPO	SALS 2015 ANNUAL MEETING	66	
OTHER MATTERS		66	
APPENDIX A:	Asset Purchase Agreement dated April 24, 2014 by and among Equus Holdings, Inc. as Parent, Redwood Acquisition, Inc. as Buyer and Qumu Corporation as Seller		
APPENDIX B:	Opinion of Mooreland Partners LLC dated April 23, 2014		
APPENDIX C:	Qumu Corporation Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements		
APPENDIX D:	Qumu Corporation Unaudited Condensed Combined Financial Statements for the Business to be Sold		
APPENDIX E: Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm dated March 14, 2014 ii			

Table of Contents

PROXY STATEMENT

Qumu Corporation, a Minnesota corporation (which we refer to as Qumu, the company, we, our, and us), is soliciting the enclosed proxy for at the special meeting of our shareholders to be held on Friday, June 27, 2014 at 9:30 a.m. (Minneapolis, Minnesota time), at 4200 IDS Center, 80 South Eighth Street, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402. This proxy statement, dated May 27, 2014, and proxy card are first being mailed to our shareholders on or about May 27, 2014.

SUMMARY TERM SHEET

This summary term sheet, together with the question and answer section that follows, highlights selected information from this proxy statement about the proposed sale of the disc publishing business assets of Qumu Corporation (which we refer to as the Asset Sale Transaction). This summary term sheet and the question and answer section may not contain all of the information that is important to you. For a more complete description of the Asset Sale Transaction, you should carefully read this proxy statement, its appendices and the documents referred to or incorporated by reference in this proxy statement, in their entirety. Each item in this summary includes a page reference directing you to a more complete description of that topic. Also see WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION on page 65.

Information About the Parties (page 15)

Qumu Corporation

Qumu Corporation helps businesses deliver digital content directly and securely to their customers, employees and partners. Our software business provides enterprise content distribution software to the rapidly growing enterprise video communications market and is an innovator in the secure mobile delivery of rich content. Our disc publishing business supplies customers in North America, Europe and Asia with industry-leading solutions that label, archive, distribute and protect content on CDs, DVDs and Blu-ray Discs.

We have focused on digital content distribution since our inception. Since 1995, Qumu focused its business on development and sale of its CD recordable (CD-R) publishing systems, and since 2000, its DVD recordable (DVD-R) publishing systems. Blu-ray capabilities were integrated into key products in late 2006 to address the needs of customers desiring the substantial increase in storage capacity provided by this technology. The disc publishing business is mature and has been declining in revenue since 2007 due to technology substitutions. Changes in the information technology landscape have resulted in an evolution of customer needs from physical distribution of content on CDs, DVDs and Blu-ray Discs to online distribution. In addition, enterprises are increasingly having to address the challenge of video and rich content distribution overwhelming their data networks. In response to these changes, in October 2011, we acquired Qumu, Inc., a leader in the fast-growing enterprise video communications market. With the acquisition of Qumu, Inc., we became engaged in the business of providing enterprise content distribution software for the video communications market and the delivery of secure digital content to computer, tablets and mobile devices, which we refer to as our software business. On September 16, 2013, we changed our corporate name from Rimage Corporation to Qumu Corporation to reflect our commitment to the rapidly growing enterprise video communications market.

Qumu Corporation is a Minnesota corporation. Our mailing address is 7725 Washington Ave. S., Minneapolis, MN 55439, and the telephone number at that location is (952) 683-7900. Our principal website is www.qumu.com.

Equus Holdings, Inc. and Redwood Acquisition, Inc.

Equus Holdings, Inc., a Minnesota corporation, is a Minneapolis, Minnesota based privately-held company that has evolved from a custom computer manufacturer to a portfolio of technology companies primarily in the business server and client computing markets. Equus is comprised of several business channels and services, including Equus Computing Solutions, which sells computing solutions through a channel of resellers; Intequus, which provides customized hardware/storage solutions for original equipment manufacturers; Servers Direct, which offers an e-commerce store for build-to-order servers and support; Equus Corporate Services, which provides shared services (finance, marketing, human resources, information, technology, legal) for all Equus businesses as well as other privately owned companies; and RazorSync, which offers mobile workforce management software.

1

Table of Contents

Redwood Acquisition, Inc., is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Equus Holdings. Redwood Acquisition, a Minnesota corporation, was formed on April 18, 2014 solely for the purposes of the Asset Sale Transaction and is engaged in no other business.

The mailing address for Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition is 5801 Clearwater Drive, Minnetonka, MN 55343 and the telephone number at that location is 1-800-641-1475. The principal website for Equus Holdings is www.equus-holdings.com.

Asset Purchase Agreement (page 40 and Appendix A)

On April 24, 2014, we entered into an asset purchase agreement with Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition, pursuant to which we have agreed, subject to specified terms and conditions, including approval of the Asset Sale Transaction by our shareholders at the special meeting, to sell to Redwood Acquisition all of the assets primarily used in or primarily held for use in connection with our business of manufacturing and distributing disc publishing solutions that label, archive, distribute and protect content on CDs, DVDs and Blu-ray discs, which we refer to as the disc publishing business. Redwood Acquisition will assume certain agreements and liabilities of the disc publishing business. Qumu primarily will retain its software business and cash. Redwood Acquisition generally will not assume liabilities associated with operation of the disc publishing business prior to the closing of the Asset Sale Transaction other than certain liabilities related to the disc publishing business to the extent set forth on an estimated or final balance sheet calculated as of the closing date, certain obligations under the executory portion of certain disc publishing business contracts to be acquired by Redwood Acquisition, certain obligations under the executory portion of disc publishing business contracts of subsidiaries acquired by Redwood Acquisition entered into in the ordinary course of business, certain obligations under any foreign benefit plans on or after the closing date, and the obligations and liabilities arising out of the ownership of the disc publishing assets acquired by Redwood Acquisition and the operation of the disc publishing business on and after the closing date of the Asset Sale Transaction.

A copy of the asset purchase agreement is attached as Appendix A to this proxy statement. We encourage you to read the asset purchase agreement in its entirety.

Purchase Price (page 43)

The purchase price for the acquired assets will be \$23 million plus an estimated amount of cash held by the acquired subsidiaries (up to \$800,000), plus or less the difference in the estimated net book value of the disc publishing business (as defined in the asset purchase agreement) at closing and a net book value target of \$5 million, and less the estimated EBITDA of the disc publishing business (as defined in the asset purchase agreement) from June 1, 2014 through the closing date.

At the closing of the asset sale transaction, Redwood Acquisition will pay us the purchase price in cash less a \$2.3 million escrow amount that will be placed in an escrow account to support our indemnification obligations under the asset purchase agreement for a fifteen-month escrow period.

Following the closing date, the purchase price will be further adjusted for the actual cash held by certain subsidiaries at the closing date, the actual difference between net book value at the closing date and the target net book value amount, and the actual EBITDA of the disc publishing business from June 1, 2014 through the closing date. Any adjustments will be paid in cash following the closing.

Financing (page 35)

Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition estimate that approximately \$23.0 million will be required to complete the Asset Sale Transactions. It is anticipated that these amounts will be funded with bank financing in accordance with a commitment letter that has been issued to Equus Holdings by U.S. Bank National Association and cash on hand of Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition. The bank commitment letter provides for a senior secured revolving credit facility of up to \$7 million, term loan of \$18 million and up to \$4 million in available letters of credit. Equus Holdings is obligated to use its reasonable best efforts to obtain the financing on the terms and conditions described in the bank commitment letter and is required to use its reasonable best efforts to arrange for alternate financing in certain circumstances. The asset purchase agreement provides that Equus Holdings and

Table of Contents

Redwood Acquisition will not be obligated to complete the Asset Sale Transaction if Redwood Acquisition has not obtained the financing in accordance with the bank commitment letter. Equus Holdings has agreed to pay us a seller termination fee of \$300,000 if the asset purchase agreement is terminated by us because Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings are unable to obtain financing on or before all of the other closing conditions have been satisfied or waived.

Use of Proceeds (page 38)

Our company, and not our shareholders, will receive the net proceeds from the Asset Sale Transaction. We anticipate using the net proceeds in connection with the development and operation of our software business and for general working capital purposes.

Reasons for the Asset Sale Transaction (page 26)

After taking into account all of the material factors relating to the asset purchase agreement and the Asset Sale Transaction, our board of directors concluded that the benefits of the asset purchase agreement and the Asset Sale Transaction outweigh the risks and that the asset purchase agreement and that the Asset Sale Transaction are advisable and in the best interests of our company and our shareholders. Our board of directors did not assign relative weights to the material factors it considered. In addition, our board of directors did not reach any specific conclusion on each of the material factors considered, but conducted an overall analysis of all of the material factors. Individual members of our board of directors may have given different weights to different factors.

Recommendation of Our Board of Directors (page 26)

After careful consideration, our board of directors unanimously recommends that you vote:

FOR the Asset Sale Proposal; and

FOR the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting.

Opinion of Our Financial Advisor (page 28 and Appendix B)

We retained Mooreland Partners LLC (Mooreland Partners) as our financial advisor in connection with the Asset Sale Transaction. At a joint meeting of our board of directors and the transaction committee held on April 23, 2014, Mooreland Partners rendered to our board of directors its oral opinion, subsequently confirmed in writing, that, as of that date and based upon and subject to the assumptions, factors, and limitations set forth in the written opinion and described below, the aggregate consideration to be received by Qumu in the proposed Asset Sale Transaction was fair, from a financial point of view, to Qumu.

The opinion of Mooreland Partners was directed to, and for the use of, our board of directors in connection with its consideration of the Asset Sale Transaction, does not address the underlying business decision to proceed with or effect the Asset Sale Transaction or the relative merits of the Asset Sale Transaction as compared to any strategic alternatives that may be available to our company and does not constitute a recommendation as to how any of our shareholders should vote with respect to the Asset Sale Transaction.

The full text of the opinion of Mooreland Partners dated as of April 23, 2014, which sets forth the assumptions made, matters considered and limits on the scope of the review undertaken in connection with the opinion, is attached as Appendix B to this proxy statement. We encourage you to read the opinion of Mooreland Partners in its entirety.

Special Meeting (page 8)

Date, Time and Place. The special meeting will be held on Friday, June 27, 2014 at 9:30 a.m. (Minneapolis, Minnesota time), at 4200 IDS Center, 80 South Eighth Street, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402.

Record Date and Voting Power. You are entitled to vote at the special meeting if you owned shares of our common stock at the close of business on May 9, 2014, the record date for the special meeting. You will have one vote at the special meeting for each share of our common stock you held at the close of business on the record date. There are 8,684,848 shares of our common stock entitled to be voted at the special meeting.

Table of Contents

Required Vote. You may vote FOR, AGAINST or ABSTAIN on the Asset Sale Proposal and the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting.

The approval of the Asset Sale Proposal requires the affirmative vote of holders of at least a majority of our issued and outstanding shares of common stock that are entitled to vote at the special meeting. If you attend the special meeting but abstain from voting, either in person or by proxy, or you hold your shares through a broker or other nominee and you do not instruct your broker or other nominee how to vote your shares, the resulting abstention or broker non-vote will have the same effect as a vote AGAINST the approval of the Asset Sale Proposal.

If a quorum is present at the special meeting, the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting will be approved if the number of shares voted in favor of that proposal is greater than the number of shares voted against that proposal. Abstentions and broker non-votes will have no effect on the outcome of the vote on the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting if it is submitted for shareholder approval when a quorum is present at the meeting. If a quorum is not present at the special meeting, the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting will be approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the voting power of our common stock present in person or by proxy at the special meeting and no other business will be transacted thereat. Abstentions would have the same effect as a vote AGAINST this proposal and broker non-votes would have no effect on the outcome of the vote on this proposal if it is submitted for approval when no quorum is present at the special meeting.

Proxy Solicitation. We have engaged Proxy Advisory Group to solicit proxies in connection with the matters to be voted on at the Special Meeting. The terms of the engagement authorize Proxy Advisory Group to contact our largest institutional shareholders and our other 100 largest non-objecting beneficial owner and to request their vote in favor of the proposals. Qumu will be solely responsible for the costs of the solicitation, which is anticipated to be less than \$15,000. Certain of Qumu s directors, officers and regular employees may also, without additional compensation, solicit proxies personally or by telephone or e-mail. In addition to solicitation by mail, our directors, officers and employees may solicit proxies from shareholders by telephone, letter, facsimile or in person. These directors, officers and employees will not be paid additional remuneration for their efforts but may be reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection therewith. Following the original mailing, we will request brokers, custodians, nominees and other record holders to forward their own notice and, upon request, to forward copies of the proxy statement and related soliciting materials to persons for whom they hold shares of our common stock and to request authority for the exercise of proxies. In such cases, upon the request of the record holders, we will reimburse such holders for their reasonable out-of-pocket expenses.

Interests of Certain Persons in the Asset Sale Transaction (page 37)

None of our directors or executive officers is entitled to receive payments in connection with the Asset Sale Transaction. The Asset Sale Transaction does not constitute a change in control for the purposes of any agreement with or equity award granted to our directors or executive officers.

Conditions to Closing (page 43)

The obligation of Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition to complete the Asset Sale Transaction is subject to the satisfaction or, to the extent permissible under applicable law or pursuant to the asset purchase agreement, waiver of certain conditions on or prior to the closing. Such conditions include, among others and in addition to customary closing conditions:

approval by Qumu s shareholders of the Asset Sale Proposal;

Redwood Acquisition will have obtained the financing for the Asset Sale Transaction in accordance with its bank commitment letter or alternate financing;

delivery of evidence transferring all of the outstanding ownership interests in the acquired subsidiaries to Redwood Acquisition;

the specified third party consents and approvals will have been obtained;

Table of Contents

a deed transferring our current headquarters at 7725 Washington Avenue South to Redwood Acquisition;

execution and delivery of the mutual transition services agreement between Redwood Acquisition and us; and

execution and delivery of lease agreement between us and Redwood Acquisition by which we will lease a portion of our current headquarters post-closing.

The obligation of Qumu to complete the Asset Sale Transaction is subject to the satisfaction or, to the extent permissible under applicable law or pursuant to the asset purchase agreement, waiver of certain conditions on or prior to the closing. Such conditions include, among others and in addition to customary closing conditions:

approval by Qumu s shareholders of the Asset Sale Proposal; and

Redwood Acquisition will have executed and delivered mutual transition services agreement and lease agreement.

Solicitation of Transactions (page 49)

The asset purchase agreement prohibits us from soliciting, encouraging or facilitating any offers or proposals for the acquisition of the disc publishing business and certain other acquisition proposals by a buyer other than Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition. However, the asset purchase agreement does not prohibit us from considering and pursuing certain unsolicited acquisition offers from a buyer other than Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition that our board of directors determines in good faith constitutes or is reasonably likely to constitute a superior proposal, subject to certain requirements and conditions.

Change of Qumu Board Recommendation (page 50)

Our board of directors unanimously recommends that you vote for the Asset Sale Proposal.

Our board of directors may withdraw or change its recommendation for approval of the Asset Sale Proposal at any time prior to obtaining the required shareholder vote, if our board of directors or any committee of the board determines in good faith, after consultation with its financial advisors and outside counsel, that the failure to do so would be inconsistent with its fiduciary duties under applicable law, which would include, without limitation, the pursuit of an unsolicited acquisition proposal that constitutes or is reasonably likely to constitute a superior proposal. Our board will not be entitled to exercise its right to make a change in its recommendation unless we and our representatives have complied with the non-solicitation, notice and information, negotiation and other provisions of the asset purchase agreement.

Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings (at any time prior to Qumu obtaining the required shareholder vote) may terminate the asset purchase agreement if our board of directors approves, endorses or recommends any superior proposal. We may also terminate the asset purchase agreement, at any time prior to obtaining the required shareholder vote, in order to enter into a definitive agreement to effect a transaction contemplated by a superior proposal, subject to certain conditions.

Termination (page 55)

Subject to certain exceptions, the asset purchase agreement may be terminated prior to the closing in certain circumstances, including:

by us or Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings if the closing does not occur on or before July 31, 2014;

by Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings or by us if a meeting of our shareholders to approve the asset purchase agreement shall have been held and completed and the asset purchase agreement shall not have been adopted at such meeting by the required shareholder vote;

Table of Contents

by Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings, at any time prior to the adoption of the asset purchase agreement by the required shareholder vote, if our board shall have failed to recommend that our shareholders vote to approve the asset purchase agreement, there shall have occurred a change in the recommendation of our board of directors, our board shall have approved, endorsed or recommended any acquisition proposal, we shall have failed to include in the proxy statement the recommendation by our board of directors that shareholders vote in favor of the Asset Sale Proposal, or our board fails to publicly reaffirm its recommendation that shareholders vote in favor of the Asset Sale Proposal within seven business days after our receipt of a written request by Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings following the date of any acquisition proposal;

by us, prior to obtaining the required shareholder vote, in order to enter into a definitive agreement to effect a transaction contemplated by a superior proposal immediately following a change in the recommendation of our board of directors in response to such superior proposal, but we must enter into such definitive agreement contemporaneous with our termination of the asset purchase agreement; or

by us if Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings are unable to obtain financing on or before all of the other closing conditions have been satisfied or waived.

The termination of the asset purchase agreement generally relieves the parties from their obligations, except that certain obligations will survive any termination including, among others, obligations relating to confidentiality and termination fees.

We have agreed to pay Redwood Acquisition (or its designee) a buyer termination fee of \$500,000 if the asset purchase agreement is terminated under certain circumstances described above, including if our shareholders do not approve the Asset Sale Proposal, if our board shall have approved, endorsed or recommended any acquisition proposal, or if we terminate the asset purchase agreement in order to enter into a definitive agreement to effect a transaction contemplated by a superior proposal.

Equus Holdings has agreed to pay us a seller termination fee of \$300,000 if the asset purchase agreement is terminated by us because Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings are unable to obtain financing on or before all of the other closing conditions have been satisfied or waived.

When the Asset Sale Transaction is Expected to be Completed (page 36)

We expect to complete the Asset Sale Transaction promptly after satisfaction or waiver of all of the closing conditions in the asset purchase agreement, including approval of the Asset Sale Proposal by our shareholders and Redwood Acquisition obtaining the financing for the Asset Sale Transaction under its bank commitment letter or alternate financing. Subject to the satisfaction or waiver of these conditions, we expect the Asset Sale Transaction to close by July 31, 2014. However, there can be no assurance that the Asset Sale Transaction will be completed at all or, if completed, when it will be completed.

Effects on Our Company if the Asset Sale Transaction is Completed (page 36)

If the Asset Sale Transaction is completed, we will no longer conduct the disc publishing business. Instead, we will focus on the software business. We intend to grow and operate our software business and we expect to generate revenues and related cash flows through the sale of software licenses, software on a server appliance, software-enabled devices and a cloud-based Software-as-a-Service (SaaS) platform, as well as software maintenance contracts and professional services sold with these solutions.

The Asset Sale Transaction will not alter the rights, privileges or nature of the issued and outstanding shares of our common stock. A shareholder who owns shares of our common stock immediately prior to the closing of the Asset Sale Transaction will continue to hold the same number of shares immediately following the closing.

Our SEC reporting obligations as a public company will not be affected as a result of completing the Asset Sale Transaction. We believe that immediately after the Asset Sale Transaction we will continue to qualify for listing on the NASDAQ Global Market.

Table of Contents

Effects on Our Company if the Asset Sale Transaction is Not Completed (page 37)

If the Asset Sale Transaction is not completed, we will continue our focus on growing our software business and we also will continue to operate the disc publishing business, and we may consider and evaluate other strategic opportunities. In such a circumstance, there can be no assurances that our continued operation of the disc publishing business or any alternative strategic opportunities will result in the same or greater value to our shareholders as the proposed Asset Sale Transaction.

The asset purchase agreement may be terminated under certain circumstances as set forth in the asset purchase agreement and summarized in this proxy statement. We have agreed to pay Redwood Acquisition (or its designee) a buyer termination fee of \$500,000 if the asset purchase agreement is terminated under certain circumstances. Equus Holdings has agreed to pay us a seller termination fee of \$300,000 if the asset purchase agreement is terminated by us if Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings are unable to obtain financing on or before all of the other closing conditions have been satisfied or waived.

No Appraisal or Dissenters Rights (page 37)

No appraisal or dissenters rights are available to our shareholders under Minnesota law or our articles of incorporation or bylaws in connection with the Asset Sale Proposal or the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting.

Anticipated Accounting Treatment (page 38)

Under generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America, commencing with the quarter during which our shareholders approve the Asset Sale Proposal, we expect to reflect the results of operations of the disc publishing business as discontinued operations. The related anticipated gain on the sale, net of any applicable taxes, will also be reported within discontinued operations upon completion of the Asset Sale Transaction. For further information, see UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS attached to this proxy statement as Appendix C.

Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Asset Sale Transaction (page 38)

The Asset Sale Transaction will be treated for U.S. federal and state income tax purposes as a taxable transaction upon which we will recognize gain or loss. The amount of taxable gain or loss we recognize with respect to the sale of a particular asset will be measured by the difference between the amount realized by us on the sale of that asset and our tax basis in that asset. The determination of whether we will recognize gain or loss will be made with respect to each of the assets to be sold. Accordingly, we may recognize gain on the sale of certain assets and loss on the sale of certain others, depending on the amount of consideration allocated to an asset as compared with the basis of that asset. Further, the sale of certain assets may result in ordinary income or loss, depending on the nature of the asset. To the extent the Asset Sale Transaction results in us recognizing a net gain for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we expect that our available net operating loss carryforwards will offset all or a substantial part of such gain. The Asset Sale Transaction will not be a taxable event for U.S. federal income tax purposes to our shareholders.

Risk Factors (page 61)

In evaluating the Asset Sale Proposal, in addition to the other information contained in this proxy statement, you should carefully consider the special risks relating to the Asset Sale Transaction under RISK FACTORS beginning on page 61, as well as the risk factors about our company incorporated by reference. See also WHERE YOU CAN FIND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION on page 65.

Table of Contents

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE SPECIAL MEETING

Q: Why am I receiving this proxy statement?

A: Our board of directors is furnishing this proxy statement in connection with the solicitation of proxies to be voted at the special meeting of shareholders, or at any adjournments or postponements of the special meeting.

Q: When and where will the special meeting be held?

A: The special meeting will be held on Friday, June 27, 2014, at 9:30 a.m. (Minneapolis, Minnesota time), at 4200 IDS Center, 80 South Eighth Street, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402.

Q: What matters will the shareholders vote on at the special meeting?

A: The shareholders will vote on the following two proposals:

To approve the Asset Sale Proposal; and

To approve the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting.

Q: What is the Asset Sale Proposal?

A: The Asset Sale Proposal is a proposal to approve the sale of assets of the disc publishing business, which constitutes substantially all of the assets of Qumu under the Minnesota Business Corporation Act, pursuant to an asset purchase agreement dated as of April 24, 2014 between Equus Holdings, Inc. as Parent, Redwood Acquisition, Inc. as Buyer and Oumu Corporation as Seller.

Q: What will happen if the Asset Sale Proposal is approved by our shareholders?

A: Under the terms of the asset purchase agreement, if the Asset Sale Proposal is approved by our shareholders and the other closing conditions under the asset purchase agreement have been satisfied or waived, we will sell all of the assets primarily used in or primarily held for use in connection with the disc publishing business to Redwood Acquisition and we will discontinue operation of the disc publishing business.

Q: What is the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting?

A: The Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting is a proposal to permit us to adjourn or postpone the special meeting for the purpose of soliciting additional proxies in the event that, at the special meeting, the affirmative votes in favor of the Asset Sale Proposal are less than required to approve the Asset Sale Proposal.

Q: What will happen if the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting is approved by our shareholders?

A: If there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting to approve the Asset Sale Proposal, and the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting is approved at the special meeting, we will be able to adjourn or postpone the special meeting for purposes of soliciting additional proxies to approve the Asset Sale Proposal. If you have previously submitted a proxy on the proposals discussed in this proxy statement and wish to revoke it upon adjournment or postponement of the special meeting, you may do so.

Q: Am I entitled to appraisal or dissenters rights in connection with the Asset Sale Proposal or the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting?

A: Shareholders are not entitled to appraisal or dissenters rights under Minnesota law or under our articles of incorporation or bylaws in connection with the Asset Sale Proposal or the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting.

Table of Contents

Q: Who is entitled to vote at the special meeting?

A: Holders of our common stock at the close of business on May 9, 2014, the record date for the special meeting established by our board of directors, are entitled to receive notice of, and to vote their shares at, the special meeting and any related adjournments or postponements. As of the close of business on the record date, there were 8,684,848 shares of our common stock outstanding and entitled to vote. Holders of our common stock are entitled to one vote per share.

Q: What are the quorum requirements for the special meeting?

A: The presence in person or by proxy of the holders of a majority of our outstanding shares of common stock that are entitled to vote at the special meeting constitutes a quorum. You are counted as present at the special meeting for quorum purposes if you are present and vote in person at the special meeting or if you properly submit a proxy by returning the proxy card accompanying this proxy statement in the postage-paid envelope provided or by the Internet or telephone voting procedures described below under Q: How do I vote? A validly submitted proxy will result in your shares counting towards a quorum even if no voting instructions are provided. Broker non-votes will be counted for the purposes of determining whether a quorum is present at the special meeting.

Q: What vote is required to approve each of the proposals?

A: You may vote FOR, AGAINST or ABSTAIN on the Asset Sale Proposal and the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting.

The approval of the Asset Sale Proposal requires the affirmative vote of holders of at least a majority of our issued and outstanding shares of common stock entitled to vote at the special meeting. If you fail to vote, either in person or by proxy, or you attend the meeting or deliver a proxy but abstain from voting, or you do not instruct your broker or other nominee how to vote your shares, the resulting non-attendance, abstention or broker non-vote will have the same effect as a vote AGAINST the approval of such proposal.

If a quorum is present at the special meeting, the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting will be approved if the number of shares voted in favor of that proposal is greater than the number of shares voted against that proposal. Non-attendance, abstentions and broker non-votes will have no effect on the outcome of the vote on the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting if it is submitted for shareholder approval when a quorum is present at the meeting. If a quorum is not present at the special meeting, the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting will be approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of our common stock present in person or by proxy at the special meeting and no other business will be transacted thereat. Abstentions would have the same effect as a vote AGAINST this proposal and non-attendance and broker non-votes would have no effect on the outcome of the vote on this proposal if it is submitted for approval when no quorum is present at the special meeting.

Q: How do I vote?

A: You may vote by proxy or in person at the special meeting.

Voting in Person. If you hold shares as a shareholder of record and plan to attend the special meeting and wish to vote in person, you will be given a ballot at the special meeting. Alternatively, you may provide us with a signed proxy card before voting is closed. If you would like to vote in person, please bring proof of identification with you to the special meeting. Even if you plan to attend the special meeting, we strongly encourage you to submit a proxy for your shares in advance as described below, so your vote will be counted if you are not able to attend. If your shares are held in street name, you must bring to the special meeting a proxy from the record holder of the shares (your broker, bank or nominee) authorizing you to vote at the special meeting. To do this, you should contact your broker, bank or nominee as soon as possible.

Voting By Proxy. If you hold your shares as shareholder of record, you may submit a proxy for your shares by mail, by telephone or on the Internet by following the instructions on the proxy card accompanying this proxy statement. If you submit a proxy, by telephone or on the Internet, you should not return by mail the proxy card accompanying this proxy statement.

Table of Contents

If you hold your shares in street name, then you received this proxy statement from your broker, bank or nominee, along with a voting instruction card from your broker, bank or nominee. You will need to instruct your broker, bank or other nominee on how to vote your shares of common stock using the voting instructions provided. All shares represented by properly executed proxies received in time for the special meeting will be voted in the manner specified by the shareholders giving those proxies.

Q: What happens if I abstain?

A: If you neither attend the special meeting nor deliver a proxy, the resulting non-attendance will have the same effect as a vote AGAINST the approval of the Asset Sale Proposal, but will have no effect on the outcome of the vote for the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting. If you attend the special meeting but abstain from voting, either in person or by proxy, the resulting abstention will have the same effect as a vote AGAINST the approval of the Asset Sale Proposal. Abstentions will not have any effect on the outcome of the vote on the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting if the proposal is submitted for shareholder action when a quorum is present at the special meeting. If the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting is submitted for shareholder action when a quorum is not present at the special meeting, abstentions will have the same effect as a vote AGAINST the proposal.

Q: If I hold my shares in street name through my broker, will my broker vote these shares for me?

A: If you hold your shares in street name, you must provide your broker, bank or other nominee with instructions in order to vote those shares. To do so, you should follow the voting instructions provided to you by your bank, broker or other nominee. If your bank, broker or nominee holds your shares in its name and you do not instruct it how to vote, it will not have discretion to vote on any of the proposals at the special meeting.

Q: What happens if I hold my shares in street name through my broker and I do not instruct my broker how to vote my shares?

A: Brokers, banks or other nominees who hold shares in street name for their customers have the authority to vote on routine proposals when they have not received instructions from the beneficial owners of such shares. However, brokers, banks or other nominees do not have the authority to vote shares they hold for their customers on non-routine proposals when they have not received instructions from the beneficial owners of such shares. The Asset Sale Proposal and the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting are non-routine proposals. As a result, absent instructions from the beneficial owner of such shares, brokers, banks and other nominees will not vote those shares. This is referred to as a broker non-vote. Broker non-votes are counted for purposes of determining whether there is a quorum. Broker non-votes will have the same effect as a vote AGAINST the approval of the Asset Sale Proposal. Broker non-votes will not have any effect on the outcome of the vote on the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting.

Q: Can I change my vote?

A: Yes. If you are a shareholder of record, you may change your vote or revoke your proxy at any time before the vote at the special meeting by:

delivering to Wells Fargo Shareowner Services a written notice, bearing a date later than your proxy, stating that you revoke the proxy;

submitting a later-dated proxy (either by mail, by telephone or on the Internet) relating to the same shares prior to the vote at the special meeting; or

attending the special meeting and voting in person (although attendance at the special meeting will not, by itself, revoke a proxy). If your shares are held in street name, you must contact your broker, bank or nominee to revoke your proxy.

Table of Contents

Q: What if I do not specify a voting choice for a proposal when returning a proxy?

A: If you hold your shares of record, proxies that are signed and returned without voting instructions will be voted in accordance with the recommendations of our board of directors. Our board of directors unanimously recommends that shareholders vote FOR the Asset Sale Proposal and FOR the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special meeting. If your shares are held in street name, failure to give voting instructions to your broker, bank or other nominee will result in a broker non-vote.

Q: What is the difference between a shareholder of record and a shareholder who holds stock in street name?

A: If your shares are registered in your name, you are a shareholder of record. If your shares are held in an account with a broker, bank or another holder of record, these shares are considered to be held in street name.

Q: What does it mean if I get more than one proxy card?

A: If your shares are registered differently and are in more than one account, you may receive more than one proxy card. Please complete, sign, date, and return all of the proxy cards you receive regarding the special meeting to ensure that all of your shares are voted.

O: How are proxies solicited and what is the cost?

A: We will bear all expenses incurred in connection with the solicitation of proxies and printing, filing and mailing this proxy statement. We have engaged Proxy Advisory Group to solicit proxies in connection with the matters to be voted on at the special meeting. The terms of the engagement authorize Proxy Advisory Group to contact our largest institutional shareholders and our other 100 largest non-objecting beneficial owner and to request their vote in favor of the proposals. Qumu will be solely responsible for the costs of the solicitation, which is anticipated to be less than \$15,000.

Certain of Qumu s directors, officers and regular employees may also, without additional compensation, solicit proxies personally or by telephone or email. In addition to solicitation by mail, our directors, officers and employees may solicit proxies from shareholders by telephone, letter, facsimile or in person. These directors, officers and employees will not be paid additional remuneration for their efforts but may be reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection therewith. Following the original mailing, we will request brokers, custodians, nominees and other record holders to forward their own notice and, upon request, to forward copies of the proxy statement and related soliciting materials to persons for whom they hold shares of our common stock and to request authority for the exercise of proxies. In such cases, upon the request of the record holders, we will reimburse such holders for their reasonable out-of-pocket expenses.

Q: What should I do if I have questions regarding the special meeting?

A: If you have any questions about how to cast your vote for the special meeting or would like copies of any of the documents referred to or incorporated by reference in this proxy statement, you should call our Secretary at (952) 683-7900.

Table of Contents

CAUTION CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This proxy statement contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements are based on management s current expectations and assumptions about future events, which are inherently subject to uncertainties, risks and changes in circumstances that are difficult to predict. The use of words such as anticipates, estimates, expects, projects, intends, plans and believes, among others, generally identifies forward-looking statements.

Actual results could differ materially from those contained in the forward-looking statements. Factors currently known to management that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in forward-looking statements include those set forth under RISK FACTORS beginning on page 61, as well as the risk factors about our company included as part of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013. See WHERE YOU CAN FIND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION on page 65.

Other unknown or unpredictable factors that could also adversely affect the Asset Sale Transaction and our business, financial condition and results of operations may arise from time to time. In light of these risks and uncertainties, the forward-looking statements discussed in this proxy statement may not prove to be accurate. Accordingly, you should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which only reflect the views of Qumu management as of the date of this proxy statement. Except as required by applicable law, we undertake no obligation to update or revise forward-looking statements to reflect changed assumptions, the occurrence of unanticipated events or changes to future operating results or expectations.

12

Table of Contents

OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth, as of May 9, 2014, certain information with respect to the beneficial ownership of Qumu s common stock by (i) each shareholder known by Qumu to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of Qumu s common stock, (ii) each director of Qumu, (iii) each of the named executive officers of Qumu (which are our executive officers identified as named executive officers in our proxy statement for our 2014 Annual Meeting of Shareholders), and (iv) all directors and executive officers of Qumu as a group.

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner	Number of Shares Beneficially Owned (1)	Percent of Outstanding
Invicta Capital Management, LLC (2) 60 East 42nd Street New York, NY 10165	820,938	9.5%
Ariel Investments, LLC (3) 200 E. Randolph Dr., Suite 2900 Chicago, IL 60601	793,814	9.1%
Dolphin Limited Partnership III, L.P. (4) c/o 96 Cummings Point Road Stamford, CT 06902	560,500	6.5%
Renaissance Technologies LLC (5) 800 Third Avenue New York, NY 10022	500,959	5.8%
Thomson Horstmann & Bryant, Inc. (6) 501 Merritt 7 Norwalk, CT 06851	471,116	5.4%
Sherman L. Black (7)(8)(9)	378,075	4.2%
James L. Reissner (7)	117,229	1.3%
Lawrence M. Benveniste (7)	80,306	*
Daniel R. Fishback (7)	7,500	*
Thomas F. Madison (7)	78,500	*
Kimberly K. Nelson (7)	13,500	*
Robert F. Olson (7)	13,500	*
Justin A. Orlando (7)	5,000	*
Steven M. Quist (7)(10)	72,587	*
James R. Stewart (8)	84,306	*
All current executive officers and directors as a group (11 persons)	910,503	9.8%

Less than one percent

⁽¹⁾ Includes the following number of shares that could be acquired within 60 days of May 9, 2014 upon the exercise of stock options: Mr. Black, 278,875 shares; Mr. Reissner, 57,000 shares; Mr. Benveniste, 49,500 shares; Mr. Fishback, no shares; Mr. Madison, 49,500 shares; Mr. Nelson, no shares; Mr. Olson, no shares; Mr. Orlando, no shares; Mr. Quist, 49,500 shares; Mr. Stewart, 59,250 shares; and

all current directors and executive officers as a group, 581,125 shares. Also includes the following number of shares that could be acquired within 60 days of May 9, 2014 upon settlement of restricted stock units previously granted to non-employee directors: Mr. Reissner, 5,000 shares; Mr. Benveniste, 5,000 shares; Mr. Fishback, no shares; Mr.

Table of Contents

- Madison, 5,000 shares; Mr. Quist, no shares; Mr. Olson, no shares; Mr. Orlando, 5,000 shares; Ms. Nelson, 5,000 shares; and all non-employee directors as a group, 25,000 shares.
- (2) Based on an Amendment No. 1 to Schedule 13G filed on February 14, 2014 in which Invicta Capital Management, LLC and Gregory A. Weaver, the controlling member of Invicta Capital Management, LLC, report shared voting and dispositive power over 820,938 shares as of December 31, 2013.
- (3) Based on a Schedule 13G filed on February 14, 2014 in which the reporting person reports sole voting power over 498,939 shares and sole dispositive power over 793,814 shares as of December 31, 2013.
- Based on an Amendment No. 1 to Schedule 13D filed on October 28, 2013 by Dolphin Limited Partnership III, L.P. (Dolphin III), Dolphin Associates III, LLC, Dolphin Holdings Corp. III (Dolphin Holdings III), Donald T. Netter, Justin A. Orlando, and Daniel J. Englander in which the reporting persons report that Dolphin III holds the shares indicated above. Dolphin III is controlled by Dolphin Associates III, LLC, which is in turn controlled by Dolphin Holdings III. Mr. Netter serves as Senior Managing Director of Dolphin Holdings III. In the Schedule 13D, each reporting person specifically disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares reported therein that he or it does not directly own, except to the extent of his or its pecuniary interest therein. Qumu Corporation is a party to an agreement dated March 18, 2013, as amended on October 23, 2013, with Dolphin III, Dolphin Associates III, LLC and Dolphin Holdings III are entitled to vote in their discretion at the special meeting on the Asset Sale Proposal and the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting.
- (5) Based on a Schedule 13G filed on February 13, 2014 in which Renaissance Technologies LLC reports sole voting power over 484,800 shares, sole dispositive power over 500,800 shares and shared dispositive power over 159 shares as of February 28, 2013. Renaissance Technologies Holdings Corporation is the majority owner of Renaissance Technologies LLC.
- (6) Based on a Schedule 13G filed on February 6, 2014 in which the reporting person reports shared voting power over 221,734 shares and sole voting power over 471,116 shares.
- (7) Currently serves as our director.
- (8) Named executive officer.
- (9) Includes 74,100 shares held by the Cara L. Black Revocable Trust, of which Mr. Black s spouse is the beneficiary and Mr. Black and his spouse are trustees.
- (10) Includes 9,087 shares held by the Steven M. Quist and Nancy L. Quist Revocable Living Trust, of which Mr. Quist and his spouse are trustees.

14

Table of Contents

PROPOSAL #1 ASSET SALE PROPOSAL

Parties to the Asset Purchase Agreement

Qumu Corporation

Qumu Corporation helps businesses deliver digital content directly and securely to their customers, employees and partners. Our software business provides enterprise content distribution software to the rapidly growing enterprise video communications market and is an innovator in the secure mobile delivery of rich content. Our disc publishing business supplies customers in North America, Europe and Asia with industry-leading solutions that label, archive, distribute and protect content on CDs, DVDs and Blu-ray Discs.

We have focused on digital content distribution since our inception. Since 1995, Qumu focused its business on development and sale of its CD recordable (CD-R) publishing systems, and since 2000, its DVD recordable (DVD-R) publishing systems. Blu-ray capabilities were integrated into key products in late 2006 to address the needs of customers desiring the substantial increase in storage capacity provided by this technology. The disc publishing business is mature and has been declining in revenue since 2007 due to technology substitutions. Changes in the information technology landscape have resulted in an evolution of customer needs from physical distribution of content on CDs, DVDs and Blu-ray Discs to online distribution. In addition, enterprises are increasingly having to address the challenge of video and rich content distribution overwhelming their data networks. In response to these changes, in October 2011, we acquired Qumu, Inc., a leader in the fast-growing enterprise video communications market. With the acquisition of Qumu, Inc., we became engaged in the business of providing enterprise content distribution software for the video communications market and the delivery of secure digital content to computer, tablets and mobile devices, which we refer to as our software business. On September 16, 2013, we changed our corporate name from Rimage Corporation to Qumu Corporation to reflect our commitment to the rapidly growing enterprise video communications market.

Qumu s headquarters and mailing address is 7725 Washington Ave. S., Minneapolis, MN 55439, and the telephone number at that location is (952) 683-7900. Our principal website is www.qumu.com.

Equus Holdings, Inc. and Redwood Acquisition, Inc.

Equus Holdings, Inc., a Minnesota corporation, is a Minneapolis, Minnesota based privately-held company that has evolved from a custom computer manufacturer to a portfolio of technology companies primarily in the business server and client computing markets. Equus is comprised of several business channels and services, including Equus Computing Solutions, which sells computing solutions through a channel of resellers; Intequus, which provides customized hardware/storage solutions for original equipment manufacturers; Servers Direct, which offers an e-commerce store for build-to-order servers and support; Equus Corporate Services, which provides shared services (finance, marketing, human resources, information, technology, legal) for all Equus businesses as well as other privately owned companies; and RazorSync, which offers mobile workforce management software.

Redwood Acquisition, Inc., is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Equus Holdings. Redwood Acquisition, a Minnesota corporation, was formed on April 18, 2014 solely for the purposes of the Asset Sale Transaction and is engaged in no other business.

The mailing address for Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition is 5801 Clearwater Drive, Minnetonka, MN 55343 and the telephone number at that location is 1-800-641-1475. The principal website for Equus Holdings is www.equus-holdings.com.

Table of Contents

Background of the Asset Sale Transaction

The disc publishing business is mature and has been declining in revenue since 2007 due to technology substitution resulting from the adoption of online file sharing and mobile solutions. Revenue from the disc publishing business was \$108.9 million in 2007 and has declined to \$64.7 million in 2013. In 2010, we began a multi-year process aimed at transforming our company into a higher-performing business. As part of that strategic process, we considered various alternatives designed to allow us to generate new revenue streams and diversify our business. In 2010 and 2011, we developed a secure online content delivery solution, which was launched in the second quarter of 2012 as our Signal product. In October 2011, we acquired Qumu, Inc., a leader in the fast-growing enterprise video communications market. In contrast to the declines in the disc publishing business, our software business has grown since our acquisition. Software revenues for 2013 grew to \$17.7 million, an increase of 80% as compared to 2012. Disc publishing revenues for 2013 were \$64.7 million, a decline of 7% as compared to 2012 disc publishing revenues, which declined 15% from 2011 disc publishing revenues.

Our management and our board of directors have regularly considered various strategic alternatives relating to our entire company, including the disc publishing business, including as part of our regular annual budgeting and planning process and the board s review of our annual operating plan. At the December 18, 2012 board meeting, our management presented to our board of directors the annual operating plan for 2013 and discussed with the board possible business strategies relating to both the disc publishing business and software business. Following this meeting and in preparation for the February 21, 2013 board meeting, our Chief Executive Officer, Sherman L. Black, and our Chief Financial Officer, James R. Stewart, solicited input on strategic alternatives from the financial advisor we used in connection with the acquisition of Qumu, Inc. and with whom our management had been having ongoing discussions. At our management s request, the financial advisor prepared discussion material to be shared at the February 21, 2013 board meeting. The financial advisor did not offer any conclusions or recommendations on these strategic alternatives, which included the divestiture of the disc publishing business.

On February 21, 2013, at the meeting of the board of directors, attended by Mr. Stewart and a representative of Lindquist & Vennum LLP, legal counsel to the company (Lindquist), Messrs. Black and Stewart presented the financial advisor's discussion material to the board along with its analysis of the strategic alternatives. The board discussed the information presented, including management is projections for financial performance of the disc publishing and software businesses, the likely continuing decline in disc publishing financial performance, the challenges in accurately forecasting the rate of decline and the possibility of various competitive factors accelerating that decline, the likelihood that divestiture of the disc publishing business sooner would allow us to capture the highest value from a declining business, the wind down or exit costs we would be forced to bear if we ceased operating the disc publishing business as to certain geographies or certain industries, and our ability to use the proceeds from the divestiture of the disc publishing business to fund the growth of our software business. The board also discussed the risks of a potential sale of the disc publishing business, including the diversion of management time and attention, the professional costs involved, the cash needs of our software business that were currently funded by the disc publishing business cash flow, the challenges in separating the two businesses, and the public company related expenses that would be borne exclusively by the smaller software business following a sale of the disc publishing business. After further discussion, the board determined that a sale of the disc publishing appeared likely to offer the best alternative to maximize the value of the disc publishing business for our company and our shareholders. The board requested that management begin considering financial advisors to represent us in a competitive sale process and that management provide additional analyses relating to the sale of the disc publish

The disc publishing business financial performance during the quarter ended March 31, 2013 reflected greater declines in revenue than we had previously anticipated. Disc publishing revenues in the first quarter were down 16% from the first quarter of 2012, primarily due to the impact of technology substitution and a shift to alternative technologies across industry segments. In response to the first quarter 2013 revenue performance of the disc publishing business and our expectation that the market for disc publishing products would continue to be negatively impacted by technology substitution, we took actions to reduce the cost structure of the disc publishing business to anticipated revenue levels, including reducing headcount.

On April 23, 2013, the board of directors held a meeting, attended by Messrs. Black and Stewart, Mr. Englander, the Dolphin board observer (the board observer) and a representative of Lindquist. As part of the meeting, Mr. Black discussed a rebranding initiative around the Qumu name. Messrs. Black and Stewart also reviewed their discussions

Table of Contents

with various financial advisors, including Mooreland Partners LLC (Mooreland Partners). Mr. Black noted that the financial advisor used in connection with the acquisition of Qumu, Inc. had declined to submit a proposal for the engagement. The board discussed management s recommendation that Mooreland Partners be engaged as a financial advisor to assist us in exploring the sale of the disc publishing business, as well as the input received from the other financial advisors. Management s recommendation was based upon an assessment of the abilities and experience of Mooreland Partners, as well as references from previous clients of the firm. The board then invited three representatives of Mooreland Partners to join the meeting. The representatives of Mooreland Partners presented information regarding the firm s credentials and experience to allow the board of directors to evaluate Mooreland Partners. The directors asked questions of Mooreland Partners on matters bearing upon its abilities and experience. The representatives of Mooreland Partners next presented a preliminary assessment of the disc publishing business, its strengths and weaknesses, and possible approaches to maximize the value of the disc publishing business. The board discussed various alternatives with Mooreland Partners with respect to the disc publishing business, including continuing to operate the disc publishing business as part of Qumu. After representatives of Mooreland Partners left the meeting, the board of directors authorized management to proceed with negotiations to engage Mooreland Partners with respect to the sale of the disc publishing business.

From April 26, 2013 to May 7, 2013, Messrs. Black and Stewart, with assistance from Lindquist, negotiated preliminary terms of a proposed engagement letter with Mooreland Partners.

On May 7, 2013, at a meeting of the board of directors, attended by Mr. Stewart and a representative of Lindquist, the board discussed the formation of a transaction committee to oversee the process for evaluating strategic alternatives related to the disc publishing business, including the engagement of Mooreland Partners to assist us in that process. The board discussed generally the authority and responsibilities of the committee and the possible members of the committee. Following this discussion, the board approved the formation of a transaction committee consisting of Messrs. Madison, Olson, Orlando and Reissner, each of whom is an independent director. The transaction committee was authorized (a) to oversee the process related to the possible divestiture of the disc publishing business; (b) to evaluate and negotiate any indications of interest or offers to acquire the disc publishing business; (c) to engage an investment banker to assist us in identifying and analyzing possible third parties interest in the disc publishing business and related strategic alternatives; (d) to consider and evaluate other strategic alternatives related to the disc publishing business (which included continuing to operate the disc publishing business as part of Qumu) and (e) to recommend for final board of director approval any definitive transaction documents related to a possible disc publishing transaction.

From May 7, 2013 to May 21, 2013, Messrs. Black and Stewart, with assistance from the transaction committee members and Lindquist, negotiated the final terms of a proposed engagement letter with Mooreland Partners.

On May 21, 2013, the transaction committee held a meeting, also attended by another board member, and Messrs. Black and Stewart and a representative of Lindquist. The transaction committee reviewed the proposed engagement letter with Mooreland Partners, with the representative of Lindquist discussing certain terms. The transaction committee recommended that the board of directors review and discuss the value to Qumu of the disc publishing business over the next three to five years, the cash needs of Qumu and the software business, the future cash flows from the disc publishing business, and the potential risks and benefits associated with selling and retaining the disc publishing business. The transaction committee then recommended that the board of directors approve engaging Mooreland Partners if it determined to proceed with the sale of the disc publishing business after considering the matters noted above.

Later in the day on May 21, 2013, the board of directors held a meeting, also attended by Mr. Stewart, the board observer and a representative of Lindquist. At that meeting, management presented a five year plan for the disc publishing business, including its prospects and trends, the allocation of expenses between the disc publishing business and the software business, projections of future cash flows from the disc publishing business and cash needs of Qumu over that period. Management and the board then discussed the various risks related to the continued operation of the disc publishing business, as well as the process with Mooreland Partners and the possible strategic alternatives relating to disc publishing, including the sale of disc publishing. After further discussion, the board unanimously approved the engagement of Mooreland Partners under the terms of the engagement letter reviewed and recommended by the transaction committee.

Table of Contents

On May 22, 2013, we engaged Mooreland Partners to act as our exclusive financial advisor, to assist us in exploring the strategic alternatives relating to the disc publishing business, and to develop a confidential, competitive process to allow us to more fully consider the strategic alternative of the sale of the disc publishing business.

On June 5, 2013, Messrs. Black and Stewart met with representatives of Mooreland Partners to discuss the structure of the competitive sale process. Our management and Mooreland Partners determined to structure the process in two phases. The first phase was to be focused on exploring the interest of potential strategic buyers in purchasing the disc publishing business, referred to as the strategic buyer alternative. The second phase was to be focused on exploring the interest of potential financial buyers in purchasing the disc publishing business, referred to as the financial buyer alternative.

In early to mid June 2013, management and Mooreland Partners, with the advice and counsel of Lindquist, prepared to solicit offers for the purchase of the disc publishing business by developing an executive summary of the disc publishing business and establishing a confidential and password protected data room for due diligence purposes. During this period and as part of its preparation, Mooreland Partners and our management determined the identities of certain potential strategic buyers to be approached based on what they viewed as the likely positive synergies between the disc publishing business and the existing business of the potential strategic buyers. Lindquist also prepared a form of confidentiality agreement to be executed by parties interested in participating in the process that included, among other things, a standstill provision that restricted the parties from taking certain actions outside the process.

On June 10, 2013, the transaction committee held a meeting, also attended by Messrs. Black and Stewart and a representative of Lindquist. At that meeting, Mr. Black reviewed the activities of management, Mooreland Partners and Lindquist in identifying strategic buyers and preparing to solicit offers for the purchase of the disc publishing business.

On June 11, 2013, the board of directors held a meeting, also attended by Mr. Stewart and a representative of Lindquist, at which the transaction committee summarized its meeting of June 10, 2013 and Mr. Black reviewed the list of potential strategic buyers and the messaging to these contacts.

On June 17, 2013, we announced that we intended to change our corporate name to Qumu Corporation as part of a rebranding initiative reflecting our commitment to the enterprise video content management software market.

On June 24, 2013, the transaction committee held a meeting, also attended by Messrs. Black and Stewart and a representative of Lindquist at which Mr. Black provided an update on the potential strategic buyers, noting one additional strategic buyer had been identified, and potential financial buyers, as well as how these potential buyers initially would be contacted in the process.

Between June 20 and August 20, 2013, Mooreland confidentially contacted three potential strategic buyers to qualify their interest in the opportunity and to offer to schedule a meeting with the disc publishing business management team. Of the three parties contacted, two elected to enter into a confidentiality agreement to learn the identity of Qumu as the potential seller. Mr. Black also spoke with one potential strategic buyer in August 2013 to better qualify and understand its strategic priorities. By the end of August 2013, all three potential strategic buyers had indicated they were not interested in the purchase of the disc publishing business, which concluded the strategic buyer alternative portion of the process.

On July 23, 2013, at a regular meeting of our board of directors, also attended by Mr. Stewart, the board observer, a representative of Lindquist, and a representative of Mooreland Partners, the representative of Mooreland Partners provided an update to the board on the pursuit of the strategic buyer alternative and briefed the board on the next steps to pursue the financial buyer alternative. At the meeting, Mooreland Partners presented an illustration to the board of a third possible transaction structure, which was the sale of the disc publishing business to a newly formed company controlled by an employee stock ownership plan (ESOP) to be established for the benefit of disc publishing employees. The board authorized Mooreland Partners to explore this alternative, which was referred to as the ESOP alternative, in parallel with the remaining financial buyer alternative. The illustration presented to the board of the ESOP alternative explained a typical leveraged purchase transaction structure, with the purchase price funded by debt financing obtained from one or more banks secured by the assets to be sold. Some ESOP company purchases are also funded either by a note from the ESOP company to the seller or an earnout or both.

Table of Contents

In August 2013, Mooreland Partners confidentially contacted eighteen parties identified as potential financial buyers. During late August to early September 2013, twelve potential financial buyers executed confidentiality agreements and Messrs. Black and Stewart had conference calls with these potential financial buyers. Following the execution of confidentiality agreements, each of these potential financial buyers, to varying degrees, began to conduct due diligence. On September 13, 2013, the twelve potential financial buyers were provided with a letter describing the bidding process, which invited the submission of non-binding indications of interest by September 18, 2013. Seven of the potential financial buyers submitted non-binding indications of interest by September 18, 2013.

During this same time frame, we and Mooreland Partners were also pursing the ESOP alternative. In August 2013, we entered into confidentiality agreements with a potential ESOP trustee (the ESOP Trustee) and a potential financial advisor to that ESOP trustee (the ESOP Advisor). By late August 2013, Mooreland Partners had confidentially contacted thirteen banks with ESOP lending experience and in September 2013, Messrs. Black and Stewart provided management presentations to seven banks with ESOP lending experience, including Bank A and Bank B.

On September 11, 2013, the board of directors held a special meeting and portions of the meeting were also attended by Mr. Stewart, the board observer, a representative of Lindquist, a representative of Mooreland Partners, a representative of the ESOP Advisor and a representative of the ESOP Trustee. During a portion of the meeting, the representative of Mooreland Partners provided an update on the disc publishing strategic alternatives process. During the meeting, a representative of the ESOP Advisor reviewed a preliminary feasibility analysis prepared by it for an ESOP transaction, including methodologies for determining a range of values for the disc publishing business. The board recommended that management proceed with requesting indications of interest from the potential financial buyers and an analysis with respect to a potential ESOP transaction. On September 13, 2013, Mooreland Partners sent indication of interest process letters to potential financial buyers with the indications of interest due September 18, 2013.

On September 16, 2013, we changed our corporate name to Qumu Corporation and also launched a new corporate website as part of our rebranding initiative and commitment to the rapidly growing enterprise video content management software market.

By September 18, 2013, seven potential financial buyers had submitted indications of interest.

On September 23, 2013, the board of directors and transaction committee held a joint special meeting, also attended by Mr. Stewart, the board observer, a representative of Lindquist and a representative of Mooreland Partners. The representative of Mooreland Partners provided a progress report relating to both the financial buyer alternative and ESOP alternative, noting that the strategic buyer alternative portion of the process had been fully explored. The representative of Mooreland Partners then reviewed in detail the indications of interest submitted by the seven potential financial buyers, including the valuation ranges proposed, the status of due diligence and the proposed structures of the transactions. From this meeting, the representative of Mooreland Partners identified to the board the three most competitive potential financial buyers. The board selected these three potential financial buyers, Party A, Party B and Party C, to proceed to the next phase of the process.

On October 2, 2013, we provided Party A, Party B and Party C with access to the confidential and password protected data room. On October 15, 16, and 17, 2013, Messrs. Black and Stewart and Christopher Heim, the general manager of the disc publishing business, met in Minneapolis with representatives of Party C, Party A, and Party B, respectively, to provide presentations about the disc publishing business and make themselves available for questions.

On October 22, 2013, the board of directors held a regular meeting, also attended by Mr. Stewart, the board observer and a representative of Lindquist. During the meeting, a representative of Mooreland Partners joined the meeting to provide an update, including recent management meetings and the continued work regarding the ESOP alternative. After discussion with the representative of Mooreland Partners regarding the progress of the financial buyer alternative and the ESOP alternative, the board authorized management to proceed to explore a mortgage on the real estate to support the ESOP alternative and gauge the market value of the real property, and to engage the ESOP Advisor to perform its preliminary work as the financial advisor to the ESOP Trustee.

Table of Contents

Over the next several days, Mooreland Partners contacted certain banks, including Bank A and Bank B, to request term sheets for financing of the ESOP transaction.

On October 23, 2013, Mooreland Partners sent a formal bid process letter to Party A, Party B and Party C requesting that these parties submit letters of intent on or before October 31, 2013, along with the party s proposed revisions to a form of asset purchase agreement provided to them with the bid process letter.

On October 24, 2013, Party C informed Mooreland Partners that it would not be submitting a letter of intent or participating further in the process.

On October 31, 2013, Mooreland Partners had separate conversations with each of Party A and Party B in which Party A and Party B requested additional time to submit letters of intent along with their proposed revisions to the form of asset purchase agreement. After conferring with our management, Mooreland Partners informed each of Party A and Party B that the deadline would be extended to November 5, 2013.

On October 31, 2013, Messrs. Black, Stewart and Heim gave an in-depth presentation on the disc publishing business and conducted a Q&A session for representatives of the ESOP Trustee, the ESOP Advisor and Bank A.

On November 4 and 5, 2013, respectively, Party A and Party B submitted letters of intent and revisions to the form of asset purchase agreement. Also on November 4, 2013, Bank A and Bank B submitted term sheets, each for a portion of the debt financing of the ESOP alternative.

On the morning of November 7, 2013, the board of directors and transaction committee received information prepared by Mooreland Partners in preparation for a joint board and transaction committee meeting later that afternoon to analyze the letters of intent received from Party A (as revised on November 6 for the addition of an earnout) and Party B, and the term sheets received from Bank A and Bank B for the debt financing for the ESOP transaction. As part of this information, Mooreland Partners provided a comparison of the two letters of intent and the two term sheets from a financial point of view, as well as marked copies of the proposed draft asset purchase agreement with comments and requested changes from each of Party A and Party B.

In the afternoon of November 7, 2013, the board of directors and transaction committee held a joint special meeting, also attended by Mr. Stewart, the board observer, a representative of Lindquist and a representative of Mooreland Partners. During the meeting, the representative of Mooreland Partners provided an overview of the three alternatives (the strategic buyer alternative, the financial buyer alternative and the ESOP alternative) and the current status of each alternative. The representative of Mooreland Partners then reviewed in detail the letters of intent received from Party A and Party B, as well as compared the respective letters of intent to the indications of interest received earlier. The letter of intent from Party A (as revised on November 6) stated a total purchase price of up to \$22.5 million, including \$16 million to be delivered at closing, \$2 million to be delivered following release from an 18 month escrow that would be used to satisfy certain breaches of representations and warranties, and \$4.5 million to be delivered upon achievement of an earnout. The letter of intent from Party B stated a total purchase price of up to \$24 million, including \$13.5 million to be delivered at closing, \$1.5 million to be delivered following release from escrow and \$9 million to be delivered upon achievement of an earnout. The representative of Mooreland and management discussed with the board and transaction committee the terms of the earnouts and the likelihood of achievement of the earnouts. The representative of Mooreland also reviewed the other aspects of the letters of intent including purchase price adjustments, funding of the transaction by the potential financial buyer, exclusivity, termination fees, and closing timeline and considerations. The representative of Mooreland Partners and the representative of Lindquist reviewed the changes and comments reflected in the marked copies of the proposed draft asset purchase agreement. The representative of Mooreland Partners next reviewed the total purchase price proposed in the ESOP transaction, which was \$22 million consisting of \$17 million to be delivered in cash at closing and \$5 million to be delivered through a seller note. The representative of Mooreland Partners then reviewed term sheets received from Bank A and Bank B for the debt financing for the ESOP alternative. In its term sheet, Bank A s proposed financing consisted of a \$10 million term loan plus a \$7 million revolving loan of which \$5 million would be funded at closing. The proposed collateral for Bank A s loan to the ESOP company was all assets of the ESOP company except the building and real estate. In its term sheet, Bank B s proposed financing consisted of an approximately \$12 million term loan plus a \$1 million revolving loan. The proposed collateral for Bank B s loan to the ESOP company was all assets of the ESOP company, including the building and real estate. The representative of Mooreland Partners also reviewed the other proposed loan terms reflected in the term sheets, including interest

Table of Contents

rate, repayment terms and covenants. The representative of Lindquist discussed the approval process and the board s fiduciary duties. At this time, the representative of Mooreland retired from the meeting. The board discussed the risks of a transaction under the financial buyer alternative, as well as those under the ESOP alternative. The board discussed at length the terms being offered by Party A and Party B and the price that could be obtained through the ESOP alternative. The board also discussed the alternative of continuing to operate the disc publishing business and the risks associated with that alternative. In connection with this discussion, the board reviewed and discussed information provided by management relating to the projected future financial performance of the disc publishing business. After further discussion, the board directed management and Mooreland Partners to proceed with further discussions with Party A and Party B in the financial buyer alterative with the goal of increasing their respective offers, to proceed with both Bank A and Bank B in the ESOP alternative in order to increase the financing proposals reflected in the term sheets, and to develop additional details around the terms of the proposed ESOP financing and the transaction structure.

On November 8, 2013, Messrs. Black, Stewart and Heim, as well as representatives of Mooreland Partners, participated in a conference call with additional members of the credit committee of Bank A.

On November 8, 2013, representatives of Mooreland Partners contacted Bank B regarding a revised proposal for a mortgage loan to supplement Bank A s proposed term loan and revolver.

On November 18, 2013, the board of directors and transaction committee held a joint special meeting, also attended by Mr. Stewart, the board observer, a representative of Lindquist and a representative of Mooreland Partners. After providing a summary of recent activities, the representative of Mooreland Partners described the additional revisions to the financing term sheet from Bank A and Bank B and an increase in the proposed purchase price for the disc publishing assets. The representative of Mooreland Partners also described an improvement in timing of payment of the earnout proposed by Party A, which represented its best and final offer. The representative of Mooreland Partners reported that Party B did not change any of the terms of its offer from the letter of intent, so it could also be considered Party B s best and final offer.

The directors and transaction committee discussed at length the proposed offers from Party A and Party B, both the financial and non-financial terms. The representative of Mooreland Partners and the representative of Lindquist each provided some observations on the strategic process under the financial buyer alternative and the ESOP alternative. After discussing at length the two alternatives, the board and transaction committee directed management and Mooreland Partners to proceed with the ESOP alternative, which the board believed presented at the time a higher likelihood of closing and receiving the full amount of the purchase price than the financial buyer alternative, without any obligation of exclusivity. The board also approved the retention of the ESOP Trustee and the payment of fees for the ESOP Trustee s engagement and for the engagement of the ESOP Advisor by the ESOP Trustee.

On November 22, 2013, we engaged the ESOP Trustee. On that date, Messrs. Black, Stewart and Heim, and representatives of Lindquist met with representatives of the ESOP Trustee and the ESOP Advisor.

On November 27, 2013, Bank A engaged an audit, tax and advisory firm for the purposes of providing a quality of earnings report to Bank A as part of its consideration of a commitment letter for the debt financing. The primary objective of a quality of earnings report was to assess the sustainability and accuracy of historical earnings of the disc publishing business as well as the achievability of future projections, particularly future earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, or EBITDA. We reimbursed Bank A for the expense of the quality of earnings report.

On December 4, 2013, Lindquist presented to the ESOP Trustee, the ESOP Advisor and the ESOP trustee s legal counsel (the ESOP Counsel) drafts of certain transaction documents, including the asset purchase agreement.

On December 6, 2013, the ESOP Advisor was engaged as the financial advisor to render an opinion to the ESOP Trustee as trustee on the fairness of the proposed transaction to the ESOP. Also on December 6, 2013, we selected Bank B as the bank to provide a mortgage loan to supplement the debt financing from Bank A for the transaction.

During December 2013, we provided Bank A and Bank B with financial and non-financial information relating to the disc publishing business to enable each to consider our request for a commitment letter to provide financing for the ESOP alternative.

Table of Contents

During December and through January 14, 2014, we, assisted by Mooreland Partners and Lindquist, negotiated with the ESOP Advisor and the ESOP Counsel relating to the terms of the asset purchase agreement and other transaction documents.

On December 10, 2013, the board of directors and transaction committee held a joint meeting, also attended by Mr. Stewart, the board observer, a representative of Lindquist and a representative of Mooreland Partners, at which Mr. Black and the representative of Mooreland Partners reviewed the progress made on the ESOP alternative since the last update. The representative of Mooreland Partners also provided an updated on the status of the financing from Bank A and Bank B. A representative of Lindquist presented to the board a detailed transaction summary. Management, the board of directors and transaction committee discussed the various factors supporting a potential sale of the disc publishing business as well as the benefits of this particular transaction when compared to other alternative sale transactions and as compared to continuing to operate the disc publishing business as part of Qumu.

In late December 2013, our management and Mooreland Partners reviewed a preliminary analysis of the future EBITDA of the disc publishing business that was being developed for the quality of earnings report. This preliminary analysis suggested that the future EBITDA of the disc publishing business may be higher than we previously expected. Based upon this information, our management and Mooreland Partners determined that they would reopen negotiations with the ESOP Advisor on the purchase price of the disc publishing business.

On January 3, 2014, the board of directors and transaction committee held a joint special meeting, also attended by Mr. Stewart, a representative of Lindquist and a representative of Mooreland Partners. During the meeting, Mr. Stewart reviewed the preliminary analyses of the quality of earnings report, which was showing potentially higher future EBITDA for the disc publishing business. Mr. Stewart also reviewed the updated financial projections for the disc publishing business if it remained part of Qumu and assumptions relating to the financial projections relating to, among other matters, expenses associated with the future restructuring of operations and additional expense associated with employee retention and incentives. The representative of Mooreland Partners also noted that the real estate appraisal was indicating a higher value than previously estimated. After further discussion, the board of directors directed Mooreland Partners to pursue a possible purchase price increase through negotiations with the ESOP Advisor.

From January 3, 2014 to January 13, 2014, representatives of Mooreland Partners and representatives of the ESOP Advisor had numerous discussions on the valuation of the disc publishing business, the valuation of the real estate, the preliminary analysis of the quality of earnings report, and other financial matters.

On January 9, 2014, Bank B delivered to our management a term sheet relating to the mortgage note that was subject to the results of an appraisal of the property.

On January 10, 2014, the board of directors, transaction committee and compensation committee held a joint meeting, also attended by Mr. Stewart, a representative of Lindquist and a representative of Mooreland Partners. The representative of Mooreland Partners reported to the board of directors and transaction committee on the status of negotiations with the ESOP Advisor, its then current position on various transaction terms, and the information that argued for an increase in the purchase price. The representative of Mooreland Partners reviewed the financial projections of the disc publishing business. The representative of Mooreland Partners and management compared the then current terms of the ESOP transaction to the terms proposed by Party A and Party B as part of the financial buyer alternative. The representative of Lindquist reviewed the board s fiduciary duties and noted that the draft asset purchase agreement would not prohibit Qumu from pursuing superior proposals. The representative of Lindquist also reviewed the required transaction documents, the status of negotiations and the open business items to complete the documents for review by the transaction committee and consideration by the board. During this meeting, management reviewed aspects of the projected future financial performance and operations of the disc publishing business. The board discussed the strategic alternative of continuing to operate the disc publishing business as part of Qumu.

In the compensation committee portion of the meeting on January 10, 2014, Mr. Stewart reviewed the impact of the potential sale of the disc publishing business on the stock options and restricted stock held by disc publishing employees, noting that the employment of these optionees with Qumu would be terminated in connection with the closing and that these optionees would then have 90 days following termination to exercise any vested options. Mr. Stewart reviewed in particular the stock options that were granted to disc publishing employees on September 19.

Table of Contents

2013 as part of a stock option exchange program, which options would first vest on September 19, 2014, a date expected to be after the closing of the transaction. Mr. Stewart reviewed a proposal to accelerate vesting of a portion of the stock options received in the stock option exchange program that would first vest on September 19, 2014 held by disc publishing employees, noting that these stock options would otherwise terminate without being vested or exercisable given the expected closing date of the transaction and noting the additional expense to Qumu as a result of such acceleration. Mr. Stewart stated that approximately 22,350 option shares would first vest on September 19, 2014. After discussion, the compensation committee recommended approval of the acceleration of vesting at the closing of the transaction of the portion of the options received in the stock option exchange program that would first vest on September 19, 2014 held by disc publishing employees on such closing date. The board of directors reconvened its meeting and after further discussion, approved the acceleration of vesting as recommended by the compensation committee.

From January 8, 2014 to January 14, 2014, our management, Mooreland Partners and Lindquist, on the one hand, and the ESOP Trustee, the ESOP Counsel and the ESOP Advisor, on the other hand, negotiated substantially all of the remaining terms of the asset purchase agreement, form of note and note agreement, and other transaction documents, including to reflect the terms agreed to in principle on January 13, 2014.

On January 13, 2014, representatives of Mooreland Partners and representatives of the ESOP Advisor reached an agreement in principle on the final financial terms of the sale of the disc publishing business to the ESOP company, which were as follows: a purchase price of up to \$27.6 million consisting of approximately \$17.6 million to be delivered in cash at closing, \$7.0 million to be delivered through a seller note with a maturity date 12 years from closing, and \$3.0 million to be delivered upon achievement of an EBITDA earnout over 5.5 years.

On January 13, 2014, Bank A indicated to Mooreland Partners that it had completed the necessary steps to present the debt financing to its credit committee and that it expected the credit committee to meet on January 16, 2014 to consider the debt financing commitment letter.

On January 16, 2014, Bank A informed Mr. Black that its credit committee did not approve a commitment letter for the ESOP transaction financing and that it would not be able to offer financing for the proposed ESOP transaction. The stated reasons provided by Bank A were the declines in revenue of the disc publishing business, primarily due to technology substitution, the uncertainty regarding the rate of decline and the possibility of various factors unexpectedly accelerating the decline.

On January 17, 2014, the board of directors and transaction committee held a joint special meeting, also attended by Mr. Stewart, a representative of Lindquist and a representative of Mooreland Partners. During this meeting, Mr. Black reviewed Bank A s decision with the board of directors. The board of directors and transaction committee expressed support for continuing to explore alternatives for the sale of the disc publishing business, including additional negotiations with Bank A to obtain a commitment for financing, pursing alternative ESOP financing options, and re-engaging with financial buyers, Party A and Party B, to determine if either were still interested.

On January 23, 2014, the board of directors and transaction committee held a joint meeting, also attended by Mr. Stewart, a representative of Lindquist and a representative of Mooreland Partners. During the meeting, Mr. Black and the representative of Mooreland Partners reviewed the status of financing options for the ESOP transaction. The board and transaction committee directed management to continue to explore all financing alternatives.

During the remainder of January 2014 and into the first week of February 2014, we pursued ESOP financing options with Bank A and Bank B, as well as alternative ESOP financing options. These efforts did not lead to viable options for funding an ESOP transaction.

During the remainder of January 2014, Mooreland Partners approached Party A and Party B to determine the extent of their respective interest in the disc publishing business and if possible, re-engage these financial buyers in the process and obtain informal offers for the disc publishing business. By February 4, 2014, both Party A and Party B had re-engaged in the process and had provided Mooreland Partners with verbal offers for the disc publishing business. On February 5, 2014, Mr. Black provided to the board a summary of these verbal offers that was prepared by Mooreland Partners.

Table of Contents

During the remainder of January 2014, we also provided updates to the ESOP Trustee and the ESOP Advisor on the status of the proposed ESOP transaction. During these discussions, the ESOP Advisor indicated that an ESOP company for whom it provides financial advisory services, Equus Holdings, Inc. (Equus), may be interested in the disc publishing business.

On February 4, 2014, we entered into a confidentiality agreement with Equus Holdings.

On February 10, 2014, Messrs. Stewart and Heim met with representatives of Equus Holdings to discuss the disc publishing business and Equus Holdings interest in the disc publishing business, we view Equus Holdings as a financial buyer.

On February 14, 2014, the board of directors and transaction committee held a joint special meeting, also attended by Mr. Stewart, a representative of Lindquist and a representative of Mooreland Partners. During this meeting, the representative of Mooreland Partners provided an update on the expressed interest of Equus Holdings. The representative of Mooreland Partners reviewed the summary of the verbal offers from Party A and Party B previously provided to the board. The board also reviewed a comparison of these verbal offers to the best and final offers received from Party A and Party B in November 2013. Neither verbal offer reflected any meaningful improvement in the aggregate from the best and final offers delivered in November 2013. The board and transaction committee then discussed the various alternatives with respect to the disc publishing business strategic process, including the strategic alternative of continuing to operate the disc publishing business within Qumu, and directed management to proceed with discussions with Equus Holdings.

On February 20, 2014, the board of directors held a regular meeting, also attended by Mr. Stewart and a representative of Lindquist. During this meeting, Mr. Black provided an update on discussions since the prior meeting.

On March 2, 2014, the ESOP Advisors delivered to Mooreland Partners a letter of intent from Equus Holdings for the purchase of the disc publishing business for a purchase price of \$22 million, subject to certain adjustments, and an escrow of a portion of the purchase price.

On March 3, 2014, the board of directors and transaction committee held a joint special meeting, also attended by Mr. Stewart, a representative of Lindquist and a representative of Mooreland Partners. At the meeting, the representative of Mooreland Partners reviewed the letter of intent and provided the board with background with respect to Equus Holdings. The board and transaction committee discussed at length a possible transaction with Equus Holdings and authorized management and Mooreland Partners to move forward to continue to negotiate a possible transaction.

Following this meeting, our management, in consultation with Mooreland Partners and Lindquist, determined not to enter into the proposed letter of intent, but instead to continue discussions with Equus Holdings and present Equus Holdings with a form of asset purchase agreement.

On March 6, 2014, Lindquist provided a form of asset purchase agreement for review by Equus Holdings and its legal counsel, Faegre Baker Daniels LLP (FaegreBD).

On March 10, 2014, the board of directors held a meeting, also attended by Mr. Stewart and representatives of Lindquist. During the meeting, Mr. Black provided an update on discussions with Equus Holdings since the prior meeting, the status of due diligence and next steps in the process with Equus.

On March 10, 2014, Messrs. Stewart and Heim had a lengthy meeting with representatives of Equus Holdings relating to the disc publishing business and a potential transaction between the parties. During the meeting, the parties agreed to attempt to negotiate an agreement in principle on the financial terms of the transaction over the next week.

Over the next two weeks, our management and Mooreland Partners engaged in numerous negotiating sessions with Equus Holdings and the ESOP Advisor. Negotiations were focused on the purchase price and certain possible adjustments relating to the purchase price, including possible adjustments relating to anticipated collection of certain customer payments, the net book value which would be delivered to Equus Holdings and the EBITDA generated by

Table of Contents

the disc publishing business between the signing of the asset purchase agreement and the closing of the Asset Sale Transaction.

On March 21, 2014, the board of directors held a meeting, also attended by Mr. Stewart, a representative of Lindquist and a representative of Mooreland Partners. During the meeting, the representative of Mooreland Partners reviewed negotiations between the parties, particularly relating to the purchase price. At that time, the parties tentatively had agreed to a purchase price of \$23 million, subject to certain adjustments, and an escrow of a portion of the purchase price, which Mooreland Partners and our management considered to be Equus Holdings best offer.

On March 25, 2014, FaegreBD returned comments and proposed revisions on the asset purchase agreement to Lindquist. On March 26, 2014, we provided certain FaegreBD attorneys with access to the data room and began responding to additional due diligence requests.

From March 26, 2014 to April 18, 2014, our management, Mooreland Partners and Lindquist, on the one hand, and Equus management, the ESOP Advisor and FaegreBD, on the other hand, negotiated substantially all of the remaining terms of the transaction. During the course of these negotiations, Lindquist and FaegreBD exchanged numerous drafts of the asset purchase agreement and other transaction documents. Members of our management and Mooreland Partners also engaged in numerous discussions with representatives of Equus Holdings and the ESOP Advisor regarding certain of the material terms of Equus Holdings offer, including the adjustments to the purchase price, escrow, the financing of the transaction, the scope of acquired assets and retained liabilities, termination provisions and termination fees, post-closing covenants, mutual transition services, and other material terms of the asset purchase agreement and other transaction documents. During this period, we provided additional information and draft disclosure schedules to the asset purchase agreement in order to facilitate Equus Holdings consideration of revisions to the asset purchase agreement and related transaction documents. Equus Holdings also provided certain information relating to its business and financial condition, including providing on April 14, 2014 a draft of its commitment letter from U.S. Bank.

On April 18, 2014, a representative of Lindquist delivered to each of our directors and transaction committee members a draft asset purchase agreement, a summary of the asset purchase agreement and related transaction documents, and proposed resolutions. From April 18, 2014 to April 23, 2014, Lindquist and FaegreBD finalized the remaining terms of the asset purchase agreement and also finalized the disclosure schedules to the asset purchase agreement. On April 22, 2014, each member of the board and transaction committee also received a draft of Mooreland Partners fairness opinion and a related presentation prepared by Mooreland Partners.

On April 23, 2014, the board of directors and transaction committee held a joint special meeting, also attended by Mr. Stewart, representatives of Lindquist and representatives of Mooreland Partners. A representative of Mooreland Partners provided an overview of the process, including reviewing the strategic buyer alternative, the financial buyer alternative and the ESOP alternative. The representative of Mooreland Partners then reviewed and analyzed for the board of directors, among other matters, the financial aspects of the Asset Sale Transaction. The representative of Mooreland Partners reviewed with the board of directors its financial analysis of the consideration payable in the Asset Sale Transaction and rendered to the board an oral opinion (which opinion was subsequently confirmed by delivery of a written opinion dated April 23, 2014) to the effect that, as of that date and based upon and subject to the assumptions, factors, and limitations set forth in the written opinion and described below, the aggregate consideration to be received by Qumu in the proposed Asset Sale Transaction was fair, from a financial point of view, to Qumu. Management and representatives of Lindquist and Mooreland Partners responded to numerous questions from the board of directors and transaction committee.

After conducting the presentation, the representative of Mooreland Partners left the meeting and our board and transaction committee continued to discuss the proposed Asset Sale Transaction. The board of directors and transaction committee discussed, among other matters, the risks and benefits of selling the disc publishing business and reviewed the proposed Asset Sale Transaction, as to both quantitative and qualitative terms, taking into account the information and analyses provided to the directors. Our board and transaction committee also reviewed alternatives to the proposed Asset Sale Transaction, including continued operation of the disc publishing business, and the possible effects of the proposed Asset Sale Transaction on the disc publishing business and software business. Representatives of Lindquist reviewed for the board of directors and transaction committee their fiduciary and other legal duties and also reviewed with the board of directors and transaction committee in detail the terms of the asset purchase agreement and related transaction agreements. After further deliberation, the transaction

Table of Contents

committee recommended and the board of directors unanimously approved the sale of the disc publishing business to Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition pursuant to the asset purchase agreement. Additionally, the board unanimously recommended that our shareholders approve the Asset Sale Transaction.

The compensation committee and our board of directors reviewed the January 10, 2014 recommendation and approval relating to acceleration to the certain stock options held by disc publishing employees that were received on September 19, 2013 in our stock option exchange program. After review and discussion, the compensation committee then recommended and our board of directors approved the acceleration of vesting of the portion of the options received in the stock option exchange that would first vest on September 19, 2014 that are held by employees of the disc publishing business who are hired by Redwood Acquisition, with the acceleration of vesting contingent upon closing and effective upon the termination of employment with Qumu on the closing date or if termination occurs at the end of any employee transition period, as of the last day of the employee transition period.

Following the board meeting on April 23, 2014, Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition delivered a fully executed copy of the commitment letter issued to Equus Holdings and one of its subsidiaries by U.S. Bank. The parties then confirmed they were prepared to move forward to execution of the asset purchase agreement. On the morning of April 24, 2014, the parties delivered the executed asset purchase agreement.

Past Contacts, Transactions or Negotiations

Other than as described under Background of the Asset Sale Transaction above, we and Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition have not had any negotiations, transactions or material contacts during the past two years, and other than as described therein and in the asset purchase agreement there are no present or proposed material agreements, arrangements, understandings or relationships between our executive officers or directors and either Redwood Acquisition or Equus Holdings, or their respective executive officers or directors.

Reasons for the Asset Sale Transaction and Recommendation of Our Board of Directors

In reaching its decision to approve the Asset Sale Transaction, and to recommend that our shareholders vote to approve the Asset Sale Transaction, our board of directors consulted with management, legal counsel and a financial advisor. Our board considered all of the material factors relating to the Asset Sale Transaction, many of which the Board believed supported its decision, including the following:

the declining demand for disc publishing products, declining revenue for the disc publishing business, and limited growth prospects in the disc publishing business attributable to, among other factors, technology substitution;

the alternatives available if we did not sell the disc publishing business, including independent operation of the declining disc publishing business, all of which alternatives involve meaningful risks, employee retention challenges, financial commitments, and uncertainties, none of which, in the view of the board, were as favorable to us and our shareholders as, nor more favorable to us and our shareholders than, the Asset Sale Transaction:

the amount and form of consideration to be received in the Asset Sale Transaction, the likelihood of completing the Asset Sale Transaction and the likelihood of receiving the full amount of the consideration in the Asset Sale Transaction;

the consideration offered by the Asset Sale Transaction was greater than the value that our board of directors expected to receive from continuing to operate the disc publishing business as part of our current operations with our software business, discounted to present value;

the relative uncertainty of the value that we may receive from the continued operation of the disc publishing business as part of Qumu in light of the meaningful risks involved in that alternative as compared to the certainty of the consideration we would receive in the Asset Sale Transaction;

upon completion of the asset purchase agreement, the ability to focus all of our efforts on the development and operation of our software business;

Table of Contents

the consideration we receive in the Asset Sale Transaction would provide us with substantial cash at closing, which we intend to use to develop and operate the software business;

structuring the transaction as a sale of assets is expected, subject to final analysis, to allow us to use the net operating loss carryforwards for U.S. federal income tax purposes to offset a substantial part of the gain recognized in the transaction;

the process conducted with respect to sale of the disc publishing business involved discussions with numerous parties to determine their potential interest in purchasing the disc publishing assets and this process did not lead to any proposals we believed were more favorable than the Asset Sale Transaction;

our ability to respond to unsolicited acquisition proposals and the ability of our board of directors to approve, endorse and recommended a superior proposal, as defined in the asset purchase agreement;

the fact that Equus Holdings has agreed to pay us the \$300,000 seller termination fee if the asset purchase agreement is terminated by us if Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings are unable to obtain financing on or before all of the other closing conditions have been satisfied or waived;

sufficient operating flexibility for us to conduct the disc publishing business in the ordinary course between signing and closing;

the opinion of Mooreland Partners, that, as of the date of the opinion and based upon and subject to the factors and assumptions set forth in such opinion, the aggregate consideration to be paid to us at the closing of the Asset Sale Transaction, plus the assumption of certain liabilities, was fair to us, from a financial point of view;

the Asset Sale Transaction will be subject to the approval of the holders of a majority of our outstanding shares of common stock;

our shareholders will continue to own stock in Qumu and participate in our potential future earnings and growth generated by the software business; and

the terms and conditions of the asset purchase agreement and related agreements, including the mutual transition services agreement, were believed by the board to be fair to Qumu and its shareholders.

Our board of directors also considered and balanced against the potential benefits of the Asset Sale Transaction a number of potentially adverse factors and risks concerning the Asset Sale Transaction, including the following:

the uncertainties created by various conditions to Redwood Acquisition s obligations to complete the proposed Asset Sale Transaction, including obtaining shareholder approval and Equus Holdings obtaining financing for the Asset Sale Transaction pursuant to a bank commitment letter or alternate financing, which neither we nor Redwood Acquisition or Equus Holdings control, such that while the Asset Sale Transaction is expected to be completed, there can be no assurance that all conditions to the parties obligations to complete the Asset Sale Transaction will be satisfied, and as a result, it is possible that the Asset Sale Transaction may not be completed even if approved by our shareholders;

the resulting effect on our company if the Asset Sale Transaction does not close, including potential negative impact on our sales, operating results and stock price, and our ability to attract and retain key management, sales and marketing and other personnel, both for the disc publishing business and the software business;

the conditions under which termination of the asset purchase agreement would require us to pay the \$500,000 buyer termination fee, which the board of directors believes is reasonable under the circumstances and would not, in and of itself, unduly deter a third party from making, or inhibit our board of directors from evaluating, negotiating and, if appropriate, approving, an acquisition proposal;

Table of Contents

the uncertainty regarding the revenue, profitability and cash flow that will be produced by the software business as compared with the disc publishing business, and the amount of public company expense in relationship to the revenue of our software business, including the ability of the software business to absorb certain expenses currently allocated to the disc publishing business;

our dependence upon Redwood Acquisition for certain transition services following the closing of the Asset Sale Transaction and our obligation to provide Redwood Acquisition with certain transition services, as well as the cost and expense associated with the transition services and the lease we will enter into with Redwood Acquisition at the closing of the Asset Sale Transaction;

the risk of disruption to our software business as a result of the public announcement of the Asset Sale Transaction and the resulting distraction of the attention of management and employees involved in our software business;

the risk of disruption to our software business in connection with the separation of the disc publishing business from our software business following the closing and the challenges in managing that transition;

the five year non-competition and non-solicitation covenants;

the significant costs and expenses involved in the Asset Sale Transaction, including legal, accounting and other costs; and

the other risks set forth under RISK FACTORS below.

After taking into account all of the material factors relating to the asset purchase agreement and the Asset Sale Transaction, including those factors set forth above, our board of directors unanimously concluded that the benefits of the asset purchase agreement and the Asset Sale Transaction outweigh the risks and that the asset purchase agreement and the Asset Sale Transaction are advisable and in the best interests of Qumu and our shareholders. Our board of directors did not assign relative weights to the material factors it considered. In addition, our board of directors did not reach any specific conclusion on each of the material factors considered, but conducted an overall analysis of all of the material factors. Individual members of our board of directors may have given different weights to different factors.

For the reasons set forth above, our board of directors has unanimously determined that the asset purchase agreement and the Asset Sale Transaction are advisable and in the best interests of our company and our shareholders, and unanimously recommends that shareholders vote FOR the Asset Sale Proposal.

Opinion of Our Financial Advisor

We retained Mooreland Partners as our financial advisor in connection with the Asset Sale Transaction. At the meeting of our board of directors on April 23, 2014, Mooreland Partners rendered to our board of directors its oral opinion, subsequently confirmed in writing, that, as of that date and based upon and subject to the assumptions, factors, and limitations set forth in the written opinion and described below, the aggregate consideration to be paid by Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings in the proposed Asset Sale Transaction was fair, from a financial point of view, to Qumu.

The full text of Mooreland Partners opinion dated April 23, 2014, which sets forth, among other things, the assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered, and qualifications and limitations on the scope of the review undertaken by Mooreland Partners in rendering its opinion, is attached to this proxy statement as Appendix B and is incorporated in its entirety herein by reference. The holders of Qumu common stock are urged to read the opinion carefully in its entirety. The Mooreland Partners opinion was prepared for the information of our board of directors in its evaluation of the purchase consideration. The Mooreland Partners opinion was approved by a fairness opinion committee of Mooreland Partners. The Mooreland Partners opinion does not address any other term or aspect of the asset purchase agreement or Asset Sale Transaction, including, but not limited to, the fairness of the Asset Sale Transaction to the holders of Qumu

Table of Contents

common stock, the fairness of the amount or nature of, or any other aspect relating to, any compensation or other benefit to any of Qumu s employees or any class of employees, including without limitation, in relation to the purchase consideration. The Mooreland Partners opinion also does not address the underlying business decision by Qumu to enter into the Asset Sale Transaction, or the relative merits of the Asset Sale Transaction as compared to any strategic alternatives that may be available to Qumu, and it does not constitute a recommendation to Qumu, its board of directors or any committee thereof, its shareholders, or any other person as to any specific action that should be taken in connection with the Asset Sale Transaction. Mooreland Partners was not asked to, and did not, offer any opinion as to the material terms of the asset purchase agreement or the structure of the Asset Sale Transaction. The following is a summary of the Mooreland Partners opinion, including the procedures followed, the assumptions made, the matters considered and the limitations on review undertaken by Mooreland Partners in rendering its opinion, and is qualified by reference to the full text of the opinion attached as Appendix B, which you are encouraged to read in its entirety.

In arriving at its opinion, Mooreland Partners, among other things:

Reviewed certain publicly available financial statements and other business and financial information of Qumu and the disc publishing business;

Reviewed certain internal financial statements and other financial and operating data concerning Qumu and the disc publishing business;

Reviewed certain financial projections for the disc publishing business supplied by our management to Mooreland Partners;

Discussed the past and current operations and financial condition and the prospects of the disc publishing business with our senior executives;

Assessed the value of the disc publishing business to us using a discounted cash flow analysis of projected future cash flows under the assumption that the disc publishing business were to remain part of Oumu;

Visited the headquarters and met with the management of the disc publishing business;

Reviewed the reported prices and trading activity for our common stock;

Compared the financial performance of the disc publishing business with that of certain other publicly-traded companies that Mooreland Partners deemed relevant, including consensus analyst estimates for the other publicly-traded companies;

Reviewed the financial terms, to the extent publicly available, of certain acquisition transactions that Mooreland Partners deemed relevant:

Held discussions with our management regarding indications of interest received by us for the disc publishing business from several third parties;

Participated in discussions and negotiations among our representatives and Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition and their respective financial and legal advisors;

Reviewed the financial terms and conditions of the Asset Sale Transaction as set forth in a draft of the asset purchase agreement dated April 22, 2014; and

Performed such other analyses and considered such other factors as Mooreland Partners have deemed appropriate. In preparing its opinion, Mooreland Partners assumed and relied upon, without independent verification, the accuracy and completeness of the information reviewed by it. Mooreland Partners did not undertake any independent investigation of any legal, accounting or tax matters affecting us or the Asset Sale Transaction, and

Table of Contents

Mooreland Partners has assumed the correctness of all legal, accounting and tax advice given to us and our board of directors. Mooreland Partners did not undertake any formal valuation or appraisal of any of our assets, liabilities or securities or any of our affiliates. Mooreland Partners also has not evaluated our business plan for periods following the closing of the Asset Sale Transaction and has not performed any valuation or analysis with respect to the assets or liabilities that we may retain following the Asset Sale Transaction, or any related tax consequences.

With respect to the financial projections relating to the disc publishing business prepared by our management, Mooreland Partners assumed that they were reasonably prepared on bases reflecting the best currently available estimates and judgments of our management. Mooreland Partners further assumed that the Asset Sale Transaction would be consummated in accordance with the terms set forth in the asset purchase agreement the date last reviewed by it.

The opinion of Mooreland Partners is necessarily based upon financial, economic, market and other conditions as in effect on the date of, and the information made available to Mooreland Partners as of the date of, its opinion. Mooreland Partners has assumed no responsibility to update or revise its opinion based upon events or circumstances occurring or becoming known to it after the date of the opinion.

Valuation Analyses of Mooreland Partners

On April 23, 2014, in connection with preparing its opinion for our board of directors, Mooreland Partners made a presentation of its valuation analyses of the Asset Sale Transaction to our board of directors.

The following is a summary of the material analyses contained in the presentation that was delivered to our board of directors on April 23, 2014. The fact that any specific analysis has been referred to in the summary below and in this proxy statement does not mean that such analysis was given more weight than any other analysis. In arriving at its opinion, Mooreland Partners made qualitative judgments as to the significance and relevance of each analysis and factor that it considered. In reaching its conclusions, Mooreland Partners arrived at its ultimate opinion based on the results of all analyses undertaken by it and assessed as a whole and believes the totality of the factors considered and analyses performed by Mooreland Partners in connection with its opinion operated collectively to support its determination as to the fairness of the aggregate consideration from a financial point of view to us. Mooreland Partners did not draw, in isolation, conclusions from or with regard to any one factor or method of analysis.

In arriving at its opinion, Mooreland Partners made its determination as to the fairness of the purchase consideration from a financial point of view to us as of the date of its opinion on the basis of its financial and comparative analyses. The following summary is not a complete description of all of the analyses performed and factors considered by Mooreland Partners in connection with its opinion, but rather is a summary of the material financial analyses performed and factors considered by Mooreland Partners. The preparation of a fairness opinion is a complex process involving subjective judgments and is not necessarily susceptible to partial analysis. Mooreland Partners believes that its analysis must be considered as a whole and that selecting portions of its analysis, without considering all analyses and factors, could create a misleading or incomplete view of the processes underlying its analysis and opinion. With respect to the analysis of publicly-traded companies and the analyses of transactions summarized below, such analyses reflect selected companies and transactions, and not necessarily all companies or transactions, that may be considered relevant in evaluating the disc publishing business or the Asset Sale Transaction. In addition, no company or transaction used as a comparison is either identical or directly comparable to the disc publishing business or the Asset Sale Transaction. These analyses involve complex considerations and judgments concerning financial and operating characteristics and other factors that could affect the public trading or acquisition values of the companies concerned. Although other valuation techniques may exist, Mooreland Partners believes that the analyses described below, when taken as a whole, provide the most appropriate analyses for Mooreland Partners to arrive at its opinion.

The projections of the future performance of the disc publishing business provided by our management and reviewed by Mooreland Partners are not necessarily indicative of future results or values, which may be significantly more or less favorable than those projections. Accordingly, the projections used in, and the results derived from, Mooreland Partners—analysis are inherently subject to substantial uncertainty. In performing its analyses, Mooreland Partners considered industry performance, general business and economic conditions, and other matters, many of which are beyond our control. Estimates of the financial value of companies do not purport to be appraisals or reflect the prices at which companies may actually be sold.

Table of Contents

Although the purchase consideration was determined through negotiation between Qumu and Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings in which Mooreland Partners participated, the decision to enter into the asset purchase agreement was solely the decision of Qumu and our board of directors. The opinion of Mooreland Partners was only one of many factors considered by our board of directors in its evaluation of the Asset Sale Transaction and should not be viewed as determinative of the views of our board of directors or our management with respect to the Asset Sale Transaction or the purchase consideration. Mooreland Partners did not recommend any specific purchase consideration to our board of directors or state that any specific purchase consideration constituted the only appropriate purchase consideration for the Asset Sale Transaction.

Net Present Value of the Proposed Aggregate Consideration. Based on the purchase price set forth in the asset purchase agreement, Mooreland Partners calculated the net cash flow that we are expected to receive from the aggregate consideration in the Asset Sale Transaction. Mooreland Partners then applied its judgment and discounted the future cash flow expected from the escrow agreement to a present value using a discount rate of 4%. Based on the information provided by our management, Mooreland Partners calculated the estimated net present value of the proposed aggregate consideration to be \$20.6 million.

Discounted Cash Flow Analysis. Using projections provided by our management, Mooreland Partners performed a discounted cash flow analysis for the disc publishing business. Based on the projections provided by our management and the resulting calculation of the financial contribution of the disc publishing to Qumu, as set forth below under Projected Financial Results, Mooreland Partners calculated the unlevered free cash flows that the disc publishing business is expected to generate from the third quarter of 2014 through the end of 2017 as follows (in millions):

	Six Months			
	Ended December	Years ended December 31,		per 31,
	31, 2014	2015	2016	2017
Disc Publishing Business Contribution to Qumu	\$3.8	\$6.6	\$4.4	\$3.5
Plus: (Increase) Decrease in Operating Working Capital	\$(0.0)	\$0.8	\$1.2	\$0.1
Less: (Increase) Decrease in Operating Working Capital	\$(0.3)	\$(0.5)	\$(0.5)	\$(0.5)
Unlevered Free Cash Flow	\$3.5	\$6.9	\$5.1	\$3.1

Mooreland Partners also calculated a range of terminal values for the disc publishing business by applying perpetual unlevered free cash flow growth rates ranging from -8% to -16%. Mooreland Partners then discounted the unlevered free cash flows and the range of terminal values to present values (using a time horizon of three and one-half years) using a range of discount rates from 16% to 22%, which were chosen by Mooreland Partners based upon an analysis of the weighted average cost of capital of the disc publishing business as a part of Qumu which factored in estimates provided by the capital-asset pricing model methodology. Mooreland Partners then added to the range of discounted cash flows the appraised value of the real estate (net of estimated selling expenses) which currently houses the disc publishing business in Minneapolis and is part of the acquired assets to be sold in the Asset Sale Transaction.

Based on the information provided by our management and estimates consistent with market practice, Mooreland Partners calculated a range of aggregate values for the disc publishing business of \$16.6 million to \$19.7 million. Mooreland Partners noted that the estimated net present value of the proposed aggregate consideration was above the range of aggregate values indicated by the discounted cash flow analysis.

The discounted cash flow methodology relies on a number of assumptions, including perpetuity growth rates and discount rates. The valuations derived from the discounted cash flow analyses are not necessarily indicative of the present or future value or results of the disc publishing business.

Comparable Companies Analysis. Using publicly available information and estimates of future financial results published by equity research analysts, Mooreland Partners compared financial and operating information and ratios for the disc publishing business of Qumu with the corresponding financial and operating information and ratios for the publicly-traded companies identified below. The comparable companies used by Mooreland Partners in this

Table of Contents

analysis were selected based on certain business and market criteria that Mooreland Partners determined to be similar to characteristics of Qumu s disc publishing business.

Comparable Companies:

Imation Corp.
RadiSys Corporation

Novatel Wireless, Inc. Planar Systems, Inc.

Di i T

Blonder Tongue Laboratories, Inc.

Evans & Sutherland Computer Corporation

Trans-Lux Corporation

Mooreland Partners calculated implied aggregate value ranges for the disc publishing business using the enterprise value (EV) of each of the comparable companies identified above (the comparable companies) and revenue and EBITDA (defined as earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization) of the comparable companies, which were based on trailing twelve month revenue (LTM Revenue) and trailing twelve month EBITDA (LTM EBITDA) and estimated 2014 revenue (2014E Revenue) (as derived from public filings, press releases and publicly available equity research analyst reports and estimates).

As shown below, the LTM Revenue multiple range was 0.1x to 0.5x for the comparable companies; the 2014E Revenue multiple range was 0.2x to 0.6x for the comparable companies; and the LTM EBITDA multiple range was 2.7x to 4.5x for the comparable companies:

Enterprise Value (EV) to:

	<u>LTM</u>	<u>LTM</u>	<u>2014E</u>
	Revenue	EBITDA	Revenue
Imation Corp.	0.1x	NM	0.2x
RadiSys Corporation	0.5x	NM	0.6x
Novatel Wireless, Inc.	0.2x	NM	0.2x
Planar Systems, Inc.	0.3x	NM	0.3x
Blonder Tongue Laboratories, Inc.	0.4x	NM	NA
Evans & Sutherland Computer Corporation	0.2x	2.7x	NA
Trans-Lux Corporation	0.3x	4.5x	NA

(1) NA indicates value not available. NM indicates value not meaningful due to EBITDA margins less than 4%. Mooreland Partners then applied its judgment and derived from such range of LTM Revenue, 2014E Revenue and LTM EBITDA multiples for the comparable companies a selected range of LTM Revenue, 2014E Revenue and LTM EBITDA multiples that it viewed as most appropriate for purposes of calculating the implied reference aggregate value ranges for the disc publishing business. The ranges selected by Mooreland Partners were as follows:

Comparable Companies:

	<u>10%</u>		<u>10%</u>
	<u>Discount</u>		Premium
Benchmark	to Median	<u>Median</u>	to Median
EV to LTM Revenue	0.2x	0.3x	0.3x
EV to 2014E Revenue	0.2x	0.2x	0.3x
EV to LTM EBITDA	3.2x	3.6x	3.9x

Based on the selected LTM Revenue multiple range for the comparable companies, Mooreland Partners calculated an implied aggregate value range for the disc publishing business of \$15.4 million to \$18.9 million. Based on the

Table of Contents

selected 2014E Revenue multiple range, Mooreland Partners calculated an implied aggregate value range for the disc publishing business of \$12.3 million to \$15.0 million. Based on the selected LTM EBITDA multiple range for the comparable companies, Mooreland Partners calculated an implied aggregate value range for the disc publishing business of \$31.8 million to \$38.9 million. Mooreland Partners noted that the estimated net present value of the proposed aggregate consideration to Qumu in the Asset Sale Transaction was above the ranges indicated by the selected LTM Revenue and 2014E Revenue multiples and below the range indicated by the selected LTM EBITDA multiples for the comparable companies.

Precedent Transactions Analysis. Mooreland Partners compared the Asset Sale Transaction to the acquisitions of private and public companies in the table below (the comparable acquisitions). The comparable acquisitions used by Mooreland Partners in this analysis were selected based on certain transaction characteristics, including business model, that Mooreland Partners determined to be similar to the contemplated sale of the disc publishing business:

Date Announced	Acquiror	<u>Target</u>
June 25, 2012	Najafi Companies	Cinram International Income Fund
May 23, 2012	Seagate Technology Public Limited Company	LaCie S.A. (65% equity stake)
June 30, 2009	Adveo Group International SA	Adimpo SA
April 19, 2007	Imation Corp.	TDK Corporation (recording media business)

In connection with this analysis, Mooreland Partners compared the enterprise value (EV) of the target company in the comparable acquisition to the target company strailing twelve month revenue (LTM Revenue) and trailing twelve month EBITDA (LTM EBITDA) to derive ranges of multiples. LTM Revenue and LTM EBITDA for the target companies of the comparable acquisitions were derived from publicly available sources, including public filings, press releases and equity research analysts estimates. The LTM Revenue multiple range was 0.1x to 0.3x for the comparable acquisitions and the LTM EBITDA multiple range was 2.4x to 3.4x for the comparable acquisitions.

Mooreland Partners then applied its judgment and derived from such ranges of LTM Revenue and LTM EBITDA multiples a selected range of LTM Revenue and LTM EBITDA multiples that it viewed as most appropriate for purposes of calculating the implied reference aggregate value ranges for the disc publishing business. The ranges selected by Mooreland Partners were as follows:

Comparable Acquisitions:

	10% Discount		10% Premium
	<u>to</u>		<u>to</u>
Benchmark	<u>Median</u>	<u>Median</u>	<u>Median</u>
EV to LTM Revenue	0.2x	0.2x	0.2x
EV to LTM EBITDA	2.6x	2.9x	3.2x

Based on the selected LTM Revenue multiple range for the comparable acquisitions, Mooreland Partners calculated an implied aggregate value range for the disc publishing business of \$11.7 million to \$14.4 million. Based on the selected LTM EBITDA multiple range for the comparable acquisitions, Mooreland Partners calculated an implied aggregate value range for the disc publishing business of \$26.2 million to \$32.0 million. Mooreland Partners noted that the estimated net present value of the proposed aggregate consideration to Qumu in the Asset Sale Transaction was above the aggregate value range indicated by the selected LTM Revenue multiple range and lower than the aggregate value range indicated by the selected LTM EBITDA multiple range for the comparable acquisitions.

Miscellaneous. Pursuant to an engagement letter between us and Mooreland Partners dated May 22, 2013, Mooreland Partners acted as the exclusive financial advisor to our board of directors in connection with the Asset Sale Transaction. Under the terms of our engagement, we have agreed to pay Mooreland Partners an estimated fee of approximately \$840,000, all of which, except for the fairness opinion fee and retainer fees discussed below, is contingent upon the consummation of the Asset Sale Transaction. Upon delivery of its written fairness opinion, Mooreland Partners became entitled to receive a non-refundable fairness opinion fee of \$250,000 from Qumu. Mooreland Partners fairness opinion fee was not contingent upon the consummation of the Asset Sale Transaction

Table of Contents

or the conclusions reached in Mooreland Partners opinion, and half of the fairness opinion fee will be credited against the approximately \$840,000 fee for financial advisory services described above. Mooreland Partners also has received quarterly retainers of \$25,000 since May 2013, which will also be credited against the approximately \$840,000 fee for financial advisory services described above. We have agreed also to reimburse Mooreland Partners for expenses reasonably incurred in performing its services, and to indemnify Mooreland Partners for certain liabilities related to or arising out of its engagement. With the exception of the engagement described above, no material relationship existed during the past two years or is mutually understood to be contemplated between Mooreland Partners or its affiliates and us or our affiliates.

Mooreland Partners and its affiliates may provide financial advisory and/or financing services to Qumu, Equus Holdings or Redwood Acquisition in the future. Mooreland Partners was selected by our board of directors based on Mooreland Partners — qualifications, expertise and reputation. Mooreland Partners and its affiliates are engaged in investment banking and financial advisory services and other financial and non-financial activities and services for various persons and entities.

Projected Financial Results

Each year our management provides our board of directors certain estimates of projected financial results as part of our budget and planning processes. Our management also provided certain projected financial results to parties that participated in the competitive sale process relating to the disc publishing business, including Equus Holdings and its financial advisor. The projected results set forth below are included in this proxy statement only because this information was presented to and discussed with our board of directors as part of its consideration of the Asset Sale Transaction and also was provided to Mooreland Partners, the board s financial advisor, as part of the information that informed its analyses.

These projections do not purport to present the results of operations in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Our independent auditors have not examined or compiled the projections and accordingly, assume no responsibility for them. Qumu s internal financial projections are, in general, prepared solely for internal use and budgeting and other management decisions and are subjective in many respects and thus susceptible to interpretations and periodic revision based on actual experience and business developments. The projections also reflect numerous assumptions made by our management with respect to the financial performance of the disc publishing business as part of Qumu Corporation, the continuing effects of competition, industry performance, general business, economic, market and financial conditions and other matters, all of which are difficult to predict and many of which are beyond Qumu s control. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the projected financial results will prove accurate or would prove accurate if Qumu retained the disc publishing business.

In addition, except with respect to \$0.3 million in transaction expense for the six months ended June 30, 2014 period shown on the following page, the projections do not consider the effect of any future sale of the disc publishing business to Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition or any other party or the effect of the Asset Sale Transaction, nor do they reflect the projected financial performance of the disc publishing business following the Assets Sale Transaction, which may be materially different than the projected financial performance of the disc publishing business as part of Qumu Corporation as shown below. The projected \$0.3 million in transaction expense for the six months ended June 30, 2014 compares to \$0.2 million in transaction expense actually incurred during the three months ended March 31, 2014.

Set forth below are projected financial results of certain income statement measures for the disc publishing business for the periods noted.

[remainder of page left intentionally blank]

Table of Contents

Summary of Projected Income Statement Results for Disc Publishing Business (in millions)

	(in millions)				
	Six Months Ended		Years ended December		er 31,
	June 30,	December 31,			
	2014	2014	2015	2016	2017
Revenue	\$29.2	\$28.4	\$51.0	\$44.7	\$41.0
Cost of Goods Sold	\$15.4	\$16.4	\$29.3	\$26.3	\$24.4
Gross Profit	\$13.8	\$12.0	\$21.8	\$18.4	\$16.6
Gross Margin (%)	47.2%	42.3%	42.6%	41.1%	40.5%
Operating Expenses:					
Research & Development	\$1.4	\$1.5	\$2.9	\$2.8	\$2.5
Sales & Marketing	\$3.2	\$3.6	\$6.4	\$5.7	\$5.5
General & Administrative	\$4.4	\$4.3	\$8.1	\$7.4	\$7.0
Total Operating Expense	\$9.0	\$9.4	\$17.4	\$15.9	\$15.0
Operating Income	\$4.7	\$2.6	\$4.3	\$2.4	\$1.7
Depreciation & Amortization	\$0.8	\$0.5	\$1.0	\$0.7	\$0.6
EBITDA (Consolidated)(1)	\$5.5	\$3.1	\$5.3	\$3.1	\$2.2
Add: Qumu overhead otherwise absorbed by disc publishing					
business that will remain following divestiture		\$0.7	\$1.3	\$1.3	\$1.3
Disc Publishing Business Contribution to Qumu		\$3.8	\$6.6	\$4.4	\$3.5

⁽¹⁾ EBITDA means earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. Six months ended June 30, 2014 includes \$0.3 million of transaction related expense actually incurred and not contingent on the Asset Sale Transaction.

The projected results described above were not prepared with a view to public disclosure or compliance with published guidelines of the Securities and Exchange Commission or the guidelines established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants regarding forecasts or projections. These projections are forward-looking statements and are based on expectations and assumptions at the time they were prepared by management. The projections above involve risks and uncertainties that could cause actual outcomes and results to differ materially from such expectations, including risks and uncertainties described under CAUTION CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS and RISK FACTORS. There can be no assurance that the assumptions and adjustments made in preparing the projected financials results above will prove accurate, or that the projected financial results will be realized. There will be differences between actual and projected results, and actual results may be materially greater or less than those contained in the projected results above. The inclusion of these projections should not be regarded as an indication that Qumu, Equus Holdings, or Redwood Acquisition or their respective affiliates or representatives, considered or consider the projections to be a reliable prediction of future events, and the projections should not be relied upon assuch. None of Qumu, Equus Holdings or any of their respective affiliates or representatives has made or makes any representations to any person regarding the ultimate performance of Qumu or the disc publishing business compared to the information contained in the projected financial results, and none of them intends to provide any update or revision thereof.

Financing

Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition estimate that approximately \$23.0 million will be required to complete the Asset Sale Transactions. It is anticipated that these amounts will be funded with bank financing in accordance with a commitment letter dated April 23, 2014 that has been issued to Equus Holdings by U.S. Bank National Association and cash on hand of Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition.

Table of Contents

Pursuant to the bank commitment letter, U.S. Bank will provide senior secured credit facilities consisting of a senior secured revolving credit facility, a term loan and letters of credit. The borrower under the credit facilities will be Equus Computer Systems, Inc., a subsidiary of Equus Holdings. Amounts under the credit facilities will be guaranteed by Equus Holdings and its direct and indirect wholly-owned material subsidiaries, including Redwood Acquisition. Amounts under the credit facilities will be secured by collateral consisting of all assets of the borrower and each guarantor, subject to certain limited exclusions. The proceeds from the credit facility will be used to capitalize Redwood Acquisition to pay the purchase price in the Asset Sale Transaction and related transaction fees and expenses and for working capital, capital expenditures and other lawful corporate purposes. The revolving loans will allow for borrowing of up to \$7 million, subject to a borrowing base, and will be due 18 months from closing, but not later than January 31, 2016. The term loan is a facility of up to \$18 million, subject to a defined borrowing base, with a final maturity date of five years from the closing. The borrower also may request letters of credit in total amounts not to exceed \$4 million. Interest rates applicable to the credit facility will be daily floating LIBOR for each business day based on one-month interest periods plus 1.75% per annum for the revolving loans and plus 2.67% per annum for the term loan, subject to final adjustment at closing. The loans will be secured by all assets of the borrower and each guarantor, including Redwood Acquisition.

The bank commitment letter is subject to standard closing conditions, including the absence of a material adverse change in the borrower; U.S. Bank not becoming aware of any information or other matter affecting the borrower or the financing which is inconsistent in a material and adverse manner with any information or matter previously disclosed to U.S. Bank; the negotiation, execution and delivery on or before August 1, 2014 of loan documentation consistent with a term sheet and otherwise satisfactory to U.S. Bank and its counsel; and certain other conditions, including initial funding of the facility no later than August 1, 2014 or other mutually agreed upon date; closing of the Asset Sale Transaction; and evidence of certain financial results for the disc publishing business.

Equus Holdings is obligated to use its reasonable best efforts to obtain the financing on the terms and conditions described in the bank commitment letter and is required to use its reasonable best efforts to arrange for alternate financing in certain circumstances. The asset purchase agreement provides that Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition will not be obligated to complete the Asset Sale Transaction if Redwood Acquisition has not obtained the financing in accordance with the bank commitment letter.

When the Asset Sale Transaction is Expected to be Completed

We expect to complete the Asset Sale Transaction promptly after all of the closing conditions in the asset purchase agreement, including approval of the Asset Sale Proposal by our shareholders and Redwood Acquisition obtaining the financing for the Asset Sale Transaction pursuant to its bank commitment letter or alternate financing, have been satisfied or waived. Subject to the uncertainty concerning the satisfaction or waiver of these conditions, we expect the Asset Sale Transaction to close by July 31, 2014. However, there can be no assurance that the Asset Sale Transaction will be completed at all or, if completed, when it will be completed.

Effects on Our Company if the Asset Sale Transaction is Completed and the Nature of Our Business Following the Transaction

If the Asset Sale Transaction is completed, we will no longer conduct the disc publishing business, and will be prevented by the asset purchase agreement from competing with the disc publishing business for a period of five years. We intend to grow and operate our software business and we expect to generate revenues and related cash flows, if any, through the sale of software licenses, software on a server appliance, software-enabled devices and a cloud-based Software-as-a-Service (SaaS) platform, as well as software maintenance contracts and professional services sold with these solutions. The assets of the disc publishing business to be sold in the Asset Sale Transaction are not needed to conduct the software business.

The Asset Sale Transaction will not alter the rights, privileges or nature of the issued and outstanding shares of our common stock. A shareholder who owns shares of our common stock immediately prior to the closing of the Asset Sale Transaction will continue to hold the same number of shares immediately following the closing.

Our SEC reporting obligations as a public company will not be affected as a result of completing the Asset Sale Transaction. We believe that immediately after the Asset Sale Transaction we will continue to qualify for listing on the NASDAQ Global Market.

Table of Contents

Effects on Our Company if the Asset Sale Transaction is Not Completed

If the Asset Sale Transaction is not completed, we will continue our focus on growing our software business and we also will continue to operate the disc publishing business, and we may consider and evaluate other strategic opportunities. In such a circumstance, there can be no assurances that our continued operation of the disc publishing business or any alternative strategic opportunities will result in the same or greater value to our shareholders as the Asset Sale Transaction.

The asset purchase agreement may be terminated under certain circumstances as set forth in the asset purchase agreement and summarized in this proxy statement. We have agreed to pay Redwood Acquisition (or its designee) a buyer termination fee of \$500,000 if the asset purchase agreement is terminated under certain circumstances. Equus Holdings has agreed to pay us a seller termination fee of \$300,000 if the asset purchase agreement is terminated by us if Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings are unable to obtain financing on or before all of the other closing conditions have been satisfied or waived. See ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT Remedies; Termination Fees below.

No Appraisal or Dissenters Rights

No appraisal or dissenters rights are available to our shareholders under Minnesota law or our articles of incorporation or bylaws in connection with the Asset Sale Proposal.

Interests of Certain Persons in the Asset Sale Transaction

None of our directors or named executive officers is entitled to receive payments in connection with the Asset Sale Transaction.

Our Amended and Restated 2007 Incentive Stock Plan (the 2007 Plan) and the Amended and Restated 1992 Stock Option Plan, as amended (the 1992 Plan) each contain a definition of change in control that states, among other things, that a change in control occurs if we dispose of 75% of our assets, subject to certain limited exceptions. The Asset Sale Transaction is not a change in control for the purposes of the 2007 Plan or the 1992 Plan and accordingly, the Asset Sale Transaction will not affect any outstanding awards under the 2007 Plan or the 1992 Plan.

We have agreements with our executive officers relating to severance and change in control benefits. These benefits are only payable upon termination without cause prior to a change in control or both the occurrence of a change in control and the termination of employment without cause or for good reason. These severance and change in control agreements include a definition of change in control that states, among other things, that a change in control occurs if we dispose of 75% of our assets, subject to certain limited exceptions. Accordingly, the Asset Sale Transaction is not a change in control for the purposes of the severance and change in control agreement with our executive officers.

In February 2013, we entered into long-term incentive bonus agreements with our executive officers as part of a long-term incentive program for executives. The long-term incentive bonus agreements were adopted under the 2007 Plan and incorporate the definition of change in control from the 2007 Plan. Therefore, the Asset Sale Transaction will not be a change in control for the purposes of the long-term incentive bonus agreements and no executive is entitled to any payments under the long-term incentive bonus agreements as a result of the Asset Sale Transaction.

Employment Arrangements

If Redwood Acquisition does not have certain employee benefit plans in place by closing, we will enter into an employee transition agreement with Redwood Acquisition at closing for an employee transition period of up to 45 days after the closing.

Redwood Acquisition will offer employment to identified U.S. disc publishing employees, subject to its standard hiring practices and conditions and upon such terms and conditions as determined by Redwood Acquisition, with such employment to be effective immediately following the end of the employee transition period. Effective as of the end of the employee transition period, all hired employees will cease participation in the Qumu employee benefit

Table of Contents

plans and all hired employees will begin participation in the employee benefit plans of Redwood Acquisition (other than its employee stock ownership plan). Redwood Acquisition will provide to the hired employees employee benefits which are, in the aggregate, substantially comparable to the employee benefits provided to these employees under our benefit plans or to similarly situated employees of Redwood Acquisition (other than its employee stock ownership plan). Redwood Acquisition will give each hired employee credit for his or her years of service with Qumu for purposes of determining eligibility, vesting, and, level of benefit under certain of Redwood Acquisition s employee benefit plans, subject to exceptions and conditions.

On April 23, 2014, our compensation committee recommended and our board of directors approved the acceleration of vesting of the portion of the options received in the stock option exchange that would first vest on September 19, 2014 that are held by employees of the disc publishing business who are hired by Redwood Acquisition, with the acceleration of vesting contingent upon closing and effective upon the termination of employment with Qumu on the closing date or if termination occurs at the end of the employee transition period, as of the last day of the employee transition period.

Anticipated Accounting Treatment

Under generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America, commencing with the quarter during which our shareholders approve the Asset Sale Proposal, we expect to reflect the results of operations of the disc publishing business as discontinued operations. The related anticipated gain on the sale, net of any applicable taxes, will also be reported within discontinued operations upon completion of the Asset Sale Transaction. For further information, see UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS attached to this proxy statement as Appendix C.

Use of Proceeds

Our company, and not our shareholders, will receive the net proceeds from the Asset Sale Transaction. We anticipate using the net proceeds in connection with the development and operation of our software business and for general working capital purposes.

Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Asset Sale Transaction

The following is a general discussion of the anticipated material U.S. federal income tax consequences of the Asset Sale Transaction. The discussion addresses only the specific U.S. federal income tax consequences set forth below and does not address any other U.S. federal, state, local or foreign income, estate, gift, transfer, sales, use or other tax consequences that may result from the Asset Sale Transaction or any other transaction.

This discussion does not purport to be a complete analysis of all of the tax considerations applicable to all categories of shareholders, some of which (such as broker-dealers, shareholders who hold the common stock as part of hedging or conversion transactions, shareholders whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar, and tax-exempt organizations) may be subject to special rules.

This discussion is based on the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the Code, administrative pronouncements, judicial decisions, final, temporary and proposed Treasury regulations, all as in effect on the date hereof and all of which may be changed, perhaps retroactively, so as to result in U.S. federal income tax consequences different from those described below. No rulings have been requested or received from the Internal Revenue Service, or IRS, as to the tax consequences of the Asset Sale Transaction and there is no intent to seek any such ruling. Accordingly, no assurance can be given that the IRS will not challenge the tax treatment of tax consequences of the Asset Sale Transaction discussed below or, if it does challenge the tax treatment, that it will not be successful.

The Asset Sale Transaction will be treated for U.S. federal and state income tax purposes as a taxable transaction upon which we will recognize gain or loss. The amount of gain or loss we recognize with respect to the sale of a particular asset will be measured by the difference between the amount realized by us on the sale of that asset and our tax basis in that asset. The amount realized by us on the Asset Sale Transaction will include the amount of cash received, the fair market value of any other property received, and total liabilities assumed or taken by Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition. For purposes of determining the amount realized by us with respect to specific

Table of Contents

assets, the total amount realized by us will generally be allocated among the assets according to the rules set forth in Section 1060(a) of the Code. Our basis in our assets is generally equal to their cost, as adjusted for certain items, such as depreciation. The determination of whether we will recognize gain or loss will be made with respect to each of the assets to be sold. Accordingly, we may recognize gain on the sale of certain assets and loss on the sale of certain others, depending on the amount of consideration allocated to an asset as compared with the basis of that asset. Further, the sale of certain assets may result in ordinary income or loss, depending on the nature of the asset. To the extent the Asset Sale Transaction results in us recognizing a net gain for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we expect that our available net operating loss carryforwards will offset all or a substantial part of such gain.

The Asset Sale Transaction will not be a taxable event for U.S. federal income tax purposes to our shareholders.

Each shareholder is encouraged to consult his, her, or its own tax advisor as to the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the Asset Sale Transaction, and as to any state, local, foreign or other tax consequences based on his or her particular facts and circumstances.

Vote Required

The approval of the Asset Sale Proposal requires the affirmative vote of holders of at least a majority of our issued and outstanding shares of common stock that are entitled to vote at the special meeting. Abstention or broker non-vote will have the same effect as a vote AGAINST the approval of the Asset Sale Proposal.

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT OUR SHAREHOLDERS VOTE $\,$ FOR $\,$ PROPOSAL #1, THE ASSET SALE PROPOSAL.

Table of Contents

ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This section describes the material terms of the asset purchase agreement. Please note that the summary below and elsewhere in this proxy statement regarding the asset purchase agreement may not contain all of the information that is important to you. The summary below and elsewhere in this proxy statement of the asset purchase agreement does not purport to be complete and is subject to, and qualified in its entirety by, reference to the full text of the asset purchase agreement, a copy of which is attached to this proxy statement as Appendix A. We encourage you to read the asset purchase agreement carefully in its entirety for a more complete understanding of the Asset Sale Transaction, the terms of the asset purchase agreement, and other information that may be important to you.

The asset purchase agreement has been included to provide shareholders with information regarding its terms. The asset purchase agreement also references certain of the other transaction documents, including the mutual transition services agreement and the lease agreement. Certain of the other transaction documents are summarized below, but are not binding upon any party until executed and delivered. This proxy statement is not soliciting shareholder approval for any transaction or agreement other than the Asset Sale Transaction as described in the Asset Sale Proposal.

General

On April 24, 2014, we entered into an asset purchase agreement with Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition pursuant to which we have agreed, subject to specified terms and conditions, including approval of the Asset Sale Proposal by our shareholders at the special meeting, to sell to Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition all of the assets primarily used in or primarily held for use in connection with the Business, which is defined as the business of manufacturing and distributing disc publishing solutions that label, archive, distribute and protect content on CDs, DVDs and Blu-ray discs through our Disc Publishing business which includes the Acquired Subsidiaries (as defined below). For the purposes of this proxy statement, we refer to the Business as the disc publishing business.

In general, we are not selling to Equus Holdings or Redwood Acquisition assets relating to the Retained Business which is the business of providing enterprise content distribution software for the video communications market and the delivery of secure digital content to computer, tablets and mobile devices. For the purposes of this proxy statement, we refer to the Retained Business as the software business.

Purchase and Sale of Assets

Subject to certain exceptions described below, we agreed to sell or assign to Redwood Acquisition all of our assets primarily used in or primarily held for use in connection with the disc publishing business, including the following assets:

accounts, notes and other receivables relating to the disc publishing business;

certain tangible personal property (such as machinery, equipment, inventories of raw materials and supplies, manufactured and purchased parts, goods in process and finished goods, furniture, automobiles, trucks, trailers, tools, jigs and dies) relating to the disc publishing business;

certain intellectual property primarily used or held primarily for use in connection with the disc publishing business, including the Rimage tradename (but excluding the Qumu tradename), the associated goodwill and rights, remedies against infringements and rights to protection of interests in that intellectual property under the laws of all jurisdictions;

certain leased real property used by Qumu or an acquired subsidiary in the disc publishing business;

our real property located at 7725 Washington Avenue South, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55439;

contracts, agreements, commitments and other arrangements, excluding the excluded contracts (collectively, these are referred to as the acquired contracts);

Table of Contents

the direct and indirect equity interests in the acquired subsidiaries, which are Qumu Europe GmbH (Qumu Europe), Rimage Information Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (Rimage RIT), Rimage Holdings (Singapore) Pte., Ltd. (Rimage Singapore) and Rimage Japan Co., Ltd. (Rimage Japan);

prepaid expenses, claims, deposits, prepayments, refunds, causes of action, rights of recovery, warranty rights, rights of set-off and rights of recoupment relating to the disc publishing business;

franchises, approvals, permits, licenses, orders, registrations, certificates, variances and similar rights obtained from government entities, to the extent transferable;

books, records, ledgers, files, documents, correspondence, lists, plats, architectural plans, drawings and specifications, creative materials, advertising and promotional materials, studies, reports and other printed or written materials, whether stored electronically or otherwise, relating to the disc publishing business;

software development costs of the disc publishing business that have been capitalized by us;

all customer, supplier and service provider lists and similar information related to the disc publishing business, and all other contact information, mailing lists and similar files related to the disc publishing business;

all telephone numbers (including cellular telephone numbers), fax numbers, email addresses, postal addresses and postal boxes related to the disc publishing business;

all rights with respect to causes of action, rights of recovery, rights of set-off, warranty claims, refunds, credits and other rights in respect of undertakings of third parties, encumbrances and other claims related to the disc publishing business; and

goodwill related to the disc publishing business.

The disc publishing assets we have agreed to sell to Redwood Acquisition are sometimes referred to as the acquired assets. The acquired assets specifically excludes those assets identified as the excluded assets, which are summarized below.

Redwood Acquisition will also assume the following liabilities:

the liabilities of the disc publishing business (including any acquired subsidiary) set forth on the estimated closing date balance sheet or the closing date balance sheet, including trade payables, accrued expenses (excluding personal leave and bonuses but including accrued vacation) and other current liabilities and deferred revenue and liabilities of the business (including any acquired subsidiary) incurred in the ordinary course of business since the date of the latest balance sheet, but only to the extent such liabilities are included in the final net book value;

obligations under the executory portion (that is, the portion which is to be performed after the closing date) of any acquired contract, but not including any obligation relating to portions performed or to be performed on or before the closing date or as a result of any breach or default thereunder before closing;

the obligations and liabilities arising out of any foreign benefit plan on and after the closing date; and

the obligations and liabilities arising out of the ownership of the acquired assets and the operation of the disc publishing business (including the Acquired Subsidiaries) on and after the closing date.

Under the asset purchase agreement, we are not selling or assigning to Redwood Acquisition the following excluded assets:

Table of Contents

our cash and cash equivalents (but not, for the avoidance of doubt, certain cash and cash equivalents held by the acquired subsidiaries at closing);

any of our employee benefit plans, except those included in the acquired contracts;

our insurance policies;

the corporate charter, qualifications to conduct business, arrangements with registered agents, taxpayer and other identification numbers, seals, minute books and other documents relating to the organization, maintenance, and existence of Qumu Corporation as an entity;

any contract or agreement related to the governance of Qumu Corporation;

all books, records, ledgers, files, documents, correspondence required for us to comply with the legal requirements of a public company, whether stored electronically or otherwise;

certain contracts, agreements, commitments and other arrangements identified as excluded contracts;

the equity interests and assets of the retained subsidiaries, which means BriefCam, Ltd., a newly formed entity to be called Qumu Germany, Qumu, Inc., a newly formed entity to be called Qumu Japan, and Qumu UK Limited;

all books or records relating to internal corporate matters, tax returns and associated work papers through the closing date;

any of our rights under any transaction document, which include the asset purchase agreement, the bill of sale, the intellectual property assignment, lease agreement, mutual transition services agreement and any other document expressly contemplated by the asset purchase agreement;

all claims, prepayments, prepaid expenses, refunds, causes of action, choses in action, rights of recovery, rights of set off, and rights of recoupment (i) from any excluded asset or (ii) arising out of any excluded liability (including any taxes for which we are responsible under the asset purchase agreement to the extent such taxes are an excluded liability);

all confidential, business records and other business information primarily related to our software business;

certain property relating to our employees that are not hired by Redwood Acquisition or leased by Redwood Acquisition following closing, including all telephone numbers, fax numbers, e-mail addresses and all the tangible personal property (such as computers, furniture and other related items);

personnel, payroll, benefits, work authorization, and other associated necessary records relating to our employees that are not hired by Redwood Acquisition or leased by Redwood Acquisition following closing that we or an acquired subsidiary is not legally permitted to transfer;

intellectual property relating to our Signal product software;

the Qumu.com domain name and website, @Qumu Twitter account, Qumu Facebook, Qumu LinkedIn, Qumu Blog and Qumu Google+ and similar social media sites; and

all other properties or rights of every kind or nature that are primarily used or held for use in connection with our software business, except as specifically identified.

At the closing, the Acquired Subsidiaries will transfer to us (or such entity as we direct) certain assets and agreements of the acquired subsidiary that will also be deemed excluded assets. However, each of the Acquired Subsidiaries will retain cash and cash equivalents of up to the following amounts: \$269,868 in Rimage RIT and

Table of Contents

Rimage Singapore, collectively; \$325,000 in Qumu Europe; and \$75,000 in Rimage Japan. Qumu Europe and Rimage Japan will distribute cash and cash equivalents in excess of these amounts to us immediately prior to closing and these distributed amounts will be excluded assets.

Purchase Price and Escrow Amount

The purchase price for the acquired assets will be \$23 million plus an estimated amount of cash held by the Acquired Subsidiaries at closing (up to a maximum of \$800,000), less the amount (if any) by which the estimated net book value of the disc publishing business at closing is less than the net book value target of \$5 million, plus the amount (if any) by which the estimated net book value of the disc publishing business at closing exceeds the net book value target of \$5 million, and less the estimated EBITDA of the disc publishing business from June 1, 2014 through the closing date.

At the closing of the Asset Sale Transaction, Redwood Acquisition will pay us the purchase price in cash less a \$2.3 million escrow amount that will be placed in an escrow account to support our indemnification obligations under the asset purchase agreement for a fifteen-month escrow period.

Following the closing date, the purchase price will be recalculated based upon final determinations of the actual cash held by the Acquired Subsidiaries at the closing date, the actual difference between net book value at the closing date and the target net book value amount, and actual EBITDA of the disc publishing business from June 1, 2014 through the closing date. The purchase price then will be adjusted upward or downward for the amount by which the purchase price recalculated using these final amounts is more than or less than the purchase price paid at closing. If the recalculated purchase price is more than purchase price paid at closing, Redwood Acquisition will pay to Qumu such amount within ten days. If the recalculated purchase price is less than purchase price paid at closing, we will pay to Redwood Acquisition such amount within ten days.

Under the asset purchase agreement, net book value means the net book value of the acquired assets (including the net book value of the assets of the Acquired Subsidiaries but excluding for this purpose the cash held by the Acquired Subsidiaries), less the net book value of the assumed liabilities as of the closing date, determined in accordance with the U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, consistently applied, used to prepare our audited consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2013 and the methodology specified by the parties. Under the asset purchase agreement, EBITDA means earnings of the disc publishing business before interest, tax, depreciation, amortization and extraordinary and non-recurring charges (including transaction expenses), determined in accordance with the U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, consistently applied, used to prepare our audited consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2013 and the methodology specified by the parties for the period beginning on June 1, 2014 and ending on the closing Date, if the closing date occurs after June 1, 2014.

Conditions to Closing

The obligation of Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition to complete the Asset Sale Transactions is subject to the satisfaction (or written waiver by Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition) of the following conditions:

Generally, Qumu s representations and warranties shall be true and correct in all respects on the date of the asset purchase agreement and the closing date or in the case of representations and warranties made as of a specified date earlier than the closing date, as of such earlier date, subject to exceptions as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect;

Qumu shall have materially performed its covenants and other obligations as specified in the asset purchase agreement;

There shall not be any injunction, judgment, order, decree or ruling in effect before any government entity the result of which would prevent or prohibit the consummation of the Asset Sale Transaction or cause the Asset Sale Transaction to be rescinded following consummation;

Since the date of the asset purchase agreement, there will not have been any material adverse effect;

Table of Contents

Qumu shall have delivered to Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition a certificate, executed by a duly authorized officer, that the preceding four conditions are satisfied;

The specified third party consents and approvals shall have been obtained;

Qumu shall have obtained shareholder approval of the Asset Sale Proposal;

Redwood Acquisition will have obtained the financing under its bank commitment letter or alternate financing;

Qumu shall have executed and delivered a bill of sale, assignment and assumption agreement and an intellectual property assignment;

Qumu shall have executed and delivered the escrow agreement;

Qumu shall have delivered a certificate of good standing, a certificate of non-foreign status and certified copies of the resolutions or consents of our board and shareholders authorizing and approving the asset purchase agreement and the Asset Sale Transaction;

Qumu shall have delivered evidence transferring all of the outstanding ownership interests in Qumu Europe, Rimage RIT, Rimage Singapore and Rimage Japan to Redwood Acquisition or one of its affiliates, provided if the actual transfer of such ownership interests cannot be effected at closing, the parties will enter into customary beneficial ownership and control agreements providing for the operation of such acquired subsidiary for the benefit and burden of Redwood Acquisition until such time as such interests are transferred under applicable legal requirements;

Qumu shall have delivered a deed transferring the property located at 7725 Washington Avenue South to Redwood Acquisition and a binding title insurance policy insuring Redwood Acquisition as the fee owner of the property;

Qumu shall have executed and delivered the mutual transition services agreement and the lease agreement for the property located at 7725 Washington Avenue South;

Qumu shall have delivered evidence that the liens (other than the permitted liens) on the acquired assets have been released; and

Qumu shall have delivered reliance letters addressed to Redwood Acquisition relating to certain environmental reports covering the property located at 7725 Washington Avenue South.

The obligation of Qumu to complete the Asset Sale Transaction is subject to the satisfaction (or written waiver by Qumu) of the following conditions:

Generally, each of Redwood Acquisition s and Equus Holdings representations and warranties shall be true and correct in all material respects on the date of the asset purchase agreement and the closing date or in the case of representations and warranties made as of a specified date earlier than the closing date, as of such earlier date, subject to exceptions as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on Redwood Acquisition s and Equus Holdings ability to consummate the transactions contemplated by the asset purchase agreement;

Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings shall have materially performed its covenants and other obligations as specified in the asset purchase agreement;

There shall not be any injunction, judgment, order, decree or ruling in effect before any government entity the result of which would prevent or prohibit the consummation of the Asset Sale Transaction or cause the Asset Sale Transaction to be rescinded following consummation;

Table of Contents

Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings shall have delivered to Qumu a certificate, executed by a duly authorized officer, that the preceding three conditions are satisfied;

Qumu shall have obtained shareholder approval of the Asset Sale Proposal;

The specified third party consents and approvals shall have been obtained;

Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition shall have executed and delivered a bill of sale, assignment and assumption agreement, the escrow agreement, the mutual transition services agreement and the lease; and

Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition shall have delivered certificates of good standing and certified copies of resolutions or consents of the board of directors Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition authorizing and approving the asset purchase agreement and the Asset Sale Transaction.

Representations and Warranties

The asset purchase agreement contains customary representations, warranties and covenants made by Qumu and Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition. In reviewing the representations and warranties contained in the asset purchase agreement and described in this summary it is important to bear in mind that the parties negotiated the representations and warranties with the principal purpose of establishing the circumstances in which a party to the asset purchase agreement may have the right to terminate the transaction if the representations and warranties of the other party prove to be untrue due to a change in circumstance or otherwise, and allocating risk between the parties, rather than establishing matters of fact. The assertions embodied in those representations and warranties are subject to qualifications and limitations agreed to by the parties in connection with the negotiated terms of the asset purchase agreement and to a standard of materiality defined by the asset purchase agreement that may differ from what may be viewed as material by our shareholders. Our shareholders are not third party beneficiaries under the asset purchase agreement and should not rely on the representations, warranties and covenants or any descriptions thereof as characterizations of the actual state of facts or conditions of Qumu, the disc publishing business, or of Equus Holdings or Redwood Acquisition.

In the asset purchase agreement, Qumu made representations and warranties to Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition concerning the following matters:

the corporate organization of Qumu and each acquired subsidiary and the authority of each to enter into, deliver and perform its obligations under the transaction documents;

the organizational power of Qumu and each acquired subsidiary to carry on the disc publishing business and the authority of each to conduct the disc publishing business;

the binding effect on Qumu of the transaction documents, the absence of certain violations, conflicts, breaches, defaults, or liens on the acquired assets as a result of the execution, delivery and performance by Qumu of the transaction documents and the authorizations, consents or approvals required for the execution, delivery and performance by Qumu of the transaction documents;

the equity ownership of the acquired subsidiaries and the solvency of the acquired assets;

the completeness and accuracy of financial statements provided to Redwood Acquisition and the preparation of these financial statements in compliance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and other applicable accounting requirements, as well as certain financial information of the disc publishing business;

the absence of undisclosed liabilities;

the absence of certain events and certain changes since December 31, 2013;

Table of Contents

Qumu s title to the acquired assets, the sufficiency of those assets for the conduct of the disc publishing business and the condition of the certain acquired assets;

Qumu s and the Acquired Subsidiaries compliance with laws applicable to the disc publishing business, including anti-bribery, anti-corruption and anti-boycott laws, foreign export controls and import controls;

the filing of tax returns, the payment of required taxes, tax audits, tax agreements, tax liabilities and certain other tax matters relating to Qumu and the Acquired Subsidiaries;

Qumu s and the Acquired Subsidiaries compliance with environmental laws and environmental permits or licenses applicable to the disc publishing business, the existence of litigation or claims relating to environmental laws, notices or investigations by government entities arising under environmental laws, and the delivery of copies of environmental studies;

the intellectual property relating to the disc publishing business and ownership or license of this intellectual property, the sufficiency of the intellectual property for the conduct of the disc publishing business, infringement or misappropriation claims relating to intellectual property, data security and privacy requirements and breaches, and the computer systems used in the disc publishing business;

real estate owned or leased by Qumu for use in the conduct of the disc publishing business;

outstanding injunctions, judgments, orders relating to the disc publishing business or proceedings, hearings, claims, or governmental investigations involving the Acquired Subsidiaries or Qumu (with respect to the disc publishing business);

the employee benefit plans that Qumu or its affiliates maintain, contribute to or have any liability for the benefit of employees, officers or directors of the disc publishing business, including the maintenance of these employee benefit plans with their terms, claims related to these employee benefit plans, and compliance with legal requirements;

certain written or oral acquired contracts identified as material contracts, the validity of these material contracts and the absence of violations, breaches or defaults under these material contracts;

brokers, finders or investment bankers who may be entitled to compensation in connection with the Asset Sale Transaction;

the validity of governmental licenses, permits, certificates of authority, authorizations, and approvals and the sufficiency of these licenses, permits and approvals to allow for the conduct the disc publishing in material compliance with all legal requirements relating to these licenses, permits and approvals;

a listing of insurance policies;

the absence of any interests of our directors, managers, officers, or affiliates (other than the Acquired Subsidiaries) in the property used in the disc publishing business and that none of these persons are parties to any acquired contracts;

customers and supplier matters, including certain notices from customers or suppliers;

matters relating to the disc publishing employees, including the absence of union or collective bargaining agreements or activity, labor practices complaints and work stoppages or strikes, compliance with legal requirements relating to employment, agreements with disc publishing employees, and information relating to disc publishing employees and the terms of their employment,

accounts receivable of the disc publishing business;

Table of Contents

inventory of Qumu that is part of the acquired assets or inventory of any acquired subsidiary;

warranties and warranty claims relating to products manufactured, sold, leased or delivered by the disc publishing business;

product liabilities claims against the disc publishing business relating to any product manufactured, sold, leased or delivered by the disc publishing business;

compliance as to form of all of our disclosure documents to be filed with the SEC or to be distributed or disseminated to shareholders in connection with the Asset Sale Transaction and the accuracy of such documents when filed, distributed or disseminated;

the fairness opinion delivered to our board of directors by Mooreland Partners; and

a disclaimer of other representations and warranties.

Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition made representations and warranties to Qumu concerning the following matters:

the corporate organization of Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition and the power and authority of each to enter into, deliver and perform its obligations under the transaction documents;

the organizational power of Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition to carry on the businesses in which it is engaged and the authority of each to conduct business;

the binding effect on Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition of the transaction documents, the absence of certain violations, conflicts, breaches or defaults as a result of the execution, delivery and performance by Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition of the transaction documents and the authorizations, consents or approvals required for the execution, delivery and performance by Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition of the transaction documents;

brokers, finders or investment bankers who may be entitled to compensation in connection with the Asset Sale Transaction;

outstanding injunctions, judgments, orders or proceedings, hearings, claims, or governmental investigations having an adverse effect on Equus Holdings or Redwood Acquisition s ability to consummate the Asset Sale Transaction or the performance of their respective obligations under any transaction document to which it is a party;

the sufficiency of the financing pursuant to the U.S. Bank commitment letter received by Equus Holdings, together with cash on hand of Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition, to consummate the Asset Sale Transaction, as well as the absence of side letters related to the funding of the financing other than as provided in the bank commitment letter, the absence breaches or defaults under the bank commitment letter and the ability of Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition to satisfy any term or condition of closing of the financing;

the accuracy of the information supplied by Equus Holdings or Redwood Acquisition for inclusion in Qumu s disclosure documents to be field with the SEC or any proxy statement; and

the independent investigation conducted by Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition and their representatives relating to the Asset Sale Transaction.

47

Table of Contents

Covenants

Conduct of the Disc Publishing Business Prior to Closing

From and after the date of the asset purchase agreement and through immediately prior to the closing, or the earlier termination of the asset purchase agreement, we have agreed to conduct the disc publishing business in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practices and use commercially reasonable efforts to preserve and maintain the goodwill associated with the disc publishing business and relationships with the employees, customers, suppliers, distributors and others with whom the disc publishing business has a business relationship. From and after the date of the asset purchase agreement and through immediately prior to the closing, or the earlier termination of the asset purchase agreement, we have also agreed not to take specified actions relating to the disc publishing business without the consent of Equus Holdings. Our obligations relating to the conduct of the business prior to the closing date are subject to exceptions for actions that are specified by the parties and those otherwise contemplated by the asset purchase agreement, required by applicable legal requirements, or as Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition may consent to in writing (which may not be unreasonably withheld).

Access to Business

We are required to give Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition reasonable access to the personnel, premises, properties, assets, books and records, contracts and documents pertaining to the disc publishing business, the acquired assets or the assumed liabilities, subject to certain conditions and limitations.

Confidentiality

The parties have agreed that an existing confidentiality agreement between us and Equus Holdings protecting our confidential information will terminate effective upon and only upon closing with respect to information relating solely to the disc publishing business or otherwise included in the acquired assets, but any and all other confidential information provided to Equus Holdings or Redwood Acquisition by us will continue to be subject to the terms of the confidentiality agreement after closing.

Following closing, we have agreed not disclose to any third party or use any confidential information relating solely to the disc publishing business or Redwood Holdings or its affiliates obtained by us solely in connection with the transactions contemplated by the asset purchase agreement, subject to certain exceptions.

Consents, Approvals and Filings

Qumu, Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition will cooperate and use commercially reasonable efforts to make or obtain specified filings or registrations with, notifications to, or authorizations, consents or approvals of third parties. In addition, each of the parties will use its commercially reasonable efforts to cooperate fully with each other to comply as promptly as practicable with all governmental requirements applicable to these required consents and to make or obtain as promptly as practicable all required consents. Further, each of the parties agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the conditions to closing to be satisfied as soon as practicable and to consummate the Asset Sale Transaction as soon as practicable.

Notice of Developments; Supplement to Schedules

During the period between the date of the asset purchase agreement and the closing, each party will give prompt written notice to the other of any material development affecting the ability of the parties to consummate the transactions contemplated by the asset purchase agreement or any of the transaction documents.

We are required to update the disclosure schedules from time to time if we become aware of any fact or condition that causes or constitutes a breach of any of our representations and warranties as of the date of the asset purchase agreement or later as of the time of occurrence or discovery of such fact or condition if such representation or warranty been made as of the time of occurrence or discovery. We will update the disclosure schedules by delivering a supplement to the disclosure schedule specifying changes and updates. These updates to the disclosure schedules will not have any effect on the indemnification obligations or closing conditions as set forth in the asset purchase agreement.

Table of Contents

Preparation of the Proxy Statement; Shareholder Meeting

The asset purchase agreement requires that we prepare and file a proxy statement to be delivered to our shareholders in connection with a meeting of our shareholders to approve the Asset Sale Transaction as promptly as practicable following the date of the asset purchase agreement. In connection with the preparation of this proxy statement, Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition and their advisors were required to and have provided certain information for inclusion in this proxy statement. We have agreed to use our reasonable best efforts to respond as promptly as practicable to any comments of the SEC relating to this proxy statement, taking into consideration any reasonable comments or requests made by Redwood Acquisition with respect to SEC comments, and to cause this proxy statement to be mailed as promptly as practicable after this proxy statement is cleared by the SEC (or following such time that as the SEC may advise that it will not review and/or provide comments with respect to this proxy statement). We will keep Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition promptly informed of any comments from the SEC, provide Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition with copies of correspondence with the SEC and consider any reasonable comments or requests made by Redwood Acquisition with respect to this correspondence. Upon our request, Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition will provide information relating to Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition required for inclusion to any response letter to the SEC.

The asset purchase agreement also requires that we duly call, give notice of, convene and hold a meeting of our shareholders for approval by our shareholders of the Asset Sale Transaction as promptly as reasonably practicable following the date on which this proxy statement is cleared by the SEC (or following the date upon which the SEC advises that it will not review and/or provide comments with respect to this proxy statement). Subject to the terms of the asset purchase agreement, our board of directors must recommend that our shareholders vote in favor of the Asset Sale Transaction and we are required to use our reasonable best efforts to solicit from our shareholders proxies in favor of the approval of the Asset Sale Proposal and to take all other action necessary or advisable to secure the required approval of our shareholders.

Solicitation of Transactions

If, at any time following the date of the asset purchase agreement and prior to Qumu securing the required vote of our shareholders of the Asset Sale Transaction, we receive a bona fide written acquisition proposal from a third party that did not result from a breach of the non-solicitation provisions of the asset purchase agreement and our board of directors or any committee of our board determines in good faith, after consultation with its financial advisors and outside counsel, that such acquisition proposal constitutes or is reasonably likely to constitute a superior proposal, and we give Redwood Acquisition at least 24 hours advance written notice of the identity of such person and of our intention to furnish nonpublic information to, or enter into discussions with, such person, then we may furnish information relating to Qumu to the person making the acquisition proposal and participate in discussions or negotiations with the person making the acquisition proposal. We are required to enter into an acceptable confidentiality agreement prior to disclosing nonpublic information to the person making the acquisition proposal and promptly provide Redwood Acquisition with the material information provided to the person making the acquisition proposal that was not previously provided to Redwood Acquisition or Equus Holdings.

Other than the exception described above, from and after the date of the asset purchase agreement until the closing or, if earlier, the termination of the asset purchase agreement, we and the acquired subsidiaries may not and may not authorize or permit our respective representatives to, directly or indirectly:

initiate, solicit or knowingly encourage or facilitate the submission of any acquisition proposal, or any inquiry or proposal that could reasonably be expected to lead to an acquisition proposal;

participate in any discussions or negotiations, or furnish to any person any information, or cooperate with any person (whether or not a person making an acquisition proposal), with respect to any acquisition proposal, or any inquiry or proposal that could reasonably be expected to lead to an acquisition proposal;

approve, endorse or recommend any acquisition proposal;

enter into any letter of intent or similar document or any contract contemplating or otherwise relating to any acquisition proposal; or

Table of Contents

otherwise cooperate in any way with, assist or participate in, or knowingly encourage or facilitate (including through the furnishing of any nonpublic information regarding Qumu, any acquired subsidiary or the disc publishing business in connection with or in response to an acquisition proposal or an inquiry or indication of interest that could lead to an acquisition proposal or providing access to our or the Acquired Subsidiaries properties, books, records or management) any effort or attempt by any person to do or seek any of the foregoing.

We are also required to notify Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings in writing if we receive any written acquisition proposal or any inquiry, indication of interest or request for nonpublic information that could reasonably be expected to lead to an acquisition proposal, as well as keep Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings reasonably informed with respect to the status and details of any acquisition proposal, inquiry, indication or request, and provide copies of correspondence and written material (including draft agreements) exchanged between us and the person making the acquisition proposal or any inquiry, indication or request.

As used in the asset purchase agreement, acquisition proposal means any indication of interest, offer or proposal relating to any transaction involving any:

merger, consolidation, share exchange, business combination or other similar transaction involving us that, if consummated, would result in a third party acquiring 20% or more of our outstanding voting power or the surviving entity of such transaction immediately following such transaction,

sale, lease or other disposition by us (including by way of merger, consolidation, share exchange, business combination, joint venture, sale of shares of our capital stock or otherwise), of 20% or more of our assets, or assets from which 20% or more of our consolidated revenues or our net income are derived (or of substantially all of the acquired assets as provided in the asset purchase agreement),

issuance of shares of our capital stock representing 20% or more of our voting power; or

tender offer or exchange offer that, if consummated, would result in any person beneficially owning more than 20% of the shares of our capital stock then outstanding.

As used in the asset purchase agreement, superior proposal means any unsolicited, bona fide written acquisition proposal (except that for purposes of the definition, references to 20% in the definition of acquisition proposal shall be deemed to be references to 50%) made by a third party that, in the good faith judgment of our board of directors or any committee of our board, after consultation with its financial advisors and outside counsel, taking into account all the terms and conditions of such proposal that our board of directors or any committee of our board deems relevant, is more favorable, from a financial point of view, to us than the Asset Sale Transaction.

Change in Board Recommendations

Our board of directors unanimously recommends that you vote for the Asset Sale Proposal.

Our board of directors may make a change in its recommendation for approval of the Asset Sale Proposal at any time prior to obtaining the required shareholder vote, if our board of directors or any committee of our board determines in good faith, after consultation with its financial advisors and outside counsel, that the failure to do so would be inconsistent with its fiduciary duties under applicable legal requirements, which would include, without limitation, the pursuit of an unsolicited acquisition proposal that constitutes or is reasonably likely to constitute a superior proposal.

Other than the exception described above, neither our board nor any committee of our board will make a change in the recommendation by our board of directors that our shareholders approve the Asset Sale Proposal.

Our board will not be entitled to exercise its right to make a change in its recommendation unless we and our representatives have complied in all material respects with the provisions of the asset purchase agreement relating to non-solicitation of acquisition proposals and the recommendation of our board. Our board also will not be entitled to exercise its right to make a change in its recommendation until we provide three business days advance written notice advising Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings of an intended change in our board s recommendation

Table of Contents

and specifying the reasons for the action, including in the case that such action is based on a superior proposal, the material terms and conditions of such superior proposal and all related proposed agreements or other documentation. During this three-business day period we are obligated, to the extent requested by Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings, to engage in good faith negotiations with Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings regarding potential changes to the terms of the asset purchase agreement and, in making a change in our board s recommendation after such three-business day period, our board of directors and any committee of our board must take into account any changes to the terms of the asset purchase agreement proposed by Redwood Acquisition in writing.

A change in our board s recommendation will occur if our board of directors or a committee of our board approves, recommends, or declares advisable or publicly proposes to approve, recommend, or declare advisable any acquisition proposal, or any inquiry or proposal that could reasonably be expected to lead to an acquisition proposal, or the abandonment, termination, delay or failure to consummate the Asset Sale Transaction. A change in our board s recommendation also will occur if our board of directors or a committee of our board withdraws or modifies, in a manner adverse to Redwood Acquisition or Equus Holdings, or publicly proposes to withdraw or modify, in a manner adverse to Redwood Acquisition or Equus Holdings, the recommendation by our board of directors that our shareholders approve the Asset Sale Proposal.

Non-Competition and Non-Solicitation Covenants

We have agreed for a period of five years not to, directly or indirectly (whether as principal, agent, independent contractor, partner or otherwise) own, manage, operate, control, participate in, or otherwise carry on, the business of manufacturing and distributing disc publishing solutions that label, archive, distribute and protect content on CDs, DVDs and Blu-ray discs.

We also have agreed for a period of five years not to, directly or indirectly, solicit for employment or hire any disc publishing employee hired by Redwood Acquisition unless we receive a release from Redwood Acquisition of this restriction with respect to such employee.

We have agreed that for a period of five years, neither we nor our affiliates will directly or indirectly, solicit any end-user customer that is an active disc publishing customer. However, if during such five year period an active disc publishing customer is displaced by any product of the software business, we will pay Redwood Acquisition a one-time royalty fee. In addition, we have agreed that for a period of five years, neither we nor our affiliates will, directly or indirectly, solicit certain prospective business matters, which are prospective customers for the targeted use case identified with respect to such customer. However, if either Redwood Acquisition or Qumu is interested in pursuing any prospective business matter with a software business solution, a commercial arrangement will be negotiated with Redwood Acquisition that would provide a release from this restriction with respect to such prospective business matter. Nothing in the asset purchase agreement restricts us or our affiliates from soliciting any customer, whether an active business customer or related to a prospective business matter, for an enterprise video content management solution.

For a period from the closing until the first anniversary of the closing, we will not solicit or enter into any commercial arrangements with certain identified law enforcement partners for such partners to resell, license or OEM our software business products and technology, but we are not precluded from selling our software business products and technology directly to such partners, not for resale, license or OEM to third parties.

Further, neither Qumu and Redwood Acquisition nor any of its respective affiliates will disparage in any manner or by any means, or engage in any conduct which defames, disparages, libels or slanders, the other party in respect to any aspect of the other party s operation of the disc publishing business or the software business, respectively.

However, these covenants do not restrict (A) us from owning not in excess of 3% in the aggregate of any class of capital stock of any public company, (B) us from selling all or a portion of, or licensing the rights to, the excluded assets, including to a person that, directly or indirectly owns, manages, operates, controls, participates in, performs services for, sells materials to, or otherwise carries on, a business similar to or competitive with the disc publishing business, (C) any subsequent buyer or successor of Qumu (whether through stock or equity) from continuing its business as in effect at the time such buyer or successor became a buyer or successor of Qumu, (D) us from holding an ownership interest in the retained subsidiaries, (E) us from continuing the current and any future business

Table of Contents

operations of BriefCam, provided that we do not direct BriefCam to engage in any activity that would be prohibited if conducted by us, and (F) us from continuing the operations of the software business.

If we violate any of our obligations under these covenants, Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition may bring an action against us for damages or other relief as a court may deem appropriate, including seeking a temporary restraining order, or a preliminary or final injunction.

Books and Records

Each of the parties have agreed that it will preserve and keep the financial records held by it or its affiliates relating to the disc publishing business for a period of seven years from the closing date of the Asset Sale Transaction. Further each of the parties have agreed that it will make these financial records and personnel available to the other as may be reasonably required by the other party in connection with, among other things, any insurance claims, certain litigation, tax audits, governmental investigations or in order to enable us to comply with our obligations under the asset purchase agreement and other related documents. Each party is entitled to copy the books and records to which it is entitled access at that party s sole cost and expense.

Tax Matters

We will prepare and timely file all tax returns with respect to the assets being sold to Redwood Acquisition for all tax periods ending on or prior to the closing date of the Asset Sale Transaction. Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition will prepare and timely file all other tax returns required to be filed in respect to the assets being sold to Redwood Acquisition for all tax periods ending after the closing date of the Asset Sale Transaction. Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition will provide us with an opportunity to review and approve any tax return that includes taxes for which we have an obligation to indemnify Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition.

Without our prior written consent, neither Redwood Acquisition, Equus Holdings nor any of their affiliates may take certain actions relating to or affecting tax years ending on or before the closing date of the Asset Sale Transaction, including modifying tax returns, making retroactive tax elections, filing a ruling request, initiating voluntary disclosure to tax authorities, or any action to extend the applicable statute of limitations.

The parties will each provide the other with assistance and non-privileged information relating to the disc publishing business and the acquired assets as may reasonably be requested in connection with tax returns, tax audits, and proceedings by any taxing authority and also will each retain and provide to the other party all non-privileged records and other information which may be relevant to these tax returns, tax audits, and proceedings.

We will exercise exclusive control over the handling, disposition and settlement of any governmental inquiry, examination or proceeding that could result in a determination with respect to taxes due or payable by us, or for which we may be required to indemnify Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition. Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition are obligated to cooperate with us, at our request, in any such inquiry, examination or proceeding and may participate at their sole expense.

If either Redwood Acquisition or Equus Holdings, on the one hand, or Qumu, on the other hand, receives a refund for which the other party or parties are wholly or partially responsible, the party receiving the refund will pay to the responsible party the amount of the refund attributable to such party. No party will agree to settle any tax liability or compromise any tax claim relating to the disc publishing business or on behalf of any acquired subsidiary, which settlement or compromise may affect the tax liability or tax benefit of another party, without the consent of the other party.

Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition will pay 50% of any transfer, sales, use, recording or similar taxes that may be imposed by reason of the Asset Sale Transaction. Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition will timely file all tax returns in connection with these transfer taxes, with the parties obligated to cooperate with each other relating to such transfer taxes. Further, Redwood Acquisition is entitled to make certain tax elections with respect to the Acquired Subsidiaries, provided that Redwood Acquisition must indemnify us, on a grossed up basis, for any increases in our taxes or reduction in our tax attributes arising from any such election.

Table of Contents

Employee and Benefits Matters

Prior to closing, we will enter into an employee transition services agreement with Redwood Acquisition on terms reasonably satisfactory both parties. The employee transition services agreement will have a term called the employee transition period of up to 45 days after the closing, subject to extension by written consent of Redwood Acquisition and us. During the employee transition period, we will use all reasonable efforts to retain U.S. disc publishing employees and lease such employees to Redwood Acquisition to conduct the disc publishing business as provided in the employee transition agreement. The employee transition agreement will provide that Redwood Acquisition will reimburse us for all wages, salary, commission, and other employee compensation and benefits of these employees incurred during the employee transition period and for all other liabilities associated with such employees during the employee transition period of the type for which Redwood Acquisition would be responsible had Redwood Acquisition hired these U.S. disc publishing employees as of the closing. Prior to the closing, the parties also agree to make such changes as may be required to the transition services agreement to account for the employee transition agreement during the employee transition period.

Prior to the end of the employee transition period, we will provide Redwood Acquisition with an updated list of U.S. disc publishing employees and Redwood Acquisition will offer employment to these employees, subject to its standard hiring practices and conditions and upon such terms and conditions as determined by Redwood Acquisition, with such employment to be effective immediately following the end of the employee transition period.

The disc publishing employees who are offered and accept employment with Redwood Acquisition and who complete all necessary paperwork and commence employment with Redwood Acquisition immediately following the end of the employee transition period, as well as all non-U.S. disc publishing employees of any acquired subsidiary, are referred to as the hired employees. Qumu will use its reasonable best efforts to assist Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition with the transition of all hired employees to Redwood Acquisition. All hired employees will become employees of Redwood Acquisition immediately following the end of the employee transition period and will cease employment with Qumu at such time.

Effective as of the end of the employee transition period, all hired employees will cease participation in the Qumu employee benefit plans and all hired employees will begin participation in the employee benefit plans of Redwood Acquisition (other than its employee stock ownership plan). Redwood Acquisition will provide to the hired employees employee benefits which are, in the aggregate, substantially comparable to the employee benefits provided to these employees under our benefit plans or to similarly situated employees of Redwood Acquisition (other than its employee stock ownership plan).

Redwood Acquisition will give each hired employee credit for his or her years of service with Qumu for purposes of determining eligibility, vesting, and, for any paid time off program, for level of benefit under Redwood Acquisition s employee benefit plans in which such hired employee becomes eligible to participate after the end of the employee transition period, to the extent such service would have been counted as service under Redwood Acquisition s employee plan had such service been performed for Redwood Acquisition. The asset purchase agreement also requires Redwood Acquisition to provide certain benefits under its health, welfare or fringe benefit plans, including waiver all limitations as to preexisting conditions, exclusions and waiting periods and credit for any deductibles and maximum out-of-pocket requirements.

Except as included in the assumed liabilities, we will be responsible for all liabilities and obligations for the employment with us, remuneration by us, or cessation of employment with us of any disc publishing employee (excluding any disc publishing employee of an acquired subsidiary) for all periods prior to and including the closing date. We are obligated to pay each disc publishing employee, including for all hired employees (other than disc publishing employees employed by an acquired subsidiary) in accordance with legal requirements and our past practices, all employee compensation and employment benefits for all periods through the closing, excluding all amounts owed to the U.S. disc publishing employees for accrued and unused vacation or other paid leave (which amounts will be assumed by Redwood Acquisition, but only to the extent such amounts are included in the final net book value). We will continue to be responsible for the medical, life insurance, disability and other welfare plan expenses and benefits for the hired employees with respect to claims incurred by such employees or their covered dependents prior to the closing of the Asset Sale Transaction. We will also be responsible for all legally mandated continuation of health care coverage for all employees and any of their covered dependents who experience a qualifying event on or prior to the date of the closing.

Table of Contents

The employee transition agreement will provide for the continuation of employee benefits by Redwood Acquisition for the U.S. disc publishing employees in the ordinary course of business during the employee transition period consistent with the asset purchase agreement provisions, and the assumption by buyer (without purchase price adjustment) of any accrued and unused vacation or other paid leave relating to the employee transition period.

Prior to the end of the employee transition period, Redwood Acquisition will deliver to us true and correct copies of the fully executed severance agreements with certain disc publishing employees.

Non-Assignable Assets

If the assignment of any acquired asset requires the consent of any person and such consent is not obtained at or prior to the closing, Qumu and Redwood Acquisition will use their reasonable best efforts for a period not to exceed 90 days following the closing to obtain the written consent of such other person to the assignment and the asset purchase agreement will not constitute an agreement to assign such acquired asset until such consent is obtained. Further, at Redwood Acquisition s election, for a period not to exceed 90 days following the closing, we will continue to maintain and/or perform any such acquired asset at the direction and for the risk and benefit of Redwood Acquisition.

Qumu Name; Rimage Name

Promptly after the closing, Redwood Acquisition will take such action as is required to change the name of Qumu Europe to a name that does not include the word Qumu or any derivative thereof. Further, promptly after the closing, we and any Retained Subsidiaries will cease to use the Rimage name or any derivative thereof for any purpose.

We expect that following the closing of the Asset Sale Transaction, Redwood Acquisition will change its corporate name to include the word Rimage or some derivative thereof.

Financing

One of the conditions to the obligation of Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition to close the Asset Sale Transaction is that Redwood Acquisition will have obtained financing pursuant to a commitment letter from U.S. Bank National Association (or alternate financing under certain circumstances).

Under the asset purchase agreement, Equus Holdings will use its reasonable best efforts to do all things necessary, proper or advisable to arrange and obtain the financing on the terms and conditions described in the bank commitment letter. Equus Holdings must give us prompt notice upon becoming aware of any breach of the bank commitment letter that would reasonably be expected to prevent Equus Holdings from obtaining the financing or would reasonably be expected to lead to termination of the bank commitment letter. Equus Holdings also must keep us informed promptly and in reasonable detail of the status of its efforts to arrange the financing and may not permit any material amendment or modification to be made to, or any waiver of any material provision or remedy under, the bank commitment letter if such amendment, modification or waiver can reasonably be expected to delay the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.

If all conditions in the bank commitment letter have been satisfied or, upon funding, will be satisfied, Equus Holdings will use its reasonable best efforts to cause U.S. Bank to fund on the closing date the financing required to consummate the Asset Sale Transaction.

Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition may amend the bank commitment letter if the amendment would not impose new, additional or expanded conditions for the receipt of the financing, reasonably be expected to prevent, or materially delay or impair, the availability of the financing or reasonably be expected to adversely impact the ability of Equus Holdings and/or Redwood Acquisition to timely consummate the Asset Sale Transaction.

If at any time prior to closing Equus Holdings no longer believes in good faith that it will be able to obtain the financing, Equus Holdings must promptly notify us and must use its reasonable best efforts to arrange all of any such portion of the contemplated financing (excluding any amounts that are contemplated to be replaced by Equus Holdings cash on hand) from alternative sources. This financing from an alternative source, or alternate financing,

Table of Contents

must provide for funds not less than the amount required for consummation of Asset Sale Transaction and sufficient to satisfy all of Equus Holdings obligations under the asset sale agreement, and must provide specified terms and conditions (other than with respect to amount) not less beneficial in the aggregate to Equus Holdings and its affiliates. As used in the asset purchase agreement and this proxy statement as the context may require, financing is also be deemed to include any alternate financing.

Prior to the closing, we must use our reasonable best efforts to cooperate in connection with the financing, including to the extent requested by Equus Holdings or U.S. Bank, and subject to certain conditions, permitting agents and lenders to inspect disc publishing business records and premises and consult with disc publishing business officers, employees, counsel and agents with respect to the disc publishing business.

Reorganization

In the asset purchase agreement, Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition have consented to certain actions prior to the closing, including our formation of Qumu Germany and Qumu Japan, the transfer of our equity interest in Qumu Europe to Qumu Germany, the transfer of any excluded assets owned by Qumu Europe to Qumu Germany and by Rimage Japan to Qumu Japan, and the additional contribution of capital to the Acquired Subsidiaries in connection with these reorganization actions. Redwood Acquisition will be provided a reasonable opportunity to review the agreements related to these reorganization actions and the form of any transfer agreements must be in a form reasonably acceptable to Redwood Acquisition.

If the assignment of any excluded asset to Qumu Germany or Qumu Japan requires the consent of any person that is not obtained at or prior to the closing, the parties will use their reasonable best efforts for a period not to exceed 90 days following the closing to obtain the written consent of such other person, and at our election, for a period not to exceed 90 days following the closing, the entity transferring the excluded asset will continue to maintain and/or perform any such excluded asset at the direction and for the risk and benefit of that transferring entity.

Prior to closing, we may continue to use intercompany accounts in the ordinary course of business and, subject to the reasonable approval of Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition, determine the resolution for the treatment and termination of the intercompany accounts, but there must be no balances in all intercompany accounts immediately before the effective time of closing.

Permits

If Redwood Acquisition has not obtained certain specified permits before or on the closing date, the parties will use their reasonable best efforts to obtain each such permit, and we will enter into arrangements that are reasonably satisfactory to us and Redwood Acquisition so that we will continue to conduct the disc publishing business until Redwood Acquisition obtains such permit, at the direction and for the risk and benefit of Redwood Acquisition.

Termination

The asset purchase agreement may be terminated prior to the closing in certain circumstances summarized as follows:

by mutual written consent of the parties;

by us or Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings if the closing does not occur on or before July 31, 2014;

by Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings or by us if a court of competent jurisdiction or other government entity shall have issued a final and nonappealable order, or shall have taken any other action, having the effect of permanently restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the Asset Sale Transaction, or a legal requirement or order shall be in effect that makes consummation of the Asset Sale Transaction;

Table of Contents

by Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings or by us if a meeting of our shareholders to approve the asset purchase agreement shall have been held and completed and the asset purchase agreement shall not have been adopted at such meeting by the required shareholder vote:

by Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings, at any time prior to the adoption of the asset purchase agreement by the required shareholder vote, if our board shall have failed to recommend that our shareholders vote to approve the asset purchase agreement, there shall have occurred a change in the recommendation of our board of directors, our board shall have approved, endorsed or recommended any acquisition proposal, we shall have failed to include the recommendation by our board of directors that shareholders vote in favor of the Asset Sale Proposal, or our board fails to publicly reaffirm its recommendation that shareholders vote in favor of the Asset Sale Proposal within seven business days after our receipt of a written request by Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings following the date of any acquisition proposal;

by us, prior to obtaining the required shareholder vote, in order to enter into a definitive agreement to effect a transaction contemplated by a superior proposal immediately following a change in the recommendation of our board of directors in response to such superior proposal, but we must enter into such definitive agreement contemporaneous with our termination of the asset purchase agreement;

by Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings if any of our representations and warranties become inaccurate in any material respect as of a date subsequent to the date of the asset purchase agreement, such that a specified condition to closing would not be satisfied if the condition were then being tested, and such inaccuracy, if capable of cure, cannot, in Redwood Acquisition s reasonable judgment, be cured by July 31, 2014;

by Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings if any of our covenants contained in the asset purchase agreement shall have been breached in any material respect, such that a specified condition to closing would not be satisfied, and such breach, if capable of cure, cannot, in Redwood Acquisition s reasonable judgment, be cured by July 31, 2014;

by us if any of Redwood Acquisition s or Equus Holdings representations and warranties shall have become inaccurate in any material respect as of a date subsequent to the date of the asset purchase agreement (as if made on such subsequent date), such that a specified condition to closing would not be satisfied if the condition were then being tested, and such inaccuracy, if capable of cure, cannot, in our reasonable judgment, be cured by July 31, 2014;

by us if any of Redwood Acquisition s or Equus Holdings covenants contained in the asset purchase agreement shall have been breached in any material respect such that a specified condition to closing would not be satisfied, and such breach, if capable of cure, cannot, in our reasonable judgment, be cured by July 31, 2014; or

by us if Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings are unable to obtain financing on or before all of the other closing conditions have been satisfied or waived.

The termination of the asset purchase agreement generally relieves the parties from their obligations, except that certain obligations will survive any termination including obligations relating to confidentiality, remedies, and termination fees, and the termination of the asset purchase agreement will not relieve any party from any liability for fraud.

Remedies; Termination Fees

Any party terminating the asset purchase agreement will have the right to seek recovery of damages as a result of any willful breach by the other party of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement contained in the asset purchase agreement or fraudulent or willful misrepresentation.

We have agreed to pay Redwood Acquisition (or its designee) a buyer termination fee of \$500,000 if the asset purchase agreement is terminated as follows:

Table of Contents

by Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings or by us if a meeting of our shareholders to approve the asset purchase agreement shall have been held and completed and the asset purchase agreement shall not have been adopted at such meeting by the required shareholder vote:

by Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings, at any time prior to the adoption of the asset purchase agreement by the required shareholder vote, if our board shall have failed to recommend that our shareholders vote to approve the asset purchase agreement, there shall have occurred a change in the recommendation of our board of directors, our board shall have approved, endorsed or recommended any acquisition proposal, we shall have failed to include the recommendation by our board of directors that shareholders vote in favor of the Asset Sale Proposal, or our board fails to publicly reaffirm its recommendation that shareholders vote in favor of the Asset Sale Proposal within seven business days after our receipt of a written request by Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings following the date of any acquisition proposal;

by us, on the one hand, or by Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings, on the other hand, if the closing does not occur on or before July 31, 2014:

- o so long as before the date of such termination, an acquisition proposal has been communicated to our shareholders or has been publicly announced or otherwise become publicly known;
- o so long as before the date of such termination, an acquisition proposal has been communicated to our board of directors or our shareholders or has been publicly announced or otherwise become publicly known and, within 12 months after the date of termination, we (i) enter into a definitive agreement for any acquisition proposal or any such acquisition proposal is consummated or (ii) a tender or exchange offer or other acquisition proposal is first publicly announced within 12 months after such termination and is subsequently consummated; or
- o if we are then in material breach of our covenants or agreements, so long as, in any such case, before the date of such breach, an acquisition proposal shall have been communicated to our board of directors or shareholders or shall have been publicly announced or otherwise become publicly known;

(For the purpose of each of the foregoing three conditions, all references to 20% in the definition of acquisition proposal will be deemed to be references to 50%.)

by Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings if any of our covenants contained in the asset purchase agreement shall have been breached in any material respect, such that a specified condition to closing would not be satisfied, and such breach, if capable of cure, cannot, in Redwood Acquisition s reasonable judgment, be cured by July 31, 2014 if we are then in material breach of our covenants or agreements so long as before the date of such breach, an acquisition proposal shall have been communicated to our board of directors or shareholders or shall have been publicly announced or otherwise become publicly known (for the purposes of this condition, all references to 20% in the definition of acquisition proposal will be deemed to be references to 50%);

by Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings if any of our representations and warranties become inaccurate in any material respect as of a date subsequent to the date of the asset purchase agreement, such that a specified condition to closing would not be satisfied if the condition were then being tested, and such inaccuracy, if capable of cure, cannot, in Redwood Acquisition s reasonable judgment, be cured by July 31, 2014 if we are then in material breach of our covenants or agreements so long as before the date of such breach, an acquisition proposal shall have been communicated to our board of directors or shareholders or shall have been publicly announced or otherwise become publicly known (for the purposes of this condition, all references to 20% in the definition of acquisition proposal will be deemed to be references to 50%); or

by us, prior to obtaining the required shareholder vote, in order to enter into a definitive agreement to effect a transaction contemplated by a superior proposal immediately following a change in the recommendation

Table of Contents

of our board of directors in response to such superior proposal, but we must enter into such definitive agreement contemporaneous with our termination of the asset purchase agreement.

Equus Holdings has agreed to pay us a seller termination fee of \$300,000 if Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings are unable to obtain bank financing pursuant to the commitment letter or alternate financing on or before all of the other closing conditions have been satisfied or waived and the asset purchase agreement is terminated by us.

Any termination fees required to be paid are generally required to be paid either within two business days or contemporaneous with the termination of the asset purchase agreement.

Indemnification

All of the representations and warranties contained in this Agreement will survive the Closing and continue in full force and effect for a period of 18 months thereafter, except that that a specified representation and warranty relating to intellectual property will survive the Closing and continue in full force and effect for a period of 12 months thereafter and the representations and warranties identified as fundamental representations will survive indefinitely.

Subject to the limitations described below, we will indemnify Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings and each of their other indemnified persons from and against any loss that Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings incur as a result of or arising out of, the breach of our representations, warranties, covenants or agreements, any excluded liability, any excluded asset, the failure of any party (including Redwood Acquisition) to comply with any legal requirements or tax laws relating to bulk sales or bulk transfers in connection with the Asset Sale Transaction, certain taxes for pre-closing tax periods, and any transaction expenses that are not paid at the closing date and not otherwise reflected in an adjustment to the purchase price.

Subject to the limitations described below, Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings will, jointly and severally, indemnify us and our other indemnified person from and against any loss that we or such other indemnified person incur as a result of or arising out of the breach of any representations, warranties, covenants or agreements made by Redwood Acquisition or Equus Holdings, any assumed liability, certain taxes for post-closing tax periods, and any increase in our taxes or reduction in our tax attributes resulting from certain tax elections with respect to the Acquired Subsidiaries.

We will have no obligation to indemnify Redwood Acquisition, Equus Holdings and their other indemnified persons with respect to breaches of representations and warranties unless and until Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings suffer an aggregate amount of losses by reason of such matters in excess of a deductible amount of \$175,000 and Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings will be entitled to recover only those losses that exceed such amount. This deductible amount does not apply to the representations and warranties identified as fundamental representations.

Each party s maximum aggregate obligation to indemnify the other party and their respective other indemnified persons with respect to breaches of representations and warranties will not exceed a cap amount of \$2.3 million. This cap amount does not apply to the representations and warranties identified as fundamental representations. Further, a party s liability for any losses claimed by the other party and their respective other indemnified persons under the asset purchase agreement may not exceed the purchase price.

Except with respect to certain taxes, Redwood Acquisition s primary means of collecting on any loss that is subject to indemnification by us will through the escrow account, and Redwood Acquisition has no right of collection directly from us for any claims for losses that are less than the amount in the escrow account unless and until the escrow account has been exhausted. Thereafter, and with respect to claims in excess of the escrow account, Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings may seek collection directly from us for losses otherwise subject to indemnification.

Amendment

No amendment, modification or waiver of the asset purchase agreement will be effective unless specifically made in writing and duly signed by the party to be bound by the amendment, modification or waiver.

Table of Contents

Post-Closing Agreements

At the closing of the Asset Sale Transaction, we will enter into an escrow agreement with Redwood Acquisition and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as escrow agent relating to the \$2.3 million escrow amount that will be held in an escrow account to support our indemnification obligations under the asset purchase agreement. At the end of the 15 month escrow period, the funds remaining in the escrow account not subject to outstanding claims will be released to us and any amounts subject to outstanding claims will be released to either us or Redwood Acquisition in accordance with the escrow agreement upon final resolution of the claims.

At the closing of the Asset Sale Transaction, we will also enter into agreements with Redwood Acquisition relating to the post-closing operation of our software business and relating to Redwood Acquisition s operation of the disc publishing business following closing.

At the closing, we and Redwood Acquisition will enter into a mutual transition services agreement by which the parties will provide or receive services to enable each to operate their businesses immediately following the closing date. Under the transition services agreement, we will provide Redwood Acquisition transition services in areas such as finance, marketing, general management and operations support. Redwood Acquisition will provide us with transition services in areas such as information technology and information systems, finance, human resources, and supply chain management. Each party receiving services will pay the party providing services monthly for the direct expenses of the service plus a specified allocation amount depending on service type. Each party has the right upon 30 days prior notice to terminate any transition service it receives. The transition services agreement will terminate fifteen months from the closing date of the Asset Purchase Agreement unless all of the transition services have been earlier terminated by the parties or unless the transition services agreement is terminated earlier due to non-payment. The transition services agreement also contains confidentiality provisions that prohibit each party from using or disclosing the confidential information of the other received pursuant to or in connection with the transition services agreement.

At the closing of the Asset Sale Transaction, we will transfer to Redwood Acquisition ownership of the real property located at 7725 Washington Avenue South that currently serves as our headquarters and enter into a lease with Redwood Acquisition pursuant to which we will have the non-exclusive shared right to use the building and ancillary land located at 7725 Washington Avenue South, including the right to use all common areas and the phone, computer and other IT cabling and infrastructure equipment and facilities. The lease will have a six month term, but we may extend the lease, at our sole option, for additional one month periods through the twelfth month following closing. We also have the option to terminate the lease at any time during the term, with or without cause, and without penalty, upon 120 days prior written notice to Redwood Acquisition. Under the lease, we will pay Redwood Acquisition in advance monthly rent of \$19,292, which amount includes the use of the premises, all insurance and utilities.

If Redwood Acquisition does not have certain employee benefit plans in place by closing, we and Redwood Acquisition will enter into an employee transition agreement at closing to provide for the lease of U.S. disc publishing employees to Redwood Acquisition for a transition period of up to 45 days after the closing, subject to extension by mutual written consent.

The employee transition agreement will provide that Redwood Acquisition will reimburse us for all wages, salary, commission, and other employee compensation and benefits of the leased U.S. disc publishing employees incurred during the transition period and for all other liabilities associated with such these employees during the transition period of the type for which Redwood Acquisition would be responsible had Redwood Acquisition hired these employees as of the closing. The employee transition agreement will also provide that during the transition period we will use commercially reasonable efforts to maintain the relationships with these employees and not take certain actions with respect to the compensation, benefits or agreements with these employees.

Table of Contents

PROPOSAL #2 PROPOSAL TO ADJOURN OR POSTPONE THE SPECIAL MEETING

At the special meeting, we are also submitting for shareholder consideration Proposal #2, which is a proposal to permit us to adjourn or postpone the special meeting for the purpose of soliciting additional proxies in the event that, at the special meeting, there are insufficient votes to approve the Asset Sale Proposal. This Proposal #2 is referred to in this proxy statement as the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting.

In this Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting, we are asking you to authorize the holder of any proxy solicited by our board of directors to vote in favor of adjourning the special meeting, and any later adjournments, to another time and place. If our shareholders approve the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting, we could adjourn the special meeting, and any adjourned session of the special meeting, to a later date and use the additional time to solicit additional proxies in favor of the Asset Sale Proposal, including the solicitation of proxies from holders of our common stock that have previously voted against the Asset Sale Proposal. Among other things, approval of the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting could mean that, even if we had received proxies representing a majority of votes against the Asset Sale Proposal, we could adjourn the special meeting without a vote on the Asset Sale Proposal and seek to convince the holders of those shares to change their votes to votes in favor of the Asset Sale Proposal. If you have previously submitted a proxy on either the Asset Sale Proposal or the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting and wish to revoke it upon adjournment or postponement of the special meeting, you may do so.

Our board of directors believes that if the number of shares of our common stock present or represented at the special meeting is insufficient to approve the Asset Sale Proposal, it is in the best interests of our shareholders to enable us, for a limited period of time, to continue to seek to obtain a sufficient number of additional votes to approve the Asset Sale Proposal.

Vote Required

If a quorum is present at the special meeting, the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting will be approved if the number of shares voted in favor of the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting are greater than those voted against this proposal.

Failure to attend the special meeting in person or by proxy, abstentions and broker non-votes will have no effect on the outcome of the vote on the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting if it is submitted for shareholder approval when a quorum is present at the meeting. If a quorum is not present at the special meeting, the Proposal to Adjourn or Postpone the Special Meeting will be approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the voting power of our common stock present in person or by proxy at the special meeting. Abstentions would have the same effect as a vote AGAINST this proposal and broker non-votes would have no effect on the outcome of the vote on this proposal if it is submitted for approval when no quorum is present at the special meeting.

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT OUR SHAREHOLDERS VOTE FOR PROPOSAL #2, THE PROPOSAL TO ADJOURN OR POSTPONE THE SPECIAL MEETING.

Table of Contents

RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the special risks described below relating to the Asset Sale Transaction and those risk factors generally associated with our business contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 and our subsequent SEC filings, along with other information provided to you in this proxy statement, in deciding how to vote on the Asset Sale Proposal. See WHERE YOU CAN FIND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION on page 65. The special risks described below are not the only ones facing us. Additional risks not presently known to us or that we currently believe are immaterial may also impair our business operations. If any of the following special risks actually occurs, our business, financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected, the market price of our common stock may decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment.

The Asset Sale Transaction may not be completed even if the shareholders approve the Asset Sale Proposal.

Redwood Acquisition s and Equus Holdings obligation to close the Asset Sale Transaction is subject to a number of conditions, including approval by our shareholders, and Redwood Acquisition obtaining financing for the Asset Sale Transaction, as well as other closing conditions set forth in the asset purchase agreement. We cannot control some of these conditions and we cannot assure you that they will be satisfied or that Equus Holdings and Redwood Acquisition will waive any that are not satisfied.

There can be no certainty, nor can we provide any assurance to shareholders, that, even if the shareholders approve the Asset Sale Proposal, these conditions will be satisfied or, if satisfied, when they will be satisfied. If the Asset Sale Transaction is not completed by July 31, 2014, either we or Redwood Acquisition and Equus Holdings may terminate the asset purchase agreement.

The failure to complete the Asset Sale Transaction may result in a decrease in the market value of our common stock and limit our ability to grow and implement our software business strategies.

If the Asset Sale Transaction is not completed, we may be subject to a number of risks, including the following:

there may not be another party interested in and able to purchase the disc publishing business;

if an alternate purchaser and transaction is identified, such alternate transaction may not result in an equivalent price to what is proposed in the Asset Sale Transaction;

the trading price of our common stock may decline to the extent that the current market price reflects a market assumption that the Asset Sale Transaction will be completed;

our financial position will be negatively impacted by the expenses we have incurred with respect to the Asset Sale Transaction, even if we receive the \$300,000 seller termination fee;

we may be required to pay the \$500,000 buyer termination fee if the asset purchase agreement is terminated under certain circumstances;

our ability to grow our software business may suffer because of the diversion of management attention to continuing the disc publishing business; and

our relationships with our customers, suppliers and employees may be damaged and our business may be harmed. The occurrence of any of these events individually or in combination could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations and the market value of our common stock may decline.

Table of Contents

While the Asset Sale Transaction is pending, it creates uncertainty about our future which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

While the Asset Sale Transaction is pending, it creates uncertainty about our future. As a result of this uncertainty, our current or potential customers of either the disc publishing or software businesses may decide to delay, defer or cancel orders with us pending completion or termination of the Asset Sale Transaction. In addition, while the Asset Sale Transaction is pending, we are subject to a number of risks, including:

the diversion of management and employee attention from our day-to-day business;

the potential disruption to business partners and other service providers;

the loss of employees who may depart due to concerns regarding uncertainty relating to their jobs following the closing of the Asset Sale Transaction; and

we may be unable to respond effectively to competitive pressures, industry developments and future opportunities.

The occurrence of any of these events individually or in combination could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Additionally, we have incurred substantial transaction costs and diversion of management resources in connection with the Asset Sale Transaction, and we will continue to do so until the closing.

The disc publishing business has historically generated a substantial portion of our revenue and in order to succeed after the Asset Sale Transaction, we will need to achieve higher revenue, generate positive cash flows and achieve profitability with our software business.

In the Asset Sale Transaction, we are selling our entire disc publishing business which has historically been the source of a substantial portion of our revenue. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, the disc publishing business accounted for \$64.7 million, or 78%, of our total revenues of \$82.4 million, while our software business accounted for \$17.7 million, or 22%, of our total revenues. For the three months ended March 31, 2014, the disc publishing business accounted for \$14.9 million, or 79.2%, of our total revenues of \$18.8 million while our software business accounted for \$3.9 million, or 20.7%, of our total revenues. We intend to use the net proceeds from the Asset Sale Transaction to grow our software business and for general working capital purposes. There is no guarantee that we will be able to achieve sustained growth in our software business, achieve profitability in our software business, or generate positive cash flows from our software business, or in new products or business opportunities we may pursue.

In addition, given the fact that following the closing of the Asset Sale Transaction the sole focus of our business will be our software business, our management may face even greater expectations from investors and analysts to more quickly produce improved quarterly financial results for our software business as compared to the periods prior to the Asset Sale Transaction. This might cause distractions for our management and our board of directors and might at times conflict with our desire to build long-term shareholder value.

Following the Asset Sale Transaction, our business could be harmed if we do not effectively manage the transition services we receive from Redwood Acquisition and timely develop our own capabilities or if we do not cost effectively provide transition services to Redwood Acquisition.

Pursuant to the terms of the transition services agreement, Qumu and Redwood Acquisition have each agreed to provide the other with certain transition services for a term expiring fifteen months from the closing date of the Asset Sale Transaction, but either party may terminate any of the transition services it receives at any time during the term of the transition services agreement upon 30 days prior written notice. The delivery of transition services by us and the monitoring of transition services received by us will divert management and employee attention, and may involve substantial amounts of employee time and resources. Our inability to effectively manage our delivery of services to Redwood Acquisition and our receipt of services from Redwood Acquisition under the transition services agreement could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations following the Asset Sale Transaction.

Table of Contents

Further, we will remain substantially dependent on Redwood Acquisition to provide these transition services until we develop our own capabilities through hiring or engage alternative third party service providers. If Redwood Acquisition is unable to provide these services in accordance with the transition services agreement, or if there are delays in developing our own capabilities, our business could be adversely affected.

Following the Asset Sale Transaction, the continuing costs and burdens associated with being a public company will constitute a much larger percentage of our annual revenue.

If the Asset Sale Transaction is completed, we will remain a public company and will continue to be subject to NASDAQ listing standards and SEC rules and regulations, including the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. While all public companies face the costs and burdens associated with being public companies, the costs and burden of being a public company will be a significant portion of our annual revenues, which will be significantly reduced if the disc publishing business is sold in the Asset Sale Transaction.

We expect to incur substantial expenses related to the Asset Sale Transaction and related to the divesture of the disc publishing business following closing.

We expect to incur approximately \$1.4 million in transaction expenses relating to the Asset Sale Transaction. Following the closing of the Asset Sale Transaction, we will incur additional expenses relating to the transition services we will purchase from Redwood Acquisition under the transition services agreement and rental expense under the lease agreement for our current headquarters at 7725 Washington Avenue South. There are many factors beyond our control that could affect the total amount or the timing of the transaction and divestiture expenses. Moreover, many of the expenses that will be incurred are, by their nature, difficult to estimate accurately. Our future operating results and financial condition may be materially adversely affected by transaction and divestiture expenses and transition expense.

Our future results following the Asset Sale Transaction may differ materially from the unaudited pro forma financial statements attached as Appendix C to this proxy statement.

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements attached to this proxy statement as Appendix C presents our historical consolidated financial statements as adjusted to give effect to the contemplated Asset Sale Transaction. The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements reflect the sale of certain assets and assignment of certain liabilities of the disc publishing business, as well as the allocation of certain expenses to the disc publishing business. The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements are not necessarily indicative of the financial condition or results of operations of our software business, which will be our remaining business, following the Asset Sale Transaction. In addition, the assumptions used in preparing the pro forma financial information may not prove to be accurate, and other factors may affect our financial condition and results of operations following the Asset Sale Transaction. Any change in our financial condition or results of operations may cause significant variations in the price of our common stock. See UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS at Appendix C for more information.

Following the Asset Sale Transaction, our profitability and growth will depend on the success of our remaining business, the software business, which is subject to a variety of business risks and uncertainties.

Our software business provides enterprise content distribution software to the rapidly growing enterprise video communications market and is an innovator in the secure mobile delivery of rich content. Any evaluation of our software business and our prospects following the Asset Sale Transaction must be considered in light of the risks and uncertainties stated above, as well as the following:

We may not be successful at implementing our growth strategy;

We may not be successful in developing new products that further our growth strategy;

We have been investing in initiatives that we believe further our strategy and if the return on these investments is lower or develops more slowly than we expect, our operating results may be harmed;

Table of Contents

We face intense competition in all areas of our business and such competition may result in price reductions, lower gross profits and loss of market share:

Technology in our industry evolves rapidly, potentially causing our products to become obsolete, and we must continue to enhance existing products and develop new products to sustain and grow our business;

Adverse economic conditions, particularly those affecting our customers, resellers and distributors, have harmed and may continue to harm our business;

Our sales will decline, and our business will be materially harmed, if our sales and marketing efforts are not effective;

Competition for highly skilled personnel is intense and if we fail to attract and retain talented employees, we may fail to compete effectively;

We sell a significant portion of our products internationally, which exposes us to risks associated with international operations;

If our domestic or international intellectual property rights are not adequately protected, others may offer products similar to ours or independently develop the same or similar technologies or otherwise obtain access to our technology and trade secrets which could depress our product selling prices and gross profit or result in loss of market share;

We may experience significant quarterly and annual fluctuations in our results of operations due to a number of factors;

If enterprise video as a communication medium develops more slowly than we expect it to, our future revenue and profitability will be harmed:

Our software products must be successfully integrated into our customers information technology environments and workflows and changes to these environments, workflows or unforeseen combinations of technologies may harm our customers experience in using our software products;

The growth and functionality of our software products depend upon the solution s effective operation with mobile operating systems and computer networks;

If we lose access to third-party licenses, our software product development and production may be delayed or we may incur additional expense to modify our products or products in development;

If the limited amount of open source software that is incorporated into our software products were to become unavailable or if we violate the terms of open source licenses, it could adversely affect sales of our products, which could disrupt our business and harm our financial results:

We encounter long sales cycles with software business, which could adversely affect our operating results in a given period;

Any failure of major elements of the operations of our software business could lead to significant disruptions in the ability to serve customers, which could damage our reputation, reduce our revenues or otherwise harm our business;

Changes in laws and regulations related to the Internet or changes in the Internet infrastructure itself may diminish the demand for our software products, and could have a negative impact on our business; and

Expanding laws, regulations and customer requirements relating to data security and privacy may adversely affect sales of our software products and result in increased compliance costs.

If we are unable to address these risks, our business, results of operations and prospects following the closing of the Asset Sale Transaction could suffer.

Table of Contents

HOUSEHOLDING OF MATERIALS

Some banks, brokers and other nominee record holders may be participating in the practice of householding. This means that only one copy of this proxy statement may have been sent to multiple shareholders in a household. We will promptly deliver, upon oral or written request, a separate copy of the proxy statement to any shareholder residing at an address to which only one copy was mailed. Requests for additional copies should be directed in writing to a shareholder s broker, bank or other nominee holding shares of our common stock for such shareholder or to us at Qumu Corporation, 7725 Washington Ave. S., Minneapolis, MN 55439, Attention: Secretary, or call our Secretary at (952) 683-7900. Shareholders wishing to receive separate copies of our proxy statements in the future, and shareholders sharing an address that wish to receive a single copy of our proxy statements if they are receiving multiple copies of our proxy statements, should contact their bank, broker or other nominee record holder, or may contact the Secretary at the above address.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy these reports, statements or other information we file at the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference room. Our SEC filings are also available to the public from commercial document retrieval services and at the website maintained by the SEC at www.sec.gov. The reports and other information that we file with the SEC are also available in the Investors section of our corporate website at www.qumu.com, which is located at www.qumu.com/about/investor-relations. Our website address is provided as an inactive textual reference only. The information provided on our website is not part of this proxy statement, and therefore is not incorporated herein by reference.

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference into this proxy statement, which means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to other documents filed separately with the SEC. The information incorporated by reference is deemed to be part of this proxy statement, except for any information superseded by information in this proxy statement or incorporated by reference subsequent to the date of this proxy statement. This proxy statement incorporates by reference the documents set forth below that we have previously filed with the SEC. These documents contain important information about us and our financial condition and are incorporated by reference into this proxy statement.

The following Qumu Corporation (formerly known as Rimage Corporation) filings with the SEC are incorporated by reference:

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013;

Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2014 Annual Meeting of Shareholders filed on April 15, 2014;

Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2014;

Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 24, 2014 filed on April 24, 2014; and

Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 25, 2014 filed on April 25, 2014.

We also incorporate by reference into this proxy statement additional documents that we may file with the SEC between the date of this proxy statement and the earlier of the date of the special meeting of shareholders or the termination of the asset purchase agreement. These documents include periodic reports, such as Annual Reports on Form 10-K and Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, as well as Current Reports on Form 8-K and proxy soliciting materials.

Any person, including any beneficial owner, to whom this proxy statement is delivered may request a copy of this proxy statement and any of the documents incorporated by reference in this proxy statement, without charge, by written request directed to the attention of our Secretary at Qumu Corporation, 7725 Washington Ave. S., Minneapolis, MN 55439, or by calling our Secretary at (952) 683-7900, or from the SEC through the SEC s website at the address provided above.

Table of Contents

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS 2015 ANNUAL MEETING

The proxy rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission permit our shareholders, after timely notice to us, to present proposals for shareholder action in our proxy statement where such proposals are consistent with applicable law, pertain to matters appropriate for shareholder action and are not properly omitted by our action in accordance with the proxy rules. In order for a shareholder proposal to be considered for inclusion in the proxy statement for the 2015 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, the proposal must be received by the Secretary of Qumu Corporation in writing at our corporate offices, 7725 Washington Avenue South, Edina, Minnesota 55439, no later than December 16, 2014.

Pursuant to our bylaws, in order for any other proposal to be properly brought before the next annual meeting by a shareholder, including a nominee for director to be considered at such annual meeting, the shareholder must give written notice of such shareholder s intent to bring a matter before the annual meeting, or nominate the director, no later than December 16, 2014. Each such notice must set forth certain information with respect to the shareholder who intends to bring such matter before the meeting and the business desired to be conducted, as set forth in greater detail in our bylaws. If we receive notice of a shareholder proposal after December 16, 2014, such proposal also will be considered untimely pursuant to Rules 14a-4 and 14a-5(e) and the persons named in proxies solicited by the Board of Directors for our 2014 Annual Meeting of Shareholders may exercise discretionary voting power with respect to such proposal.

OTHER MATTERS

As of the date of this proxy statement, our board of directors does not know of any business to be presented at the special meeting other than as set forth in the notice accompanying this proxy statement. If any other matters should properly come before the special meeting, or any adjournment or postponement of the special meeting, it is intended that the shares represented by proxies will be voted with respect to such matters in accordance with the judgment of the persons voting the proxies.

Your vote is very important. Whether or not you plan to attend the special meeting of shareholders, please vote by proxy over the Internet, by telephone or by mailing the enclosed proxy card.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Sherman L. Black Chief Executive Officer Minneapolis, Minnesota May 27, 2014

66

Table of Contents

APPENDIX A

ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT

by and among

EQUUS HOLDINGS, INC., as Parent

REDWOOD ACQUISITION, INC., as Buyer,

and

QUMU CORPORATION as Seller

April 24, 2014

Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
ARTICLE 1	DEFINITIONS	1
ARTICLE 2 I	PURCHASE AND SALE OF ASSETS	12
2.1	Purchase and Sale	12
2.2	Excluded Assets	14
2.3	Assumed Liabilities	15
2.4	Excluded Liabilities	16
ARTICLE 3 I	PURCHASE PRICE	17
3.1	Purchase Price	17
3.2	Purchase Price Adjustment	18
3.3	Allocation	20
ARTICLE 41	REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES	20
4.1	Organization, Power and Authorization	20
4.2	Binding Effect; Noncontravention; Consents	20
4.3	Acquired Subsidiaries	21
4.4	Financial Statements; Undisclosed Liabilities	21
4.5	Events Subsequent to the Latest Balance Sheet	22
4.6	Title to Assets; Sufficiency	23
4.7	Compliance With Laws	24
4.8	Tax Matters	25
4.9	Environmental Matters	27
4.10	Intellectual Property	27
4.11	Real Estate	29
4.12	Litigation	30
4.13	Employee Benefits	31
4.14	Contracts	32
4.15	Brokerage	33
4.16	Permits and Licenses	33
4.17	Insurance	34
4.18	Affiliate Transactions	34
4.19	Customer and Suppliers	34
4.20	Employee Matters	34
4.21	Accounts Receivable	36
4.22	Inventory	36
4.23	Product Warranties	36
4.24	Product Liability	37
4.25	Disclosure Documents	37
4.26	Fairness Opinion	37
4.27	Disclaimer of Other Representations and Warranties	37
	A-i	

Table of Contents

ARTICLE 5	REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF BUYER	38
5.1	Organization, Power and Authorization	38
5.2	Binding Effect and Noncontravention	38
5.3	Brokerage	38
5.4	Litigation	39
5.5	Availability of Funds	39
5.6	Information Supplied	39
5.7	Independent Investigation	40
ARTICLE 6	COVENANTS	40
6.1	Conduct of the Business	40
6.2	Access to Business	41
6.3	Confidentiality	41
6.4	Consents, Approvals and Filings	41
6.5	Notice of Developments	42
6.6	Preparation of the Proxy Statement; Shareholder Meeting	42
6.7	No Solicitation of Transactions	43
6.8	Covenant Not to Compete	46
6.9	Preservation of and Access to Books and Records	48
6.10	Tax Matters	48
6.11	Employment Matters	50
6.12	Non-assignable Assets	53
6.13	Qumu Name	53
6.14	Financing	53
6.15	Reorganization	55
6.16	Permits	55
ARTICLE 7	SURVIVAL AND INDEMNIFICATION	56
7.1	Survival of Representations and Warranties	56
7.2	Indemnification Obligations of Seller	56
7.3	Indemnification Obligations of Buyer and Parent	57
7.4	Limitations on Indemnification	57
7.5	Indemnification Procedures	58
7.6	Exclusive Remedy	59
7.7	Specific Performance	60
7.8	Indemnification Adjusts Purchase Price	60
ARTICLE 8	CLOSING	60
8.1	Closing Date	60
8.2	Conditions of Buyer s and Parent s Obligation	60
8.3	Conditions of Seller s Obligation	62
ARTICLE 9	FERMINATION	63
9.1	Termination	63
9.2	Effect of Termination	65
9.3	Remedies; Termination Fee	65
	A-ii	

Table of Contents

ARTICLE 10	MISCELLANEOUS		67
10.1	Transaction Expenses		67
10.2	Amendments		67
10.3	Successors and Assigns		67
10.4	Governing Law		67
10.5	Notices		67
10.6	Schedules and Exhibits		68
10.7	Counterparts		68
10.8	No Third Party Beneficiaries		69
10.9	Headings		69
10.10	Entire Agreement		69
10.11	Severability		69
10.12	Construction		69
10.13	Public Announcements		69
10.14	Bulk Transfer Laws		69
10.15	Jurisdiction		69
10.16	Waiver of Jury Trial		70
10.17	Interpretation		70
		A-iii	

Table of Contents

EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

Exhibit A	Net Book Value Methodology
Exhibit B	Bill of Sale
Exhibit C	Escrow Agreement
Exhibit D	Intellectual Property Assignment
Exhibit E	Mutual Transition Services Agreement
Exhibit F	Lease (Minnesota)
Exhibit G	EBITDA Methodology

Disclosure Schedule

Schedule 1.1	Severance Agreements
Schedule 2.1	Other Acquired Assets
Schedule 2.1(b)	Tangible Personal Property
Schedule 2.1(c)	Intellectual Property

Schedule 2.1(d) Leases

Schedule 2.1(f)

Schedule 2.1(m)

Schedule 2.2(g)

Schedule 2.2(g)

Schedule 2.2(s)

Acquired Contracts

Telephone Numbers, Etc.

Excluded Contracts

Other Excluded Assets

Schedule 2.2(t) Excluded Acquired Subsidiary Assets

Schedule 2.3(e) Other Assumed Liabilities Schedule 2.4 Other Excluded Liabilities

Schedule 3.3 Allocation

Schedule 6.4 Required Consents

Schedule 6.8(c) Prospective Business Customers
Schedule 6.8(d) Law Enforcement Partners
Schedule 6.14(d) Alternate Financing Terms

A-iv

Table of Contents

ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT

THIS ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT (this Agreement) is made as of April 24, 2014 (the Effective Date), by and among Equus Holdings, Inc., a Minnesota corporation (Parent), Redwood Acquisition, Inc., a Minnesota corporation (Buyer), and Qumu Corporation, a Minnesota corporation (Seller). Parent, Buyer and Seller are each referred to in this Agreement as a Party.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Seller is engaged in the business of manufacturing and distributing disc publishing solutions that label, archive, distribute and protect content on CDs, DVDs and Blu-ray discs through its Disc Publishing business which includes the Acquired Subsidiaries (the Business).

WHEREAS, Seller is also engaged in the business of providing enterprise content distribution software for the video communications market and the delivery of secure digital content to computer, tablets and mobile devices (the Retained Business).

WHEREAS, Seller wishes to sell and assign to Buyer, and Buyer wishes to purchase and assume from Seller, certain of the assets of Seller used in the Business and certain liabilities of the Business, subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein.

WHEREAS, Parent is the sole shareholder of Buyer and, as such Parent will substantially benefit from the transactions contemplated herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1 DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms have the meanings set forth below:

Acceptable Confidentiality Agreement means a confidentiality agreement that contains confidentiality provisions of the relevant third party that has made an Acquisition Proposal that are no less favorable in any substantive respect to Seller than those contained in the Confidentiality Agreement.

Acceptance Notice has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2(b).

Acquired Assets has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1.

Acquired Contracts has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(f).

Table of Contents

Acquired Subsidiaries means Qumu Europe, Rimage RIT, Rimage Singapore and Rimage Japan.

Acquisition Proposal means any indication of interest, offer or proposal (other than an indication of interest, offer or proposal made or submitted by Buyer, Parent or any Affiliate thereof) contemplating or otherwise relating to any transaction or series of transactions involving any: (a) merger, consolidation, share exchange, business combination or other similar transaction involving Seller that, if consummated, would result in a third party acquiring 20% or more of the outstanding voting power of Seller or the surviving entity of such transaction immediately following such transaction, (b) sale, lease or other disposition by Seller (including by way of merger, consolidation, share exchange, business combination, joint venture, sale of shares of capital stock of Seller or otherwise), of assets of Seller representing 20% or more of the assets of Seller, or from which 20% or more of the consolidated revenues or net income of Seller are derived (or of substantially all of the Acquired Assets as provided herein), (c) issuance of shares of capital stock of Seller representing 20% or more of the voting power of Seller or (d) tender offer or exchange offer that, if consummated, would result in any Person beneficially owning more than 20% of the shares of capital stock of Seller then outstanding.

Active Business Customer has the meaning set forth in Section 6.8(c).

Affiliate of any particular Person means any other Person controlling, controlled by or under common control with such particular Person. For the purposes of this definition, control means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a Person whether through the ownership of voting securities, contract or otherwise.

Agreement has the meaning set forth in the preamble.

Agreement Period has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2(c).

Alternate Financing has the meaning set forth in Section 6.14(d).

Anti-Bribery Laws has the meaning set forth in Section 4.7(b).

Anti-Boycott Laws means (a) the 1977 amendments to the U.S. Export Administration Act (50 U.S.C. App. §§ 2401-2420) and the regulations and guidelines issued pursuant thereto, including the Export Administration Regulations (15 C.F.R. Parts 730-774) administered by the Bureau of Industry and Security of the U.S. Department of Commerce; and (b) the Ribicoff Amendment to the 1976 Tax Reform Act (Section 999 of the Code).

Assumed Liabilities has the meaning set forth in Section 2.3.

Bank has the meaning set forth in Section 5.5.

Bank Commitment Letter has the meaning set forth in Section 5.5.

Table of Contents

Benefit Plan means any (i) employee benefit plan (as such term is defined in Section 3(3) of ERISA) that Seller or an ERISA Affiliate currently maintains or contributes to, or has any liability, for the benefit of any current or former employee, officer or director (or their beneficiaries), and (ii) any other employee benefit plan, program or arrangement involving compensation, deferred compensation, supplemental retirement, bonus, equity based awards, incentive, insurance coverage, severance, retention, medical, dental, vision, transportation, disability, paid time off, or fringe benefits that Seller or an ERISA Affiliate currently maintains or contributes to, or has any liability, for the benefit of any current or former employee, officer, or director (or their beneficiaries) of the Business.

Bill of Sale has the meaning set forth in Section 8.2(h)(i).

BriefCam means BriefCam, Ltd., an entity formed under the laws of Israel.

Business has the meaning set forth in the recitals.

Business Day means any day (other than a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday in Minnesota) on which federally-insured financial institutions are open in Minnesota.

Business Intellectual Property means the Intellectual Property primarily used or held primarily for use in connection with the Business.

Business Registered Intellectual Property has the meaning set forth in Section 4.10(a).

Buyer has the meaning set forth in the preamble.

Buyer Termination Fee has the meaning set forth in Section 9.3(b).

Cap has the meaning set forth in Section 7.4(c).

Change of Seller Board Recommendation has the meaning set forth in Section 6.7(d).

Closing has the meaning set forth in Section 8.1.

Closing Balance Sheet has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2(a).

Closing Calculation has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2(a).

Closing Date has the meaning set forth in Section 8.1.

Closing Income Statement has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2(a).

COBRA has the meaning set forth in Section 4.13(e).

Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Table of Contents

Computer Systems has the meaning set forth in Section 4.10(g).

Confidentiality Agreement means the Confidentiality Agreement dated February 4, 2014 between Seller and Parent.

Conflict of Interest has the meaning set forth in Section 7.5(a).

Deductible has the meaning set forth in Section 7.4(a).

Disclosure Schedule means the disclosure schedule prepared by Seller attached to this Agreement which sets forth the exceptions to the representations and warranties contained in Article 4, and certain other information called for by the Agreement.

EBITDA means earnings of the Business before interest, tax, depreciation, amortization and extraordinary and non-recurring charges (including Transaction Expenses), as determined in accordance with GAAP used to prepare the Latest Income Statement, consistently applied, and the principles set forth on Exhibit G for the period beginning on June 1, 2014 and ending on the Closing Date, if the Closing Date occurs after June 1, 2014.

Effective Date has the meaning set forth in the preamble.

Employee List has the meaning set forth in Section 4.20(1).

Employees means the employees of Seller and each of the Acquired Subsidiaries who are engaged primarily in the Business immediately prior to the Closing, including the individuals whose names are set forth on Section 4.20(1) of the Disclosure Schedule. For avoidance of doubt, Employees shall exclude the employees of Seller and the Acquired Subsidiaries whose names are set forth on Section 4.20(1) of the Disclosure Schedule and designated as an Excluded Employee.

Employee Transition Agreement has the meaning set forth in Section 6.11(a).

Employee Transition Period has the meaning set forth in Section 6.11(a).

Environmental Laws means all Legal Requirements concerning public health and safety, occupational safety and health hazards, pollution or protection of the environment (including, without limitation, ambient air, surface water, ground water, land surface or subsurface strata), including without limitation all those relating to the presence, use, production, generation, handling, transportation, treatment, storage, disposal, distribution, labeling, testing, processing, discharge, release, threatened release, control, or cleanup of any hazardous materials, substances or wastes, chemical substances or mixtures, pesticides, pollutants, contaminants, toxic chemicals, petroleum products or byproducts, asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyls, noise, or radiation.

ERISA means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.

Table of Contents

ERISA Affiliate means any entity which, together with Seller, is a member of (a) a controlled group of corporations (as defined in Section 414(b) of the Code), (b) a group of trades or businesses under common control (as defined in Section 414(c) of the Code), or (c) an affiliated service group (as defined under Section 414(m) or the Code or the regulations under Section 414(o) of the Code).

Escrow Account means the escrow account with the Escrow Agent, to be governed by the terms of the Escrow Agreement.

Escrow Agent means Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.

Escrow Agreement $\,$ means the Escrow Agreement between Seller, Buyer and the Escrow Agent, substantially in the form attached as $\,$ Exhibit $\,$ C.

Escrow Amount means \$2.3 million.

Estimated Closing Balance Sheet has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1(b).

Estimated EBITDA means EBITDA estimated in good faith by Seller pursuant to Section 3.1(b).

Estimated Net Book Value means the Net Book Value estimated in good faith by Seller pursuant to Section 3.1(b).

Estimated Rimage Sub Cash means the Rimage Sub Cash estimated in good faith by Seller pursuant to Section 3.1(b).

Exchange Act means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Excluded Assets has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2.

Excluded Contracts has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2(e).

Excluded Liabilities has the meaning set forth in Section 2.4.

Export Controls has the meaning set forth in Section 4.7(c).

FCPA means the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act.

Final EBITDA means EBITDA as finally determined pursuant to Section 3.2.

Final Net Book Value means the Net Book Value as finally determined pursuant to Section 3.2.

Final Rimage Sub Cash means the Rimage Sub Cash as finally determined pursuant to Section 3.2.

Table of Contents

Financial Statements has the meaning set forth in Section 4.4.

Financing has the meaning set forth in Section 5.5.

Foreign Benefit Plan has the meaning set forth in Section 4.13(a).

Fundamental Representations means (i) with respect to Seller, the representations and warranties of Seller in Section 4.1, Section 4.2, Section 4.6(a), Section 4.8 and Section 4.15 and (ii) with respect to Parent and Buyer, the representations and warranties of Parent and Buyer in Section 5.1, Section 5.2 and Section 5.3.

GAAP means United States generally accepted accounting principles as in effect from time to time, consistently applied.

Government Entity means any (a) nation, principality, state, commonwealth, province, territory, county, municipality, district or other jurisdiction of any nature, (b) federal, provincial, state, local, municipal, foreign or other government, (c) governmental or quasi governmental authority of any nature, (d) multi-national organization or body, or (e) Person exercising, or entitled to exercise, any executive, legislative, judicial, arbitrational, administrative, regulatory, police, military or taxing authority or power of any nature.

Government Official has the meaning set forth in Section 4.7(b).

Hazardous Substances means pollutants, contaminants, hazardous substances, hazardous wastes, petroleum and fractions thereof, and all other chemicals, wastes, substances and materials listed in or regulated by or identified in any Environmental Law.

Hired Employees has the meaning set forth in Section 6.11(b).

Import Laws has the meaning set forth in Section 4.7(c).

Inactive U.S. Employees has the meaning set forth in Section 6.11(b).

Indemnification Claim Notice has the meaning set forth in Section 7.5(a)(i).

Indemnified Party means a Party who is seeking indemnification under Section 7.2 or 7.3.

Indemnifying Party means a Party from whom indemnification is being sought under Section 7.2 or 7.3.

Independent Auditors has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2(c).

Insurance Policies has the meaning set forth in Section 4.17.

Table of Contents

Intellectual Property means all of the following: (a) patents, patent applications and patent disclosures, (b) trademarks, service marks, corporate names, trade names, slogans, brand names, logos and Internet domain names, (c) copyrights and copyrightable works, (d) registrations and applications for any of the foregoing, (e) trade secrets, confidential information, know how, processes and inventions, and (f) computer software (including all source code and related documentation).

Intellectual Property Assignment has the meaning set forth in Section 8.2(h)(ii).

Knowledge means, with respect to a Person, the actual knowledge of such Person and the knowledge such Person would reasonably be expected to have based on such Person s title and duties. Seller s Knowledge means the Knowledge of Sherman L. Black, the Seller s Chief Executive Officer, James R. Stewart, the Seller s Chief Financial Officer, and Chris Heim, the Seller s Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing for Rimage Disc Publishing. Buyer s Knowledge means the Knowledge of Andy Juang, Parent s President & CEO, and Howard Gilles, Parent s Chief Financial Officer.

Latest Balance Sheet means the audited consolidated balance sheet of Seller as of December 31, 2013.

Latest Income Statement means the audited consolidated income statement for the twelve month period ending December 31, 2013.

Lease means the Lease Agreement between Seller and Buyer, substantially in the form attached as Exhibit F.

Leased Real Property means all leasehold or subleasehold estates and other rights to use or occupy any land, buildings, structures, improvements, fixtures, or other interest in real property held by Seller or an Acquired Subsidiary and used by Seller or an Acquired Subsidiary in the Business, but does not include any leasehold or subleasehold estates and other rights to use or occupy any land, buildings, structures, improvements, fixtures, or other interest in real property of a Retained Subsidiary.

Legal Requirement means any law (including common law), statute, legislation, constitution, ordinance, code, judgment, order, decree, treaty, rule, regulation, ruling, direction or other restriction of an arbitrator or Government Entity, as currently in effect, or, as applicable, as in effect as of any date on which a representation or warranty is made under this Agreement.

Licenses has the meaning set forth in Section 4.7(c).

Lien means any mortgage, pledge, lien, encumbrance, charge, deed of trust, hypothecation, lease, sublease, license, claim, transfer restriction or other security interest.

Loss means, with respect to any Person, any liability, cost, damage, penalty, fine, Lien, fee, or other out-of-pocket loss or expense, including court costs and reasonable attorneys fees and expenses, whether or not arising out of a Third Party Claim, against or affecting such Person,

Table of Contents

but will not include any punitive damages, or any damages that are not reasonably foreseeable (except to the extent such damages arise out of a Third Party Claim), nor shall Losses include damages measured by or based on a multiple of earnings (or other similar multiplier).

Material Adverse Effect means any effect, or series of related effects that, individually or in the aggregate, has not had and would not reasonably be expected to have a material and adverse effect on (a) the business, operations, properties or financial condition of the Business, taken as a whole, or (b) the ability of Seller to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby; provided, however, that any effect arising from or relating to any of the following will be excluded from clause (a) of the definition of Material Adverse Effect and from the determination of whether such a Material Adverse Effect under clause (a) has occurred: (i) any action taken by Seller or any Acquired Subsidiary pursuant to the express terms hereof, (ii) general business or economic conditions, (iii) any failure by the Business to meet Seller s internal financial projections (provided that the underlying cause or causes of such failure to meet such projections may be taken into account in determining whether a Material Adverse Effect has occurred), (iv) political or social conditions, including the engagement by the United States or any other country or group in hostilities, (v) changes in GAAP, (vi) fluctuations or volatility in the financial, banking or securities markets (including any disruption thereof and any decline in the price of any security or any market index), (vii) changes in any Legal Requirement, (viii) any act of God, including, but not limited to, weather, natural disasters and earthquakes, and (ix) changes resulting from the announcement or pendency of this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereunder; except to the extent any changes arising from or relating to clauses (ii), (iv), (v), (vii), (vii) and (viii) have a disproportionate effect on the Business relative to other participants in the Business s industry.

Material Contracts has the meaning set forth in Section 4.14(a).

Maximum Rimage Sub Cash has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1(a).

Mutual Transition Services Agreement has the meaning set forth in Section 8.2(h)(ix).

Net Book Value means the net book value of the Acquired Assets (including the net book value of the assets of the Acquired Subsidiaries but excluding for this purpose the Rimage Sub Cash), less the net book value of the Assumed Liabilities as of the Closing Date, determined in accordance with GAAP consistently applied by Seller and in accordance with the methodologies set forth on Exhibit A and in each case as of 12:01 a.m. on the Closing Date.

Non-U.S. Employees means Employees engaged or employed by any of the Acquired Subsidiaries wholly or primarily outside the United States, including those individuals identified on Section 4.20(1) of the Disclosure Schedule as having a primary residence outside the United States.

Objection Notice has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2(b).

Ordinary Course of Business means the ordinary course of the Business, consistent with Seller s and the Acquired Subsidiaries past custom and practice.

Table of Contents

Other Indemnified Person means, for any Person, such Person s Affiliates and each of such Person s and each of such Affiliate s stockholders, officers, directors, partners, members, governors, managers, employees, agents, representatives and permitted successors and assigns.

Owned Real Property means the real property located at 7725 Washington Avenue South, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55439.

Parent has the meaning set forth in the preamble.

Party has the meaning set forth in the preamble.

Permits has the meaning set forth in Section 4.16.

Permitted Liens means (a) liens for Taxes or assessments and similar charges, which are not yet due or delinquent, (b) mechanics materialmen s or contractors liens or encumbrances or any similar statutory Lien or restriction for amounts not yet due and payable or which are being contested in good faith, (c) zoning, entitlement, building and other land use regulations which do not materially impair, prohibit or restrict the occupancy or current use of the real property which they encumber, (d) covenants, conditions, restrictions, easements and other similar matters of record affecting title to the real property which do not materially impair, prohibit or restrict the occupancy or current use of the real property which they encumber, (e) any deposit made in the Ordinary Course of Business in compliance with workers compensation, unemployment insurance or other social security laws or other statutory obligations of Seller or any Acquired Subsidiary, (f) any cash deposit or right of set-off to secure the performance of contracts, leases, statutory obligations and other obligations of a similar nature, in each case imposed in the Ordinary Course of Business, (g) statutory liens of landlords, and (h) any Lien created by or at the direction of Buyer.

Person means an individual, a partnership, a corporation, an association, a limited liability company, a joint stock company, a trust, a joint venture, an unincorporated organization, an estate, a labor union, or a Government Entity.

Post-Closing Tax Period means (a) any Tax period beginning after the Closing Date and (b) with respect to a Straddle Period, any portion thereof beginning after the Closing Date.

Pre-Closing Tax Period means (a) any Tax period ending on or before the Closing Date and (b) with respect to a Straddle Period, any portion thereof ending on, and including, the Closing Date.

Prospective Business Matter has the meaning set forth in Section 6.8(c).

Proxy Statement has the meaning set forth in Section 6.6(a).

Purchase Price has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1(a).

Table of Contents

Purchase Price Allocation has the meaning set forth in Section 3.3.

Qualifying SEC Report means (a) Seller s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 and (b) any Seller SEC Report filed or furnished on or after the date of filing such Form 10-K that is filed with or furnished to the SEC on the SEC s EDGAR system at least five Business Days prior to the date of this Agreement.

Qumu Europe means Qumu Europe GmbH, an entity formed under the laws of Germany.

Qumu Germany means an entity to be formed under the laws of Germany.

Qumu, Inc. means Qumu, Inc., a California corporation.

Qumu Japan means an entity to be formed under the laws of Japan.

Oumu UK means Oumu UK Limited, an entity formed under the laws of England.

Real Property means the Owned Real Property and the Leased Real Property.

Real Property Lease or Real Property Leases has the meaning set forth in Section 4.11(b).

Representatives means, with respect to a particular Person, any director, officer, manager, employee, agent, consultant, advisor, accountant, financial advisor, legal counsel or other representative of that Person.

Required Consents has the meaning set forth in Section 6.4.

Required Shareholder Vote means the vote required by the Minnesota Business Corporation Act or the organizational documents of Seller, for the adoption of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated herein by the majority of the issued and outstanding common stock of Seller.

Restricted Party means any Person: (a) named on the Specially Designated Nationals List maintained by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. Department of Treasury; (b) named on the Entity List, the Unverified List or the Denied Persons List maintained by the Bureau of Industry and Security of the U.S. Department of Commerce; (c) named in any Executive Order or any Annex to any Executive Order issued by the President of the United States, as a party with whom transactions by U.S. persons are prohibited; (d) that is otherwise identified in writing by the United States government as a Person with whom or with which conducting business would constitute a violation of U.S. Legal Requirements; (e) included on any similar lists maintained by any other applicable non-U.S. Government Entity; or (f) whose property has been blocked, or is subject to seizure, forfeiture or confiscation, by any Government Entity, U.S. or foreign.

Table of Contents

Retained Business has the meaning set forth in the recitals.

Retained Subsidiaries means BriefCam, Qumu Germany, Qumu, Inc., Qumu Japan and Qumu UK.

Rimage Japan means Rimage Japan Co., Ltd., an entity formed under the law of Japan.

Rimage RIT means Rimage Information Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., an entity formed under the laws of the People s Republic of China.

Rimage Singapore means Rimage Holdings (Singapore) Pte., Ltd., an entity formed under the laws of Singapore.

Rimage Sub Cash means cash and cash equivalents held by the Acquired Subsidiaries at Closing.

SEC means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

Seller has the meaning set forth in the preamble.

Seller Board Recommendation has the meaning set forth in Section 6.6(c).

Seller Disclosure Documents has the meaning set forth in Section 4.25.

Seller SEC Reports means all registration statements, reports, schedules and other documents filed or furnished by Seller to the SEC.

Seller Shareholder Meeting has the meaning set forth in Section 6.6(a).

Seller Termination Fee has the meaning set forth in Section 9.3(c).

Severance Agreements means each of the severance agreements in the form set forth on Schedule_1.1 between Buyer and each of the individuals whose names are set forth on Schedule 1.1.

Signal Intellectual Property means the Intellectual Property related to the Signal software, including, without limitation, the following U.S. patent applications: 13/840107 (content watermarking), 13/279016 (content distribution and aggregation); 13/279009 (secure content distribution); and 13/862343 (adaptive and configurable content delivery and routing).

Straddle Period means any complete Tax period of any Acquired Subsidiary relating to any Tax that includes but does not end on the Closing Date.

Superior Proposal means any unsolicited, bona fide written Acquisition Proposal (provided, that for purposes of this definition, references to 20% in the definition of Acquisition Proposal shall be deemed to be references to 50%) made by a third party that, in the good faith

Table of Contents

judgment of Seller s Board of Directors or any committee thereof, after consultation with its financial advisors and outside counsel, taking into account all the terms and conditions of such proposal that Seller s Board of Directors or any committee thereof deems relevant (including the legal, financial, regulatory, timing and other aspects of the proposal and any changes to the terms of this Agreement proposed by Buyer in response to such proposal or otherwise), is more favorable, from a financial point of view, to Seller than the transactions contemplated hereby.

Target Net Book Value means \$5.0 million.

Tax or Taxes means federal, state, or local income, gross receipts, capital stock, franchise, profits, payroll, employment, withholding, social security, social welfare, unemployment, disability, real property, ad valorem, personal property, stamp, excise, license, occupation, sales, use, transfer, registration, value added, alternative minimum, estimated or other tax, including any interest, penalty or addition thereto.

Tax Return means any return, report, information return or other document relating to Taxes.

Third Party Claim has the meaning set forth in Section 7.5(a)(i).

Transaction Documents means this Agreement, the Bill of Sale, the Intellectual Property Assignment, the Escrow Agreement, Mutual Transition Services Agreement, the Employee Transition Agreement, the Lease and any other document expressly contemplated by this Agreement.

Transaction Expenses means attorney, accountant, investment banker and other professional fees and expenses and other costs of Seller or any Acquired Subsidiary in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby and any bonus, change in control or other similar employee benefit obligation arising as a result of the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.

U.S. Employees means all Employees engaged or employed by Seller wholly or primarily in the United States, including those individuals identified on Section 4.20(1) of the Disclosure Schedule as having a primary residence in the United States.

ARTICLE 2 PURCHASE AND SALE OF ASSETS

- 2.1 <u>Purchase and Sale</u>. At the Closing, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Buyer will purchase from Seller, and Seller will sell, convey, assign, transfer, and deliver to Buyer, free and clear of any Liens (other than Permitted Liens), all of the right, title and interest of Seller in and to all of the assets of Seller primarily used or primarily held for use in connection with the Business, including the assets set forth on <u>Schedule 2.1</u> and the following assets (collectively, the Acquired Assets):
 - (a) accounts, notes and other receivables relating to the Business;

Table of Contents

- (b) the tangible personal property (such as machinery, equipment, inventories of raw materials and supplies, manufactured and purchased parts, goods in process and finished goods, furniture, automobiles, trucks, trailers, tools, jigs and dies) relating to the Business, including but not limited to those items listed on <u>Schedule 2.1(b)</u>;
- (c) the Business Intellectual Property, including the Intellectual Property listed on <u>Schedule 2.1(c)</u>, the Rimage tradename (but excluding the Qumu tradename), the goodwill associated therewith, and rights thereunder, remedies against infringements thereof and rights to protection of interests therein under the laws of all jurisdictions;
 - (d) the Leased Real Property listed on <u>Schedule 2.1(d)</u> and all leasehold improvements relating thereto;
 - (e) the Owned Real Property;
- (f) contracts, agreements, commitments and other arrangements, whether written or oral, relating to the Business, including unfilled service and maintenance contracts and commitments, purchase orders for raw materials and supplies, other unfilled customer orders, leases, subleases and licenses, including those listed on <u>Schedule 2.1(f)</u> but excluding the Excluded Contracts (collectively, the Acquired Contracts);
 - (g) the direct and indirect equity interests in the Acquired Subsidiaries;
- (h) prepaid expenses, claims, deposits, prepayments, refunds, causes of action, rights of recovery, warranty rights, rights of set-off and rights of recoupment relating to the Business;
- (i) franchises, approvals, permits, licenses, orders, registrations, certificates, variances and similar rights obtained from Government Entities, to the extent transferable;
- (j) books, records, ledgers, files, documents, correspondence, lists, plats, architectural plans, drawings and specifications, creative materials, advertising and promotional materials, studies, reports and other printed or written materials, whether stored electronically or otherwise, relating to the Business;
 - (k) software development costs of the Business that have been capitalized by Seller;
- (l) all customer, supplier and service provider lists and similar information related to the Business, and all other contact information, mailing lists and similar files related to the Business;
- (m) all telephone numbers (including cellular telephone numbers), fax numbers, e-mail addresses, postal addresses and postal boxes related to the Business, including those listed on <u>Schedule 2.1(m)</u>;

Table of Contents

- (n) except as otherwise expressly stated herein, all rights with respect to causes of action, rights of recovery, rights of set-off, warranty claims, refunds, credits and other rights in respect of undertakings of third parties, Encumbrances and other claims related to the Business; and
 - (o) goodwill related to the Business;

provided, however, that the Acquired Assets do not include the Excluded Assets.

- 2.2 <u>Excluded Assets</u>. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 2.1, the Acquired Assets do not include any of Seller s right, title and interest in and to the following (the Excluded Assets):
- (a) cash and cash equivalents of Seller (but not, for the avoidance of doubt, the Rimage Sub Cash) and any bank accounts of Seller;
 - (b) the Benefit Plans of Seller, except for those included in the Acquired Contracts;
 - (c) the Insurance Policies:
- (d) the corporate charter, qualifications to conduct business, arrangements with registered agents, taxpayer and other identification numbers, seals, minute books and other documents relating to the organization, maintenance, and existence of Seller as an entity;
 - (e) any contract or agreement related to the governance of the Seller;
- (f) all books, records, ledgers, files, documents, correspondence required for Seller to comply with the Legal Requirements of a public company, whether stored electronically or otherwise;
 - (g) the contracts, agreements, commitments and other arrangements set forth on <u>Schedule 2.2(g)</u> (the Excluded Contracts);
 - (h) the equity interests and assets of the Retained Subsidiaries;
- (i) all books or records relating to internal corporate matters, Tax Returns and associated work papers of Seller through the Closing Date;
 - (j) any of the rights of Seller under any Transaction Document;
- (k) all claims, prepayments, prepaid expenses, refunds, causes of action, choses in action, rights of recovery, rights of set off, and rights of recoupment (i) from any Excluded Asset or (ii) arising out of any Excluded Liability (including any Taxes for which Seller is responsible under this Agreement to the extent such Taxes are an Excluded Liability);

Table of Contents

- (l) all confidential, business records and other business information primarily related to the Retained Business;
- (m) all telephone numbers (including cellular telephone numbers), fax numbers, e-mail addresses assigned to employees of Seller that are not Hired Employees or leased employees under Section 6.11, as applicable;
- (n) the tangible personal property (such as computers, furniture and other related items) assigned by Seller to be used by employees of Seller that are not Hired Employees or leased employees under Section 6.11, as applicable;
- (o) all personnel, payroll, benefits, work authorization, and other associated necessary records related to any Hired Employee that Seller or a Retained Subsidiary is not legally permitted to transfer to Buyer;
 - (p) the Signal Intellectual Property;
- (q) the Qumu.com domain name and website, @Qumu twitter account, Qumu facebook, Qumu LinkedIn, Qumu Blog and Qumu Google+ and similar social media sites;
- (r) except for the assets set forth on <u>Schedule 2.1</u>, any assets, properties or rights of every kind or nature that are primarily used or held for use in connection with the Retained Business; and
 - (s) the assets listed on <u>Schedule 2.2(s)</u>.

At Closing, the Acquired Subsidiaries will transfer to Seller, or such entity as directed by Seller, the assets and agreements of the Acquired Subsidiaries set forth on Schedule 2.2(t) and such assets and agreements will be deemed Excluded Assets for purposes of this Agreement. For avoidance of doubt, cash and cash equivalents held by Rimage RIT and Rimage Singapore in an amount up to \$269,868 will remain in Rimage RIT and Rimage Singapore, collectively, an amount of \$325,000 will remain in Qumu Europe and an amount of \$75,000 will remain in Rimage Japan, provided, however, that immediately prior to Closing, each of Qumu Europe and Rimage Japan shall distribute cash and cash equivalents held by such entity in excess of the respective amounts set forth above to Seller and such cash and cash equivalents so distributed will be deemed Excluded Assets (and not Rimage Sub Cash) for purposes of this Agreement.

- 2.3 <u>Assumed Liabilities</u>. On the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement, Buyer agrees to assume on the Closing Date only the following agreements and liabilities of the Business (the Assumed Liabilities):
- (a) the liabilities of the Business (including any Acquired Subsidiary) set forth on the Estimated Closing Date Balance Sheet or the Closing Date Balance Sheet, including trade payables, accrued expenses (excluding personal leave and bonuses but including accrued

Table of Contents

vacation) and other current liabilities and deferred revenue and liabilities of the Business (including any Acquired Subsidiary) incurred in the Ordinary Course of Business since the date of the Latest Balance Sheet, but only to the extent such liabilities are included in the Final Net Book Value;

- (b) obligations under the executory portion (that is, the portion which is to be performed after the Closing Date) of any Acquired Contract, but not including any obligation relating to portions performed or to be performed on or before the Closing Date or as a result of any breach or default thereunder before Closing;
- (c) obligations under the executory portion (that is, the portion which is to be performed after the Closing Date) of any contract, agreement or other arrangement of the Acquired Subsidiaries entered into in the Ordinary Course of Business, but not including any obligation relating to portions performed or to be performed on or before the Closing Date or as a result of any breach or default thereunder before Closing;
- (d) the obligations and liabilities arising out of any Foreign Benefit Plan on and after the Closing Date, but not including any obligation relating to portions performed or to be performed on or before the Closing Date or as a result of any breach or default thereunder before Closing; and
- (e) the obligations and liabilities arising out of the ownership of the Acquired Assets and the operation of the Business (including the Acquired Subsidiaries) on and after the Closing Date.
- 2.4 Excluded Liabilities. Buyer will have no responsibility for (a) any liabilities or obligations of Seller of any nature whatsoever which are not specifically included in the Assumed Liabilities, whether similar or dissimilar to the Assumed Liabilities, (b) Taxes of Seller, (c) indebtedness for borrowed money of Seller, (d) the Benefit Plans, except for those included in the Acquired Contracts, (e) except as included in the Assumed Liabilities, any liabilities of Seller arising out of the conduct of the Business prior to the Closing Date, or arising out of the ownership or operation of the Owned Real Property by Seller prior to the Closing Date, including without limitation any violations (or alleged violations) of any Environmental Laws by Seller or any liability associated with the treatment, storage, disposal (or arranging for or permitting of any disposal), or release of any substance, either on or under the Owned Real Property or at any offsite location in connection with the operation of the Business by Seller prior to the Closing Date, or (f) liabilities set forth on Schedule 2.4 (the Excluded Liabilities). For the avoidance of doubt, other than the Assumed Liabilities, the obligations and liabilities of the Acquired Subsidiaries arising out of the ownership of their respective assets or their operation of the Business before the Closing Date will be deemed Excluded Liabilities for purposes of this Agreement, including Section 7.2(c).

Table of Contents

ARTICLE 3 PURCHASE PRICE

3.1 Purchase Price.

- (a) The aggregate consideration for the Acquired Assets (as it may be adjusted in accordance with this Agreement, the Purchase Price) will be, subject to any adjustments under Section 3.2, the sum of the following (without duplication):
 - (i) \$23.0 million,
 - (ii) <u>plus</u>, the amount of the Estimated Rimage Sub Cash, in an amount of up to \$800,000 (the Maximum Rimage Sub Cash),
 - (iii) <u>less</u>, the amount (if any) by which the Estimated Net Book Value is less than the Target Net Book Value,
 - (iv) <u>plus</u>, the amount (if any) by which the Estimated Net Book Value exceeds the Target Net Book Value, and
 - (v) <u>less</u>, the amount of Estimated EBITDA.
- (b) Seller will prepare and deliver to Buyer at least three Business Days prior to the Closing Date an estimated unaudited balance sheet of the Business as of 12:01 a.m. on the Closing Date (the Estimated Closing Balance Sheet) and a calculation of (i) the Estimated Rimage Sub Cash (ii) the Estimated Net Book Value, and (iii) Estimated EBITDA, in each case determined from the Estimated Closing Balance Sheet. The Estimated Closing Balance Sheet, the Estimated Net Book Value, Estimated Rimage Sub Cash and Estimated EBITDA will be computed in accordance with Exhibit A and GAAP used to prepare the Latest Balance Sheet. Seller will make the books, records, and financial staff of Seller available to Buyer and its accountants and other Representatives at reasonable times prior to the Closing Date so that Buyer may review the Estimated Closing Balance Sheet, the Estimated Rimage Sub Cash and Estimated EBITDA. Seller shall consider any suggested changes to the Estimated Closing Balance Sheet, the Estimated Net Book Value, the Estimated Rimage Sub Cash and Estimated EBITDA made by Buyer in delivering a revised Estimated Closing Balance Sheet, Estimated Net Book Value, Estimated Rimage Sub Cash and Estimated EBITDA prior to the Closing Date.
 - (c) At the Closing and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement, Buyer will deliver:
 - (i) the Purchase Price less the Escrow Amount to Seller, by wire transfer or delivery of other immediately available funds to an account designated by Seller; and

Table of Contents

- (ii) the Escrow Amount to the Escrow Agent to be held in the Escrow Account pursuant to the terms of the Escrow Agreement.
- 3.2 Purchase Price Adjustment. Following the Closing Date, the Purchase Price will be adjusted as set forth below:
- (a) <u>Closing Balance Sheet Preparation</u>. Buyer will prepare and deliver to Seller within 60 days after the Closing Date an unaudited balance sheet of the Business as of 12:01 a.m. on the Closing Date (the Closing Balance Sheet), an income statement for the Business for the period from June 1 to (but not including) the Closing Date (the Closing Income Statement) and a calculation of Net Book Value, EBITDA and Rimage Sub Cash determined from the Closing Balance Sheet and Closing Income Statement (the Closing Calculation). The Closing Balance Sheet, the Closing Income Statement, the Net Book Value, the Rimage Sub Cash and EBITDA will be computed in accordance with Exhibit A or Exhibit G, as applicable, and GAAP used to prepare the Latest Balance Sheet and Latest Income Statement. Buyer will make the work papers and back-up materials used in preparing the Closing Balance Sheet and Closing Income Statement, and the books, records, and financial staff of Buyer, available to Seller and its accountants and other Representatives at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice at any time during (i) the review by Seller of the Closing Balance Sheet, the Closing Income Statement and Closing Calculation, and (ii) the resolution by the Parties of any objections thereto. Seller will make available to Buyer such information about the Retained Business as is necessary to prepare the Closing Income Statement and Buyer's calculation of EBITDA in accordance with Exhibit G and GAAP used to prepare the Latest Income Statement.
- (b) <u>Closing Calculation Review.</u> Within 45 days following Buyer s delivery of the Closing Balance Sheet and Closing Income Statement to Seller, Seller will give Buyer a written notice stating either (i) Seller s acceptance, without objection, of the Closing Balance Sheet, the Closing Income Statement and the Closing Calculation (an Acceptance Notice) or (ii) Seller s objections to the Closing Balance Sheet, Closing Income Statement or the Closing Calculation and Seller s determination of Net Book Value, Rimage Sub Cash or EBITDA (an Objection Notice). Seller may give an Objection Notice only if (1) assuming all of Seller s assertions therein were sustained, the Purchase Price would be higher than if Seller had not given such Objection Notice to Buyer and (2) such Objection Notice states Seller s determination of Net Book Value, Rimage Sub Cash and EBITDA. If Seller gives Buyer an Acceptance Notice or does not give Buyer an Objection Notice within such 45 day period, then the Closing Balance Sheet, Closing Income Statement and the Closing Calculations will be conclusive and binding upon the Parties and the Closing Calculation will constitute the Final Net Book Value, Final Rimage Sub Cash and Final EBITDA.
- (c) <u>Audit Review</u>. In the event that Buyer and Seller fail to resolve all of the issues set forth in the Objection Notice within 30 days after Buyer receives the Objection Notice (the Agreement Period), (i) Seller and Buyer will retain a firm of certified public accountants mutually acceptable to Buyer and Seller (the Independent Auditors) to make the determination of the Final Net Book Value, Final Rimage Sub Cash and Final EBITDA in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, and (ii) Buyer and Seller each will provide the Independent Auditors with their respective determinations of the Net Book Value, Rimage Sub Cash and EBITDA.

Table of Contents

The Independent Auditors will consider only those items and amounts in Buyer s and Seller s respective determinations of the Net Book Value, Rimage Sub Cash and EBITDA that are identified as being items and amounts to which Buyer and Seller have been unable to agree. In resolving any such disputed item or amount, the Independent Auditors may not assign a value to any item or amount that is higher than the highest value for such item or amount claimed by either party or lower than the lowest value for such item or amount claimed by either party. The Independent Auditors determination of the Net Book Value, Rimage Sub Cash and EBITDA will be based on the definition of Net Book Value, Rimage Sul Cash and EBITDA contained in this Agreement. The determination of the Final Net Book Value, Final Rimage Sub Cash and Final EBITDA by the Independent Auditors will be conclusive and binding upon the Parties. The fees, costs and expenses of the Independent Auditors will be allocated to Buyer and/or Seller based upon the percentage which the portion of the contested amount not awarded bears to the amount actually contested, as determined by the Independent Auditors. By way of illustration, if Buyer claims that the Net Book Value, Rimage Sub Cash and EBITDA is \$1,500,000, and the Independent Auditors determine that the Net Book Value, Rimage Sub Cash and EBITDA is \$1,500,000, then the costs and expenses of the Independent Auditors will be allocated 60% (i.e., 300,000 ÷ 500,000) to Seller and 40% (i.e., 200,000 ÷ 500,000) to Buyer.

(d) Adjustment Payment.

- (i) Upon the determination of the Final Net Book Value, Final Rimage Sub Cash and Final EBITDA in accordance with this Section 3.2, the Purchase Price will be recalculated using the Final Net Book Value, the Final Rimage Sub Cash and Final EBITDA in lieu of the Estimated Net Book Value, Estimated Rimage Sub Cash and Estimated EBITDA used in the calculation of the Purchase Price payable at Closing. For the avoidance of doubt, for purposes of determining the Final Rimage Sub Cash, it shall not exceed the Maximum Rimage Sub Cash.
- (ii) If the Purchase Price as recalculated under Section 3.2(d)(i) exceeds the Purchase Price paid at Closing, then Buyer will pay to Seller the amount by which the recalculated Purchase Price exceeds the Purchase Price paid at Closing by wire transfer or delivery of other immediately available funds to the accounts designated by Seller in writing to Buyer within ten days after the determination of the Final Net Book Value, Final Rimage Sub Cash and Final EBITDA.
- (iii) If the Purchase Price as recalculated under Section 3.2(d)(i) is less than the Purchase Price paid at Closing, then Seller will pay to Buyer the amount by which the recalculated Purchase Price is less than the Purchase Price paid at Closing after the determination of the Final Net Book Value, Final Rimage Sub Cash and Final EBITDA. Such payment shall be made by wire transfer or delivery of other immediately available funds to the accounts designated by Buyer in writing to Seller within ten days after the determination of the Final Net Book Value, Final Rimage Sub Cash and Final EBITDA.

Table of Contents

3.3 <u>Allocation</u>. The Purchase Price will be allocated among the Acquired Assets as set forth on <u>Schedule 3.3</u> (the Purchase Price Allocation). After Closing, the Parties will, and will cause their respective Affiliates to, make consistent use of such allocation, as adjusted to reflect any, if any, adjustments needed to remain consistent with Final Net Book Value, Final Rimage Sub Cash and Final EBITDA and the resulting adjustment to the Purchase Price. The Parties will prepare and file all Tax Returns consistent with the Purchase Price Allocation and no Party will take a position on a Tax Return or otherwise inconsistent with the Purchase Price Allocation unless otherwise required by applicable Legal Requirements.

ARTICLE 4 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SELLER

Except as otherwise set forth on the Disclosure Schedule or a Qualifying SEC Report (other than (i) any information that is contained in the Risk Factors section of such reports, except to the extent such information consists of factual historical statements; and (ii) any forward-looking statements, or other statements that are similarly predictive or forward-looking in nature, contained in such reports) if the relevance of such disclosure as an exception to one or more of the following representations and warranties is reasonably apparent, Seller represents and warrants to Buyer and Parent that as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date:

4.1 Organization, Power and Authorization.

- (a) Seller and each Acquired Subsidiary, as applicable, (i) is duly incorporated or organized, as applicable, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation or organization and (ii) has the requisite power and authority necessary to enter into, deliver and perform its obligations pursuant to each of the Transaction Documents to which it is a party. Seller s execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and each Transaction Document to which it is a party has been duly authorized by Seller, except for the Required Shareholder Vote.
- (b) Seller and each Acquired Subsidiary has the organizational power to carry on the Business and to own and use the properties owned and used by it in the Business. Seller and each Acquired Subsidiary is duly authorized to conduct the Business and is in good standing under the laws of each jurisdiction where such qualification is required except where the lack of such qualification would not have a Material Adverse Effect.

4.2 <u>Binding Effect; Noncontravention; Consents.</u>

(a) This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by Seller and constitutes, and each other Transaction Document to which Seller is a party when executed and delivered will constitute, a valid and binding obligation of Seller, enforceable against Seller in accordance with its terms except as such enforceability may be limited by (i) applicable insolvency, bankruptcy, reorganization, moratorium or other similar laws affecting creditors—rights generally, and (ii) applicable equitable principles (whether considered in a proceeding at law or in equity).

Table of Contents

- (b) The execution, delivery and performance by Seller of the Transaction Documents to which it is a party do not (i) except for the Required Shareholder Vote, violate any applicable Legal Requirement to which Seller is subject or any provision of its articles of incorporation or bylaws, (ii) conflict with, result in a breach of, constitute a default under, result in the acceleration of, create in any party the right to accelerate, terminate, modify, or cancel, or require any notice under any Material Contract, (iii) result in the creation of any Lien on the Acquired Assets, or (iv) require any authorization, consent, approval or notice by or to any Government Entity.
- (c) Except as listed in Section 4.2(c) of the Disclosure Schedule, no material consent or approval by, notification to or filing with any Person is required in connection with Seller s execution, delivery or performance of this Agreement or any Transaction Document or Seller s consummation of the transactions contemplated herein or therein.

4.3 Acquired Subsidiaries.

- (a) Section 4.3(a) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth, with respect to each Acquired Subsidiary, the number of equity interests thereof issued and outstanding, the names of all owners of such equity interests, and the amount of equity owned by each such equity owner.
- (b) The outstanding equity interests of each Acquired Subsidiary are validly issued, fully paid, and non-assessable, and all such equity interests are owned by Seller or the applicable Acquired Subsidiary as set forth on Section 4.3(a) of the Disclosure Schedule, free and clear of any Liens, other than Permitted Liens. There are no existing options, warrants, calls, rights, or contracts or arrangements of any nature requiring, and there are no securities of any Acquired Subsidiary outstanding that upon conversion or exchange would require, the issuance of any equity interests of any Acquired Subsidiary or other securities convertible into, exchangeable for, or evidencing the right to subscribe for or purchase any equity interests in any Acquired Subsidiary. Neither Seller, any Acquired Subsidiary nor, to Seller s Knowledge, any other Person is a party to any voting trust or other contract with respect to the voting, redemption, sale, transfer, or other disposition of the ownership interests of any Acquired Subsidiary. All of the equity interests of the Acquired Subsidiaries have been issued in compliance with all Legal Requirements. The Acquired Subsidiaries are not insolvent or over-indebted, and there are no pending insolvency proceedings or petitions for insolvency proceedings regarding any of the Acquired Subsidiaries.

4.4 Financial Statements; Undisclosed Liabilities.

(a) <u>Financial Statements</u>. Seller has provided to Buyer true and correct copies of the audited consolidated balance sheet, statement of income and statement of cash flow of Seller as of December 31, 2012 and 2013 and for the years then ended (the Financial Statements). All of the Financial Statements (i) have been prepared from the books and records of Seller, (ii) have been prepared in accordance with GAAP, and (iii) fairly present, in all material respects, the financial condition of Seller and the Business as of their respective dates and the results of its operations for the periods covered thereby. The revenue of the Business, as

Table of Contents

derived from the Financial Statements, for the twelve month periods ending December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2013 is \$69,607,396 and \$64,736,000, respectively. The unaudited revenue and gross margin of the Business, as derived from the books and records of Seller, for the three-month period ending March 31, 2014 is approximately \$14,863,000 and \$7,171,000, respectively. The financial records of the Business are true, correct and complete and represent actual, bona fide transactions and have been maintained in accordance with sound business practices.

- (b) <u>Undisclosed Liabilities</u>. Seller (in respect to the Business) and the Acquired Subsidiaries do not have any material liability or obligation required to be set forth in a financial statement prepared in accordance with GAAP, except for any liability or obligation (i) set forth on the face of the Latest Balance Sheet, (ii) listed in Section 4.4(b) of the Disclosure Schedule, (iii) that has arisen in the Ordinary Course of Business since the date of the Latest Balance Sheet (which does not arise out of, relate to or result from and which is not in the nature of and was not caused by any breach of contract, breach of warranty, tort, infringement or other violation of a Legal Requirement), (iv) under this Agreement or any Transaction Document or otherwise in connection with the transactions contemplated herein or therein or (v) under any Acquired Contract or any contract of an Acquired Subsidiary (none of which results from a breach thereof).
- 4.5 <u>Events Subsequent to the Latest Balance Sheet</u>. Except as otherwise expressly contemplated by this Agreement, since the date of the Latest Balance Sheet, Seller and the Acquired Subsidiaries have not suffered a Material Adverse Effect in respect to the Business, have conducted the Business in the Ordinary Course of Business, and have not, with respect to the Business:
- (a) (i) sold, assigned, transferred, leased or licensed any Acquired Assets outside the Ordinary Course of Business with a value of more than \$25,000; (ii) acquired any material Acquired Assets; or (iii) failed to preserve and maintain the Real Property and the Acquired Assets in the Ordinary Course of Business;
- (b) entered into any agreement, contract, lease, or license involving more than \$50,000, except for purchase orders and sales orders entered into in the Ordinary Course of Business;
- (c) accelerated, terminated, modified, or cancelled any Acquired Contract involving more than \$25,000 (or had any other party thereto take such action);
 - (d) imposed or granted any Lien, other than Permitted Liens, on any of the Acquired Assets;
 - (e) made any capital expenditures or commitments therefor involving more than \$25,000 (in the aggregate);
- (f) cancelled, compromised, waived, or released any right or claim involving more than \$25,000 (individually or in the aggregate);

Table of Contents

(g)